
The YouTube channel "City of Franklin WI" will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so
that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityotFranklinWIGov

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

FRANKLIN CITY HALL -- COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

AGENDA*
TUESDAY, MAY 4, 2021 AT 6:30 P.M.

A. Call to Order and Roll Call.

B. 1.
2.

Citizen Comment Period.
Mayoral Announcements:
(a) A Proclamation in Recognition of the 2021 American Honey Queen Jennifer

Hinkel.
(b) Update on Surrounding Communities 4th of July Activities.
(c) Notice of 2021 Wisconsin Act 29 Impacts (various changes to the Worker's

Compensation Law).
(d) Update on the Status ofFranklin Senior Citizens, Inc.

C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Common Council Meeting ofApril 20, 2021.

D. Hearings.

E. Organizational Business:

F. Letters and Petitions.

G. Reports and Recommendations:
1. A Resolution Conditionally Approving a Land Combination for Tax Key Nos. 838-9978-

000, 839-9990-000 and 839-9991-004 (8225-8255, 8429 and 8459 West Forest Hill Avenue)
(Franklin Public Schools, Applicant).

2. An Ordinance to Amend §15-3.0442 of the Unified Development Ordinance Planned
Development District No. 37 (The Rock Sports Complex/Ballpark Commons), to Increase
the Maximum Permitted Sign Face Area ofApproximately 750 Square Feet to 9,820 Square
Feet (Distributed Between 29 Signs) for the Indoor Sports Complex (Christopher D. Buday,
River Rock Performance Properties, LLC, Applicant), (at Approximately 7095 South
Ballpark Drive).

3. A Resolution Imposing Conditions and Restrictions for the Approval of a Special Use for an
Automotive Window Tinting Service Business Use Upon Property Located at 8581 South
27th Street, (Michael A. Lafuentes, Owner oflllie Tints, LLC, Applicant).

4. Status Update From the Quarry Monitoring Committee (QMC) on the Franklin Aggregates
Reclamation Plan.

5. An Ordinance to Repeal and Recreate Chapter 133 Fire Prevention, Protection, and Control
Code, of the Municipal Code of The City of Franklin; and to Discontinue Enforcing
Grandfathered Local Code Requirements Under Wisconsin Act 270.

6. Approval and Acceptance of Second (Years 6-10) Drug-Free Community Grant Cycle and
Approval for the City ofFranklin to Continue to Serve as the Fiscal Agent for the Drug-Free
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Community Grant and Approval of Memorandum of Understanding Between Volition
Franklin and the City of Franklin.

7. An Ordinance to Amend $$22-3A. and B. of the Municipal Code Pertaining to Municipal
Court Stipulations and Deposits to Update Same with regard to References to the Wisconsin
Statutes Provisions, and a Deposit Schedule for non-Police Department (Health, Inspection,
Fire, Engineering and City Development [Planning]) Citations.

8. An Ordinance to Amend Chapter §13-4 of the Municipal Code to Provide for Publication of
Budget Amendments on the City Website in Conformance with Wis. State §65.90(5).

9. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2020-2453, an Ordinance Adopting the 2021 Annual
Budgets for the General and Capital Improvement Funds to Carryforward $350,000 City
Wide Security Appropriations and Reclassifying $6,600 of Contingency Appropriations to
Park Expenditures.

10. A Resolution Declaring Official Intent to Reimburse Expenditures from Proceeds of
Borrowing.

11. March 2021 Monthly Financial Report.
12. Recommendations from the Committee of the Whole Meeting of May 3, 2021:

(a) Volition Franklin: Drug-Free Community Grant Progress and Future Presentation.
(b) Presentation of the 2020 Annual Financial Report for the City of Franklin.
(c) Continued Discussion Regarding the Establishment/Use of the following - City of

Franklin Common Council Reference Manual:
Form of Government.
Common Council Code of Conduct.
Common Council Rules of Order.
Handbook for Wisconsin Municipal Officials.
Plan to Update to Existing Policies/Need for Additional Policies.
Common Council Training/Professional Development Opportunities.

H. Licenses and Permits.
Miscellaneous Licenses - License Committee Meeting ofMay 4, 2021.

I. Bills.
Request for Approval of Vouchers and Payroll.

J. Adjournment.
Supporting documentation and details of these agenda Items are available mn the Common Council Meeting Packet on the City of Franklin
website www franklnw.gov

[Note Upon reasonable notice, efforts wll be made to accommodate the needs of d1sabled mndrvduals through appropr1ate aids and
services For additional information, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500 ]

REMINDERS:

May6
May 18
May20
May21
June 1
June 3

Plan Commission Meeting
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission Meeting
City Hall Closed-Memorial Day
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission Meeting

7:00p.m.
6:30p.m.
7:00 p.m.

6:30 p.m.
7:00p.m.



ROLL CALL A.

CITIZEN COMMENT B.

MINUTES C.
APRIL 5, 2021

RES. 2021-7721 G.l.
LUMPIA
MANUFACTURING

RES. 2021-7722 G.2.
SPECIAL USE
WP PROPERTY
ACQUISITIONS, LLC

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

APRIL 20, 2021
MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Common Council was held on April 20,
2021 and called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Steve Olson in the
Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W. Loomis Road,
Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were in attendance:
Alderman Mark Dandrea, Alderman Dan Mayer, Alderwoman
Kristen Wilhelm, Alderwoman Shari Hanneman, Alderman Mike
Barber and Alderman John R. Nelson. Also present were Dir. of
Administration Peggy Steeno, City Engineer Glen Morrow, City
Attorney Jesse A. Wesolowski and City Clerk Sandra Wesolowski.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:31 p.m. and closed at
6:40 p.m.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the minutes of the regular
Common Council Meeting of April 5, 2021 as presented at this
meeting. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7721, A
RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A FROZEN
LUMPIA MANUFACTURING AND WHOLESALE SALES
BUSINESS USE AND FOR PARKING AN 18 FOOT FOOD
TRUCK UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 10700 WEST
VENTURE DRIVE, SUITE C LOWER (SAMANTHA J.
KLIMASZEWSKI AND ALEXA L. REYES, D/B/A LUMPIA
CITY, APPLICANTS). Seconded by Alderwoman Wilhelm. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7722,
A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND
RESTRICTIONS FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR
OVERNIGHT PARKING FOR VEHICLES EXCEEDING 8,000
POUNDS MANUFACTURED GROSS VEHICLE WEIGHT AS
PART OF THE DEVELOPMENT OF TWO INDUSTRIAL
BUILDINGS TOTALING APPROXIMATELY 500,000 SQUARE
FEET IN AREA, AND POTENTIALLY UP TO 600,000 SQUARE
FEET IN AREA, UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3617 WEST
OAKWOOD ROAD (WP PROPERTY ACQUISITIONS LLC,
APPLICANT, WENDT FAMILY TRUST, PROPERTY OWNER).
Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion carried.
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WP PROPERTY G.3.
ACQUISITION LLC,
STANDARDS,
FINDINGS &
DECISION SPECIAL
EXCEPTION

POLICE DEPT. 2021 G.4.
APPROVED BUDGET
PURCHASES

CITY SECURITY G.5.
IMPROVEMENTS

PROCUREMENT G.6.
POLICY

PARKLAND G.7.
ACQUISITION STUDY
UPDATE

RES. 2021-7723 G.8.
RYAN CREEK
INTERCEPTOR ODOR
REDUCTION

RES. 2021-7724 G.9.
WATER MAIN
EASEMENT 9720 S.
OAKWOOD PARK DR.

LIMITED TERM G.10.
EMPLOYEE
INSPECTION
SERVICES

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt the Standard Findings and
Decision of the City of Franklin Common Council upon the
application of WP Property Acquisitions LLC, applicant, for a Special
Exception to Certain Natural Resource Provisions of the City of
Franklin Unified Development Ordinance. Seconded by Alderman
Dandrea. All voted, Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to approve the purchase of items that were
approved during the 2021 Police Department Budget process with the
Police Department 2021 Capital Budget and authorize proceeding
with the solicitation of bids for those capital improvements that are
qualified projects under Wis. Stat. §62.15. Seconded by Alderwoman
Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to approve the solicitation of bids for City
Security Improvements. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to approve the Procurement Policy for
the City of Franklin. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to place on file the Parkland
Acquisition Study. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderman Dandrea moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7723, A
RESOLUTION TO ISSUE CHANGE ORDER NO. 2 TO THE
WANASEK CORPORATION FOR THE RYAN CREEK
INTERCEPTOR ODOR REDUCTION PROJECT IN THE
AMOUNT OF $130,064 as amended. Seconded by Alderman
Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7724, A
RESOLUTION TO ACQUIRE WATER MAIN EASEMENT FROM
9720 S. OAKWOOD PARK DRIVE (WISCONSIN
COMMERCIAL, LLC) TAX KEY NO. 900-9001-000. Seconded by
Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to authorize the engagement of a
limited-term employee in Inspection Services at a cost not to exceed
$16,000. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye;
motion carried.
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SURPLUSDPW
EQUIPMENT

DPW EQUIPMENT
PURCHASE

ORD. 2021-2461
SALT
APPROPRIATIONS

RES. 2021-7726
RECONSTRUCT A
PORTION OF W.
COLLEGE AVE.

2022 BUDGET
TIMETABLE

RES. 2021-7727
OFFICIAL
NEWSPAPER

G.11.

G.12.

G.13.

G.15.

G.16.

G.17.

Alderman Mayer moved to place on file the results of the sale of the
Department of Public Works Surplus Equipment through Auction
Associates on April 3, 2021. Seconded by Alderwoman Wilhelm.
All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Mayer moved to approve the purchase of equipment with
funds that were approved with the 2021 Capital Outlay Fund for the
Department of Public Works. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2021-2461, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2020-2453, AN
ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2021 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR
THE GENERAL FUND TO MOVE $45,000 OF CONTINGENCY
APPROPRIATIONS TO SALT APPROPRIATIONS. Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. On roll call. All voted Aye. Motion
carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7725, A
RESOLUTION AWARDING CONTRACT TO THE LOW
BIDDER, PAYNE & DOLAN, INC. $899,258.00 FOR THE 2021
LOCAL STREET IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM. Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7726, A
RESOLUTION TO SIGN AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL
COOPERATION AGREEMENT WITH VILLAGE OF HALES
CORNERS TO RECONSTRUCT A PORTION OF W. COLLEGE
AVENUE BETWEENS. 108TH STREET (USH45\WI-100) ANDS.
92ND STREET FOR $24,000; and hereby authorize the Mayor to
execute the City Attorney request for potential conflict of interest
informed consent waiver letter with regard to the performance of legal
services for the Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement.
Seconded by Alderwoman Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt the 2022 Annual Budget
Preparation Timetable, dated April 20, 2021, as presented, subject to
any future regular meeting schedule changes if so made by Common
Council. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2021-7727, A
RESOLUTION DESIGNATING AN OFFICIAL NEWSPAPER.
Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion carried.

RES. 2021-7725 G.14.
2021 LOCAL STREET
IMPROVEMENT
PROGRAM
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LICENSES AND
PERMITS

H.1.

No action was taken on the following items from the 4/19/2021
Committee of the Whole meeting: American Rescue Plan
Introductions/Overview and Wholesale Public Water Supply to
Franklin 2024. The following item from the 4/19/2021 Committee of
the Whole will return to a future meeting:
Initial Discussion Regarding the Establishment/Use of the following:

City of Franklin Common Council Reference Manual.
Common Council Code of Conduct.
Common Council Rules of Order.
Handbook for Wisconsin Municipal Officials.
Plan to Update to Existing Policies/Need for Additional
Policies.
Common Council Training/Professional Development
Opportunities.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to approve the following:

Grant Class B Combination license to R&C Pub and Grub, LLC,
Agent Chrystal Rausch, 11430 W. Swiss Street;

Grant Extraordinary Entertainment and Special Event License to:
Root River Center, David Church, 7220 W. Rawson Ave., June 4,
2021, 5:00 pm to 11:00 pm and June 5, 2021, 3:00 pm to 11:00 pm,
providing music ends at 10:30 pm;

Grant 2020-2021 and 2021-2022 Operator license to: Ryan T.
Brown, 4319 W. Tumble Creek Dr., Franklin; Tyler J. Cherek, 7309
S. North Cape Rd.; Carlos Marchan, 3460 E. American Ave., Oak
Creek; Michael J. Swiderski, 4549 S. 47th St., Greenfield; Katie L.
Schmidt, 2507 W. Hilltop Ln., Oak Creek; Sarah A. Tode,
S78W16125 Woods Rd., Muskego; Anna M. Turdo, 6129 Middleton
Ct. S. Greendale; Erika A. Wotnoske, 4045 W. College Ave.;

Hold the 2020-2021 and 2021-2022 Operator applications of Matthew
D. Wisniewski, 3660 S. 14th St., Milwaukee for an appeareance;

Grant 2020-2021 Operator license to Zackary N. Niesen, 3851 S.
Marcy St., Milwaukee;

Hold the 2020-2021 Operator application of Dragan Vasiljevic, 7033
W. Forest Home Ave., Milwaukee;

Grant 2021-2022 Operator licenses to Pamela J. Brys, 1720 W. Meyer
Ln. Apt. 6104, Oak Creek; Nicole M. Cruz, 2816 Sunrise Rd.,
Caledonia; Kristen N. Fenninger, 9750 S. 31st St.; Louis G. Guzzo,

COMMITTEE OF THE G.18.
WHOLE
RECOMMENDATIONS
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4W Clarendon Dr., Round Lake Beach, IL; Carinn N. Hoffmann,
2745 N. 90th St., Milwaukee; Apolonia P. Kust, 10845 W. St. Martins
Rd.; Christian J. Lee, 8401 S. 116th St.; Jane M. Michel, 3720 W. 7
Mile Rd., Caledonia; Jenna K. Rozek, 8945 S. 116th St., Franklin;
Jessica L. Rozek, 3222 S. 38th St., Milwaukee; Jaiden S. Theim, 6722
Crocus Ct. Apt. 2, Greendale; Alyssa G. Zacher, 1720 W. Meyer Ln.
Apt. 6103, Oak Creek; Danielle E. Zielinski, 9880 S. Glenmoor Ct.,
Oak Creek.

Seconded by Alderman Nelson. On roll call, Alderman Nelson,
Alderman Barber, Alderwoman Hanneman, Alderwoman Wilhelm,
and Alderman Dandrea voted Aye; Alderman Mayer Abstained.
Motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to reconsider the action taken on
4/5/2021 to deny the 2020-2021 and 2021-2022 Operator's licenses
for Fontaine A. Bogan Sr., 3003 S. 93rd St., Milwaukee. Seconded
by Alderwoman Wilhelm. All voted Aye; motion carried.

On the voice vote to deny the 2020-2021 and 2021-2022 Operator's
licenses for Fontaine A. Bogan Sr., 3003 S. 93rd St., Milwaukee, One
Aye and Five Noes; motion carried.

Alderwoman Wilhelm then moved to grant the 2020-2021 and 2021-
2022 Operator's license to Fontaine A. Bogan Sr., 3003 S. 93rd St.,
Milwaukee. Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to grant an Extraordinary
Entertainment and Special Event license to The Rock Sports Complex
for their Summer Concert Series, 7044 S. Ballpark Dr., every
Saturday from 6/5/2021 through 9/25/2021 and Sunday 7/4/2021,
with the provision that music will end at 10:30 pm every Saturday
from 6/5/2021 through 9/25/2021 and that the music will end at 9:00
pm on Sunday 7/4/2021. Seconded by Alderman Nelson. On roll
call, Alderman Dandrea, Alderwoman Wilhelm, Alderwoman
Hanneman, Alderman Barber, and Alderman Nelson voted Aye;
Alderman Mayer voted No. Motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to grant an Extraordinary
Entertainment and Special Event license to The Rock Sports Complex
for, "The Hill has Eyes" event, 7044 S. Ballpark Dr., Fridays 10/1,
10/8, 10/15, 10/22, 10/29 and Saturdays 10/2, 10/9, 10/16, 10/23,
10/30 and Sunday 10/31/2021, provided that the COVID-19
precautions are approved by the Dir. of Health and Human Services,
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VOUCHERS AND
PAYROLL

OPIOID CRISIS
LITIGATION

ADJOURNMENT

I.

G.19.

J.

box office ticket sales and DJ music are to end at 11 :00 pm, and the
last attraction is to be completed by 12: 15 am. Seconded by
Alderman Nelson. On roll call, Alderman Dandrea, Alderwoman
Wilhelm, Alderwoman Hanneman, Alderman Barber, and Alderman
Nelson voted Aye; Alderman Mayer voted No. Motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to direct staff to prepare an
amendment to Municipal Code Chapter 158 relating to off-premise
consumption sales by "Class B" retailers to allow sale of intoxicating
liquor for off-premise consumption by Class B" retailers. Seconded
by Alderman Nelson. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve City vouchers with an ending
date of April 15, 2021 in the amount of $949,466.50; Payroll dated
April 9, 2021 in the amount of $396,681.41 and payments of the
various payroll deductions in the amount of $220,617.42 plus City
matching payments; Estimated payroll dated April 23, 2021 in the
amount of $427,000.00 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of $449,000, plus City matching payments;
Property Tax disbursements with an ending date of April 14, 2021 in
the amount of $4,855.89 and approval to release property tax
settlements in the amount of $10,915,727.11. Seconded by
Alderwoman Hanneman. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to enter closed session at 7: 17 p.m. pursuant
to Wis. Stat. § 19.85 (l)(g), to confer with legal counsel for the
Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to be
adopted by the body with respect to governmental entities litigation
involving manufacturers and distributors of opiates with regard to the
opiod crisis, in which it is likely to become involved, and to reenter
open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters
discussed therein as it deem appropriate. Seconded by Alderwoman
Hanneman. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

The Common Council reentered open session at 7:43 p.m.

Alderman Dandrea moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:43 p.m.
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.
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€it of franklin
to¢lamation
->A PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF THE 2021
AMERICAN HONEY QUEEN JENNIFER HINKEL

WHEREAS, the American Beekeeping Federation selected Jennifer Hinkel of the City of Franklin,
as the 2021 American Honey Queen; and

WHEREAS, Jennifer previously served as the 2020 Wisconsin Honey Queen and was selected as
the 2021 American Honey Queen based upon her skills in marketing, promoting, public speaking and
writing; and

WHEREAS, the beekeeping industry touches the lives of every individual in the nation, with
honeybees pollinating nearly one-third of the human diet, including a large majority of fruits, nuts and
legumes, providing nearly $19 billion in direct value to United States agriculture; and

WHEREAS, United States honeybees produce over 300 varieties of honey, including Wisconsin
honeys such as clover, basswood, cranberry and buckwheat; and

WHEREAS, Jennifer has represented Wisconsin beekeepers, her family, friends, and the City of
Franklin with distinction and honor, as evidenced by this award; and

WHEREAS, Jennifer will travel and speak throughout the United States, promoting the American
beekeeping industry by giving school, legislative, and community presentations, television, radio, and
newspaper interviews, virtual platform presentations, and working at festivals, farmers' markets, and fairs,
including the Wisconsin State Fair; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin is proud of Jennifer's accomplishments and achievements and her
academic success in marketing at the University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee, her entrepreneurial work with
her family's pumpkin and Christmas tree farm, and her volunteer work in the agriculture community and
wishes her continued success in her future endeavors.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED, that I, Stephen R. Olson, Mayor, and I, Mark A.
Dandrea, Common Council President, of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, on behalf of all of the Citizens of
Franklin, the elected officials and the staff of City government, hereby recognize and state our appreciation
and extend our congratulations and appreciation to Jennifer Hinkel on her accomplishments and
representation of the City of Franklin and the State of Wisconsin.

Presented to the City of Franklin Common Council this 4th Day of May, 2021.

Mark A. Dandrea,
Common Council President

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor
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State f 3lliscansir

2021 Senate Bill 11
Date of enactment: April 27, 2021

Date of publication*: April 28, 2021

2021 WISCONSIN ACT 29
AN ACT to renumber and amend 102 17 (4) and 102 58, to amend 102 04 (2m), 102 13 (2) (a), 102 29 (6m) (a)

3,102 315 (1)(c), 102 315 (2), 102 42 (1), 102 49 (5) (b), 102 49 (5) (c) and 102 49 (5) (e), and to create 102 04
2g), 102 17 (9), 102 29 (6m) (a) lm, 102.315 (2e), 102 315 (2m), 102 315 (2s), 102 42 (lp), 102 44 (7) and 102 49
(5) (cm) of the statutes, relating to: vanous changes to the worker's compensat10n law

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in
senate and assembly, do enact asfollows:
SECTION 1. 102 04 (2g) of the statutes 1s created to

read
102 04 (2g) Liab1hty under s 102 03 with respect to

a leased employee, as defined ms 102 315 (1) (g), shall
be determmed as provided ms 102 315 (2) or (2m) (c),
whichever 1s apphcable

SECTION 2. 102 04 (2m) of the statutes 1s amended to
read

102 04 (2m) A Except as otherwise provided m an
employee leasmg agreement that meets the requirements
of s. 102.315 (2m), a temporary help agency 1s the
employer of an employee whom the temporary help
agency has placed with or leased to another employer that
compensates the temporary help agency for the employ­
ee's services -A- Except as provided ms. 102.315 (2m)
(C),atemporary help agency 1s hable under s 102 03 for
all compensat10n and other payments payable under this
chapter to or with respect to that employee, mcludmg any
payments required under s 102 16 (3), 102 18 (1) (b) 3
or (bp), 102 22 (1), 102 35 (3), 102 57, or 102 60 Except
as permitted under s. 102 29, a temporary help agency
may not seek or receive reimbursement from another

employer for any payments made as a result of that hab1l-
1ty

SECTION 3. 102 13 (2) (a) of the statutes 1s amended
to read

102 13 (2) (a) An employee who reports an mJury
alleged to be work-related or files an apphcat10n for
hearing waIves any phys1c1an-patent, psychologst­
patient, or chiropractor-patient prvlege with respect to
any cond1t10n or complamt reasonably related to the con­
drt1on for which the employee claims compensation
Notw1thstandmg ss 51 30 and 146 82 and any other law,
any phys1c1an, chiropractor, psychologist, dentist, pod1a­
tnst, physician assistant, advanced practice nurse pre­
scnber, hospital, or health care provider shall, w1thm a
reasonable time after wntten request by the employee,
employer, worker's compensat10n msurer, department,
or drvs1on, or 1ts representatrve, prov1de that person w1th
any mformat10n or wntten matenal reasonably related to
any mnyury for which the employee claims compensation
If the request 1s by a representative of a worker's compen­
sat1on insurer for a bllmng statement,the physic1an, ch1­
ropractor, psychologist, dentist, pod1atr1st, phys1c1an
assistant, advanced practice nurse prescnber. hospital. or
health care provider shall, wthmn 30 days after recervmng

* Section 991 11, WISCONSIN STATUTES Effecllve date ofacts "Every act and every portion ofan act enacted by the legislature over the governor's
partial veto which does not expressly prescnbe the time when 1t takes effect shall take effect on the day after its date of pubhcat1on "
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the request. provide that person with a complete copy of
an 1temuzed bulling statement or a bllmng statement 1n a
standard billmg format recogmzed by the federal govern­
ment.

SECTION 4. 102 17 (4) of the statutes 1s renumbered
102 17 (4) (a) and amended to read

102 17 (4) (a) Except as provded in thus subsecton
ands 102.555 (12) (b), mn the case of occupatonal d1s­
ease, the nght of an employee, the employee's legal rep­
resentat1 ve, ei: a dependent, the employee's employer or
the employer's msurance company, or other named party
to proceed under this sect10n shall not extend beyond 12
years after the date of the Injury or death or after the date
that compensat10n, other than for treatment or bunal
expenses, was last paid, or would have been last payable
1f no advancement were made, whichever date is latest,
and mn the case of traumatic Injury, that nght shall not
extend beyond 6 years after that date
(b) In the case of occupat10nal disease, a traumatic

mnjury resulting in the loss or total impairment of a hand
or any part of the rest of the arm proximal to the hand or
of a foot or any part of the rest of the leg proximal to the
foot, any loss of vs1on, or any permanent bramn injury, or
a traumatic mnjury causing the need for an artufic1al spmnal
disc or a total or partial knee or hip replacement, there
shall be no statute of hm1tat1ons, except that benefits or
treatment expense for an occupational disease becoming
due 12 years after the date of Injury or death or last pay­
ment of compensat10n, other than for treatment or bunal
expenses, shall be paid from the work mnyury supplemen­
tal benefit fund under s. 102 65 and mn the manner pro­
vded mn s 102 66 and benefits or treatment expense for
such a traumatic Injury becommg due 6 years after that
date shall be paid from that fund and mn that manner 1f the
date of mJury or death or last payment of compensat1on,
other than for treatment or bunal expenses, is before
Apnl 1, 2006

(c) Payment of wages by the employer durmg d1s­
ab1hty or absence from work to obtain treatment shall be
considered payment of compensation for the purpose of
thus section 1f the employer knew of the employee's con­
dition and its alleged relation to the employment

SECTION 5. 102.17 (9) of the statutes 1s created to
read.

102.17 (9) (a) In thus subsection:
1. "Fire fighter" means any person employed on a

full--time bass by the state or any political subdrvis1on as
a member or officer of a fire department, mcludmg the 1st
class cities and state fire marshal and deputies.

2. "Post-traumatic stress disorder" means that condi­
tion, as descnbed mn the 5th edition of the Diagnostic and
Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders by the American
Psychiatric Association.

(b) Subject to par. (c), 1n the case of a mental mJury
that 1s not accompanied by a physical mnyury and that
results m a diagnosis of post-traumatic stress disorder m

a law enforcement officer, as defined ins. 23.33 (1) (1g),
or a fire fighter, the claim for compensation for the mental
Injury, m order to be compensable under this chapter, 1s
subject to all of the following:

1. The mental Injury must satisfy all of the following
conditions:

a. The diagnosis of post-traumatic stress d1sorder 1s
made by a licensed psych1atrst or psychologist.

b. The conditions ofliab1hty under s 102.03 (1) are
proven by the preponderance of the evidence.

2. The mental injury may not be a result of any of the
following act10ns taken m good faith by the employer.

a. A disciplinary act1on.
b. A work evaluation.
c. A job transfer.
d. Alayoff.
e. A demot1on.
f. A term1nat1on.
3. The diagnosis does not need to be based on unusual

stress of greater dimensions than the day-to-day emo­
tonal strain and tension experienced by similarly situ­
ated employees.

(c) No mndrv1dual may receive compensation for a
claim of mental Injury under this subsection more than 3
times 1n hs or her lifetime. The limitation under th1s
paragraph apphes irrespective of whether the mdlVldual
becomes employed by a different employer or 1n a differ­
ent posit1on with the same employer.

SECTION 6. 102.29 (6m) (a) lm of the statutes 1s cre­
ated to read

102 29 (6m) (a) lm. The employee leasmg company
that employs the leased employee

SECTION 7. 102 29 (6m) (a) 3 of the statutes 1s
amended to read

102 29 (6m) (a) 3 Any employee of the client eF..JillY
employee of that other an employee leasmg company
descnbed m subd. 2., or the employee leasmg company
that employs the leased employee, unless the leased
employee who has the nght to make a claim for compen­
sation would have a nght under s 102 03 (2) to bnng an
action agamst the employee of the chent. the employee
leasmg company that employs the leased employee, or
the leased employee of the etheremployee leasmg com­
pany described mn subd. 2., 1f the employees and leased
employees were coemployees.

SECTION 8. 102 315 (1)(c) of the statutes 1s amended
to read

102 315 (1) (c) "DlVlded workforce" means a work­
force m which some of the employees of a chent are
leased employees and some of the employees of the chent
are not leased employees, but does not mclude a work­
force with respect to a chent that has elected to provide
msurance coverage for leased employees under sub.
(2m)

SECTION 9. 102 315 (2) of the statutes 1s amended to
read
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102 315 (2) EMPLOYEE LEASING COMPANY LIABLE. An

Except as otherwise provided m an employee leasmg
agreement that meets the requirements of sub. (2m), an
employee leasmg company is liable under s 102 03 for
all compensation payable under this chapter to a leased
employee, mcludmg any payments required under s
102 16 (3), 102 18 (1)(b)3 or (bp), 102.22 (1), 102 35
(3 ), 102 57, or 102 60 If a client that makes an elect1on
under sub. (2m) (a) terrnmates the election. fails to pro­
vde the required coverage, or allows coverage to lapse,
the employee leasmg company is hable under s. 102.03
as set forth mn thus subsection. Except as permitted
allowed under s 102 29, an employee leasmg company
may not seek or receive reimbursement from another
employer for any payments made as a result of that habil-
1ty An employee leasmg company is not hable under s
102 03 for any compensat10n payable under this chapter
to an employee of a client who is not a leased employee

SECTION 10. 102 315 (2e) of the statutes is created to
read

102 315 (2e) TERMINATION OF EMPLOYEE LEASING
AGREEMENT If an employee leasmg company termmates
an employee leasmg agreement with a client that has
made an election under sub. (2m) (a), the company shall
provide notice of the termination of an employee leasing
agreement to the department and the chent, on a form pre­
scnbed by the department, at least 30 days before the ter­
mmat1on of the employee leasmg agreement The notice
provided under this subsection must contam all of the fol­
lowmg mformat10n

(a) The name, mailmg address, and federal employer
ident1ficat10n number of the employee leasmg company

(b) The name, mailmg address, and federal employer
1dent1ficat1on number of the clent

(c) The effective date of the termmation of the
employee leasmg agreement

(d) The signatures of the authonzed representatives
of the client and the employee leasmg company

SECTION 11. 102 315 (2m) of the statutes is created
to read·

102 315 (2m) CLIENT ELECTION TO PROVIDE INSUR­
ANCE COVERAGE (a) A client may elect to provide msur­
ance coverage under this chapter for leased employees
Such an elect10n must be provided m an employee leas­
mg agreement, and the leased employees must be msured
mn the voluntary market and not under a mandatory nsk­
shanng plan under s 619 01

(b) The client shall provide notice of an elect1on or
termmation of an election under par (a) to the department
and the employee leasmg company on a form prescnbed
by the department at least 30 days before the effective
date of the election or termination of the election The
not1ce provided under thus subsection must contain all of
the followmg mformat1on

1 The name, mailmg address, and federal employer
1dent1ficat1on number of the client

2 The name, mailmg address, and federal employer
1dent1ficat10n number of the employee leasmg company

3. The effective date of the employee leasmg agree­
ment

4 The signatures of the authonzed representatlves of
the chent and the employee leasmg company

(c) A client that elects to provide msurance coverage
under par (a) 1s l1able under s 102 03 for all compensa­
t1on payable to a leased employee, mcludmg any pay­
ments required under s 102 16 (3), 102 18 (1) (b) 3 or
(bp), 102 22 (1), 102 35 (3), 102 57, or 102.60

(d) If a chent makes an election under par (a), the
employee leasmg company shall mclude the client's fed­
eral employer 1dent1ficat1on number on any reports to the
department for the purposes of admimstenng the work­
er's compensat10n program or the unemployment msur­
ance program under ch 108

(e) The expenence rating under the standards and cn­
tena under ss 626 11 and 626 12 remam with a chent that
makes an elect10n under par (a)

SECTION 12. 102 315 (2s) of the statutes 1s created to
read

102 315 (2s) CLAIM REPORTING Any claim filed
under this chapter for a leased employee shall mclude the
client's federal employer 1dent1ficat1on number

SECTION 13. 102 42 (1) of the statutes is amended to
read

102 42 (1) TREATMENT OF EMPLOYEE. The Subject to
the limitations under sub. lp) the employer shall supply
such med1cal, surgical, chiropractic, psychological,
pod1atr1c, dental, and hosp1tal treatment, medicines,
med1cal and surgical supples, crutches, artfic1al mem­
bers, appliances, and trammg m the use of artificial mem­
bers and appliances, or, at the opt10n of the employee,
Christan Science treatment mn leu of med1cal treatment,
med1cmes, and medical supplies, as may be reasonably
required to cure and reheve from the effects of the mnyury,
and to attamn efficient use of artfical members and appl1­
ances, and m case of the employer's neglect or refusal
seasonably to do so, or m emergency until it is practicable
for the employee to give notice of injury, the employer
shall be liable for the reasonable expense mcurred by or
on behalf of the employee m providmg such treatment,
medicmes, supphes, and trammg When the employer
has knowledge of the mJury and the necessity for treat­
ment, the employer's failure to tender the necessary treat­
ment, medicmes, supphes, and trammg constitutes such
neglect or refusal The employer shall also be liable for
reasonable expense mcurred by the employee for neces­
sary treatment to cure and relieve the employee from the
effects of occupational disease pnor to the time that the
employee knew or should have known the nature of his
or her disability and 1ts relation to employment, and as to
such treatment subs (2) and (3) shall not apply The obh­
gat1on to furnish such treatment and appliances shall con­
tmue as required to prevent further detenorat1on m the
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condrt1on of the employee or to mamntamn the ex1sting sta­
tus of such cond1t1on whether or not healng 1s completed

SECTION 14. 102 42 (lp) of the statutes 1s created to
read

102 42 (lp) LIABILITY FOR TREATMENT OF CERTAIN
MENTAL INJURIES The employer of an employee whose
injury 1s a mental injury that 1s compensable under s
102 17 (9) 1s hable for the employee's treatment of the
mental injury for no more than 32 weeks after the mnyury
1s first reported

SECTION 15. 102 44 (7) of the statutes 1s created to
read

102 44 (7) In the case of an employee whose mJury
1s a mental 1nyury that 1s compensable under s 102 17 (9),
the penod of d1sab1hty may not exceed 32 weeks after the
injury 1s first reported

SECTION 16. 102 49 (5) (b) of the statutes 1s amended
to read

102 49 (5) (b) In add1t10n to the payment reqmred
under par (a), m each case of mJury resultmg m death
leavmg no person dependent for support, the employer or
msurer shall. except as provded 1n s. 102.58 (2) pay mto
the state treasury the amount of the death benefit other­
wise payable, mmus any payment made under s 102 48
( 1 ),. The payment under this paragraph shall, except as
provided mn par. (cm) be made mn 5 equal annual mstall­
ments, with the first mstallment due as of the date of
death

SECTION 17. 102 49 (5) (c) of the statutes 1s amended
to read

102 49 (5) (c) In addutuon to the payment reqmred
under par (a), mn each case of mJury resultmg m death,
leavmg one or more persons partially dependent for sup­
port, the employer or msurer shall, except as provided m
s. 102.58 (2), pay mto the state treasury an amount which,
when added to the sums paid or to be paid on account of
partial dependency and under s 102 48 (1), shall equal
the death benefit payable to a person wholly dependent

SECTION 18. 102 49 (5) (cm) of the statutes 1s created
to read

102 49 (5) (cm) The employer or msurer may make
advance payments of amounts owed under par (b) or (c),
up to and mcludmg a lump sum payment of the entire
amount owed If an employer or msurer makes an
advance payment, the department shall give the
employer or the insurer an mnterest credt against 1ts lab1l­

1ty for payments made mn excess of that required under
par (b) or (c) The credit shall be computed at 5 percent

SECTION 19. 102 49 (5) (e) of the statutes 1s amended
to read

102 49 (5) (e) The adjustments 1n lab1l1ty provided
1n ss 102 57, 102 58 ill, and 102 60 do not apply to pay­
ments made under this sectmn

SECTION 20. 102 58 of the statutes 1s renumbered
102 58 (1) and amended to read

102 58 (1) If mjury 1s caused by the failure of the
employee to use safety devices that are provided mn
accordance with any statute, rule, or order of the depart­
ment of safety and professional services and that are ade­
quately mamtamed, and the use of which 1s reasonably
enforced by the employer, or 1f mnyury results from the
employee's failure to obey any reasonable rule adopted
and reasonably enforced by the employer for the safety
of the employee and of which the employee has notice,
the compensatmn and death benefit provided in this
chapter shall be reduced by 15 percent, but the total
reduction may not exceed $15,000

ill If an employee violates the employer's pohcy
concemmg employee drug or alcohol use and 1s inJured,
and 1fthat vmlatmn 1s causal to the employee's mJury, no
compensatmn or death benefits shall be payable to the
1nyured employee or a dependent of the mnyured employee
and no payment under s. 102.49 (5) (b) or (c) shall be
payable Nothing mn thus section subsection shall reduce
or ehmmate an employer's hab1hty for mc1dental com­
pensatmn under s 102 42 (1) to (8) or drug treatment
under s 102 425

SECTION 21. Nonstatutory provisions.
(1) WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE RATE

APPROVAL, NOTICE. The commuss1oner of insurance shall
submit to the legislative reference bureau for publication
In the Wisconsmn Administrative Register a notice of the
effective date of new rates for worker's compensation
Insurance first approved by the comm1ss1oner after the
effective date of this subsectmn

SECTION 22. Initial applicability.
(1) The treatment of ss. 102 17 (9), 102 42 (1) and

(lp), and 102 44 (7) first applies to mJunes reported on
the effective date of rate changes for worker's compensa­
tmn msurance approved by the comm1ss10ner of msur­
ance under s 626 13 after the effective date of this sub­
sect1on
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COUNCIL ACTION

ARESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY
APPROVING A LAND COMBINATION FOR
TAXKEYNOS. 838-9978-000, 839-9990-000
AND 839-9991-004 (8225-8255, 8429 AND 8459

WEST FOREST HILL AVENUE)
(FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS,

APPLICANT).

MEETING
DATE

05/04/21

ITEM NUMBER

On May 22, 2021, the Plan Commission carried a motwn to recommend approval of
a Resolution condtionally approvng a Land Combinatonfor tax key nos 838-9978­
000, 839-9990-000 and 839-9991-004 (8225-8255, 8429 and 8459 West Forest Hll
Avenue) The vote was six 'ayes', no 'noes', no absents (6-0-0).

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution No. 2021-__, a resolution conditionally approving a
land combination for tax key nos. 838-9978-000, 839-9990-000 and 839-9991-004
(8225-8255, 8429 and 8459 West Forest Hill Avenue) (Franklin Public Schools,
applicant).

Department of City Development: RMM



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 4-13-21}

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A
LAND COMBINATION FOR TAX KEY NOS. 838-9978-000,

839-9990-000 AND 839-9991-004
(8225-8255, 8429 AND 8459 WEST FOREST HILL AVENUE)

(FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS, APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, having received an application for
approval of a proposed land combination for Franklin Public Schools to combine three
properties located at West Forest Hill Avenue: 8225-8255, Forest Park Middle School
(39.39 acres), 8429, formerly "Luxembourg Gardens" (9.68 acres) and 8459 (3.85 acres), to
enlarge the site for Forest Park Middle School (resulting site will be approximately 54 acres);
bearing Tax Key Nos. 838-9978-000, 839-9990-000 and 839-9991-004, more particularly
described as follows:

Being a part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 and all of the Northwest
1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 16, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City
of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, described as follows.

Commencing at the West 1/4 corner of Section 16, Township 5 North, Range
21 East;
Thence N 8827'55"E along the North line of the Southwest 1/4 of said
Section 16, 2324.22 feet to the point of beginning (POB) of the parcel to be
described;
Thence continuing N 88°27'55"E along said North line, 330.00 feet to the
Center 1/4 corner of said Section 16,
Thence N 88°4 l '25"E along the North line of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section
16, 1328.67 feet to the Northeast comer of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast
1/4 of said Section 16;
Thence S 00932'07"E along the East line of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast
1/4 of said Section 16, 1321.89 feet to the Southeast corner thereof;
Thence S 88°33'02"W along the South line of the Northwest 1/4 of the
Southeast 1/4 of said Section 16, 1328.90 feet to the Southwest corner thereof;
Thence S 88°29'03"W along the South line of the Northeast 1/4 of the
Southwest l /4 of said Section 16, 330.00 feet to the Southeast corner of Parcel
2 of Certified Survey Map No. 5979;
Thence N 00931'39"W along the East line of sad Parcel 2, 689.00 feet to the
Southeast corner of Parcel 1 of sand Certified Survey Map No 5979;
Thence S 88°29'03"W along the South line of said Parcel 1, 330.00 feet to the
Southwest corner thereof;
Thence N 00°31'38"W along the West lme of said Parcel 1,465.89 feet;
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Thence N 88°27'55"E along the West line of said Parcel 1,225 00 feet;
Thence N 00°3 l '39"W along the West line of said Parcel 1, 125.02 feet to the
Northwest comer of said Parcel 1, said point also being the South right-of-way
line of West Forest Hill Avenue;
Thence N 88°27'55"E along the North hne of said Parcel 1 and said South
right-of-way line, 105.00 feet to the Northeast comer of said Parcel 1;
Thence N 00°3 l '39"W, 45.01 feet to a point on the North line of the Southwest
1/4 of said Section 16;
Thence N 88°27'55"E along said North line, 330.00 feet to the point of
beginnmg.

Containing: 2,362,553 Square Feet -- 54.237 Acres.

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having reviewed such application and
recommended approval thereof and the Common Council having reviewed such application
and Plan Commission recommendation and the Common Council having determined that
such proposed land combination is appropriate for approval pursuant to law upon certain
conditions, all pursuant to §15-9.0312 of the Unified Development Ordinance, Land
Combination Permits.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the proposed land combination for Forest Park Middle
School, as submitted by Franklin Public Schools, as described above, be and the same is
hereby approved, subject to the following conditions

1. Franklin Public Schools, successors and ass1gns shall pay to the City of Franklin the
amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the
City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the Forest Park
Middle School land combination project, within 30 days of invoice for same Any
violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance,
and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general
penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

2. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Franklin Public Schools and the
Forest Park Middle School land combination project for the properties located at
8225-8255, 8429 and 8459 West Forest Hill Avenue· (i) bemg in compliance with all
applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii)
obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for
and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this approval
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Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin th1s
day of,2021.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklm this day of,2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT­



CITY OF FRANKLIN
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting ofApril 22, 2021

Land Combination

Item D.1.

RECOMMENDATION: City Development staff recommends approval of this land combination for 8225-
8255 West Forest Hill Avenue (39.39 Ac), 8429 West Forest Hill Avenue (9.68 Ac) and 8459 West Forest
Hill Avenue (3.85 Ac).

Project Name:
Project Address:

Property Owner:
Applicant:

Agent:

Zoning:
Use of Surrounding Properties:

Comprehensive Plan:

Applicant Action Requested:

Planner:

Franklin Public Schools Land Combination
8225-8255, 8429 and 8459 West Forest Hill Avenue

Franklin Public Schools
James Milzer, Franklin Public Schools

Daniel St. Pierre, Point of Beginning, Inc.
1-1 Institutional

Residential to the north, south and west; residential multifamily
to the east

Institutional and Areas ofNatural Resource Features
Approval of application for land combination

Regulo Martinez-Montilva, Principal Planner

Introduction:

The purpose of this application is to combine three (3) properties located at West Forest Hill Avenue:
8225-8255 Forest Park Middle School (39.39 Ac), 8429 formerly "Luxembourg Gardens" (9.68 Ac)
and 8459 (3.85 Ac). The resulting Forest Park Middle School site would be approximately 54 acres.
These three (3) properties are currently zoned Institutional (1-1 ), 8429 and 8459 were rezoned from
Suburban Single-family Residence (R-6) to Institutional (1-1) in 2019 by request of Franklin Public
Schools.

Pursuant to§ 15-9.0312.B, of the Unified Development Ordinance, the application for the Land
Combination Permit shall be considered "relative to City staff recommendations, the lot area and other
dimensional requirements of the zoning district(s) within which the parcels are located, the City of
Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan and the planned land use for each of the parcels, present use of
the parcels and proposed use of the parcels for the purpose to ensure that upon combination, such
properties shall comply with the purposes and provisions of this Ordinance."

Analysis:

The three subject properties are contiguous along West Forest Hill Avenue. If combined, the resulting
property would be approximately 57 acres in area and the resulting combined street frontage 1,763 feet
based on the provided survey maps. The dimensions of the proposed combined parcel meet the 1-1



Development Standards, as indicated in Table 15-3.0312 of the Unified Development Ordinance
(UDO). It is noted that this land combination is not a Certified Survey Map (CSM).

This land combination complies with the current zoning of the three subject properties, which is 1-1
Institutional. Per Ordinance 2019-2402, 8429 and 8459 W. Forest Hill Avenue were rezoned from
Suburban Single-family Residence (R-6) to Institutional (I-1). This proposal is also consistent with the
City of Franklin Comprehensive Plan as Ordinance 2019-2401 changed the future land use designation
of these two properties from Residential to Institutional and Areas of Natural Resource Features.

During the rezonmg and comprehensive master plan amendment review in 2019, City Development
staff suggested this land combination because it will be necessary upon the future development of
these parcels.

With regards to natural resource features, there is a conservation easement for 8225-8255 W Forest
Hill Avenue as part of the site plan and natural resource special exception for the construction of the
new Forest Park Middle School in 2017. Wetlands may be present on 8429 and 8459 W Forest Hill
Avenue, therefore a full natural resource protection plan will be required for future development of
these 2 parcels.

Staff recommendation:

City Development staff recommends approval of thus land combination for 8225-8255 West Forest Hull
Avenue (39 39 Ac), 8429 West Forest HIII Avenue (9 68 Ac) and 8459 West Forest Hill Avenue (3 85 Ac)

2
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5709 Windy Drve, Surte D
Stevens Pomnt, WI 54482

715 344 9999
pobinc.com

Point a/Beginning

Regulo Martinez-Montilva
Principal Planner
Department of City Development
City of Franklin
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

RE Staff Comments on Application for Land Combination 8225-8255, 8429 and 8459 W Forest Hill Ave
(Franklin Public Schools)

Dear Mr Martinez-Montlva,

This cover letter serves the purpose of address comments from the Staff letter dated March 22, 2021

1 Question The submitted application is for a land combination only, not a certified survey map Different submittal
requirements and filing fees apply to certified survey maps per Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) DIson
15-7 0700 Please replace the survey titled "CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP" with a boundary survey as required by
UDO $15-90312 A 3 "LAND COMBINATION PERMITS"

Answer The provided Preliminary CSM contains all reqwred information in a Boundary Survey After the lot
combination 1s completed the CSM submittal process will begin It is understood that ths will require separate
approval and fees

2 Question What is the proposed use for the properties to be combined? This Information Is required per UDO
§15-9 0312 A 2

Answer The Franklin Public School District purchased the properties located at 8429 and 8459 West
Forest Hill Avenue to expand the site that It owns to the east which contains Forest Park Middle School
and the Education and Community Center In the development of the existing middle school site for the
new middle school, the school district lost acres of previously usable property to the delineation of
wetlands, wetland buffers and conservancy areas Consequently, there Is less usable open land on the
site for the larger school population as well as for community recreational use The District added the
Luxembourg Gardens properties to the middle school site to add space to this site for current and future
needs The school district Is currently in the process of assessing which of those needs It will pursue on
the new property This use will most likely be a combination of multi-use grass fields for sports such as
soccer and lacrosse, as well as district and recreation related fac11it1es There Is interest in using the site
for classes run by the Recreation Department for senior cItIzens and others especially for use during the
day

START here.



3 Question Pursuant to UDO §15-9 0312, all properties to be combined need to be in common ownership
According to our records, property bearing TKN 838-9978-000 Is owned by FRANKLIN SCHOOL DIST #5, while
properties bearing TKNs 839-9990-000 and 839-9991-004 are owned by FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS Please
clarify

Answer Both properties are owned by Franklin Pubhc Schools The School District has provided a letter that
explains a name change that occurred in 1992 (See attached letter)

If there are any other questions or comments please contact me at Dans@pobmnc com or call 715 498 0764

Dan St Pierre
ProJect Engineer
Pomnt of Beginning

Page 2 of 2 %



FRANKLIN
PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Regulo Martinez-Montilva
Principal Planner
Department of City Development
City of Franklin
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

RE: Staff Comments on Application for Land Combination
8225-8255, 8429 and 8459 W. Forest Hill Ave. (Franklm Public Schools).

Dear Mr. Martinez-Montilva,

I would like to provide the answer to the Department of City Development comment #3.

3 Pursuant to UDO $15-9 0312, allproperties to be combned need to be mn common
ownership According to our records, property bearing TKN 838-9978-000 1s
owned by FRANKLINSCHOOL DIST 5, whle propertes bearing TKNs 839-
9990-000 and 839-9991-004 are owned by FRANKLINPUBLIC SCHOOLS
Please clarify

Franklin Public Schools and Franklin School District #5 are the same entity. The school
district was known as Franklin School District #5 until approximately 1992, when the
name was changed to Franklin Public Schools. When the properties are combined, the
owner should be listed as Franklin Public Schools.

If you need any more information on this just let me know.

James Milzer
Assistant Superintendent for Business and Operat10ns
Franklin Public Schools

Education and Community Center 8255 West Forest Hill Avenue Franklin, WI 53132 Phone (414) 529-8220 Fax. (414) 529-8230



Planning Department
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132
Email generalplanning@frankhnwi gov

City of Franklin Phone (414) 425-4024
Fax (414) 427-7691

Web Site www franklinwi gov

pate ofApplication. _1/17/19

LAND COMBINATION APPLICATION
Complete, accurate and specific information must be entered. Please Print.

Mailing Address 8255 West Forest Hill Avenue

City/ State Fran'l' Zip 53132
Phone 414-525-7605

Email Address james milzer@franklin k12 wi us

(Full legalName[s]):Property Owner(s)
Name(s) James Milzer
Franklin Public Schools

{Full Legal Name[s]) Applicant is Represented by (contact person)
Name Daniel St Pierre

Company Pomt of Beginning, Inc.

Maihng Address 4941 Kirschling Court

City/ State Stevens Point, WI

Phone 715-344-9999

Email Address dans@pobinc.com

Zip 54481

Future Land Use Identification _Inst"tu1oral

Project Property #1 Information.
Property Address 8255West Forest Hill Avenue

Tax Key No309978000
Existing ZoningPS"UU""@Pa
Existing Use

Proposed Use

Institutional

Institutional

Project Property #2 Information:
Property Address 8429West Forest Hill Avenue 8459West Forest Hill Avenue

Tax Key No 8399990000, 8399991004

Existing Zoning 'Si("0al­
Existing Use_o"Oro"a
Proposed Use _l_n_st_it_u_ti_o_na_l _

Future Land Use Identification _l_n_st_it_u_tio_n_a_l _

+The 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan Future Land Use Map is available at http //www franklinw gov/Home/ResourcesDocuments/Maps htm

Land Combination subm1ttals for review must include and be accompanied by the following:

[S2! This Application form accurately completed wth orgmnal signature(s) Facsimiles and copies will not be accepted

IYf Application Filing Fee, payable to City of Frankhn (3 $400

~ Legal Description for the subject properties {WORD doc or compatible format)

[ seven (7) copies of a boundary survey of the parcels to be combined graphically showing the relationship to street access and to adjoining properties

B Email (or CD ROM} with all plans/submittal materials {where applicable} Plans must besubmitted m bath Adobe PDF andAutoCAD compatibleformat.

•Upon receipt of a complete submittal, staff review will be conducted within ten business days
·Review and consideration of Land Combination approvals shall be in accordance wth Section 15-9 0312(B) of the Unified Development Ordinance
•Requests require Plan Commission review and Common Council approval
•Final document will be recorded by the City Clerk's Office with Milwaukee County Register of Deeds

The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that. (1) all statements and other information submitted as part of this apphcat1on are true and correct to the best
of apphcant's and property owner(s)' knowledge, (2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all information in this application, and (3)
the applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them in this Apphcat1on and its submittal, and any subsequently
issued build mg permits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice if there 1s a breach of such representat1on(s) or any condition(s) of approval By
execution of this application, the property owner(s) authorize the City of Franklin and/or its agents to enter upon the subject property(res) between the hours of 7 00
a m and 7 .00 pm daily for the purpose of inspection while the application 1s under review The property owner(s} grant this authorization even if the property has
been posted against trespassing pursuant to Wis Stat $943 13

(The applicant's signature must befrom a Managing Member ifthe business is an LLC, orfrom the President or Vice President if the business is a corporation. A
signed applicant's authorization letter may be provided in lieu of the applicant's signature below, and a signed property owner's authorization letter may be
provided in lieu oftheproperty owner's signature[s] below. Ifmore than one, alloftheowners oftheproperty mustsign this Application).

Signature Property Owner
53ms mtzer 2nrz2r0US/re5s SuuS

Signature Applicant

onez/7/o

Date

Name & Title (PRINT)

Si nature Applicant's Representative
6%,fr¢

Date

Date

Name & Title (PRINT)

Name & Title (PRINT)

Signature Property Owner



±EE
Point ¢/Beginning

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

5709 Windy Drive, Suite D
Stevens Point, WI 54482

715 344 9999
pobinc.com

Being a part of the Northeast ¼ of the Southwest ¼ and all of the Northwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of Section

16, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, described as follows

Commencing at the West¼ corner of Section 16, Township 5 North, Range 21 East,

Thence N 88°27'55"E along the North line of the Southwest¼ of said Section 16, 2324 22 feet to the point of

beginning (POB) of the parcel to be described,

Thence continuing N 88°27'55"E along said North line, 330 00 feet to the Center¼ corner of said Section 16,

Thence N 88°41 '25"E along the North lme of the Southeast ¼ of said Section 16, 1328 67 feet to the

Northeast corner of the Northwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of said Section 16,

Thence S 00°32'07"E along the East line of the Northwest¼ of the Southeast¼ of said Section 16, 1321 89

feet to the Southeast corner thereof,

Thence S 88°33'02"W along the South hne of the Northwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of said Section 16,

1328 90 feet to the Southwest corner thereof,

Thence S 88°29'03"W along the South line of the Northeast¼ of the Southwest ¼ of said Section 16, 330 00

feet to the Southeast corner of Parcel 2 of Certified Survey Map No 5979,

Thence N 00°31 '39"W along the East lme of said Parcel 2, 689 00 feet to the Southeast corner of Parcel 1 of

sand Certified Survey Map No 5979,

Thence S 88°29'03"W along the South line of said Parcel 1, 330 00 feet to the Southwest corner thereof,

Thence N 00°31 '38"W along the West line of said Parcel 1, 465 89 feet,

Thence N 88°27'55E along the West lme of said Parcel 1, 225 00 feet,

Thence N 00°31'39"W along the West lme of said Parcel 1, 125 02 feet to the Northwest corner of said

Parcel 1, sad pomnt also being the South rght-of-way line of West Forest Hill Avenue,

Thence N 88°27'55"E along the North hne of said Parcel 1 and said South right-of-way line, 105 00 feet to

the Northeast corner of said Parcel 1,

Thence N 00°31'39"W, 45 01 feet to a point on the North lme of the Southwest¼ of said Section 16,

Thence N 88°27'55"E along said North line, 330 00 feet to the point of beginning

Containing 2,362,553 Square Feet - 54 237 Acres

START here.
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CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
,...BEING A PART OF THE NORTHEAST VA OF THE SOUTHWEST V4,

INCLUDING ALL OF PARCEL 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO 5979 AND
ALL OF THE NORTHWEST /4 OF SOUTHEAST 1/4, ALL IN SECTION 16,
TOWNSHIP S NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, CITY or FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE
COUNTY, WISCONSIN

Surveyor'sNotes:
This Cert ified Survey Map 1s not mtended to create any new lots but 1s mtended to
comb me three adJommg parcels owned by Frank lm Pubhc Schools mto 1 parcel
The followmg parcels that are to be combmed m the City ofFrankhn are as follows

I Parcel No 839.9991-004 - S1te Address 8459 W FOREST HILL AVE
2 Parcel No 839-9990-000 - Ste Address 8429 W FOREST HILL AVE
3 Parcel No 838-9978-000 - Site Address 8255 W FOREST HILL AVE

Surveyor's Certificate
I, Jordan G Brost Professional Land Surveyor, hereby cert ify

That I have surveyed, drvded, mapped and dedicated a part ofthe Northeast¼ ofthe Southwest¼ mcludmg all ofParcel I of
Cert ified Survey Map No 5979 and all ofthe Northwest¼ ofthe Southeast¼ ofSection 16, Township 5 North, Range 21 East,
City of Franklin MIiwaukee County W1sconsm descnbed as follows

Commencmg at the West¼ corner ofSection 16 Township 5 North, Range 21 East
Thence N 88°27'55 'E along the North lme ofthe Southwest¼ ofsaid Section 16 2324 22 feet to the pomt ofbegmnmg (POB)
ofthe parcel to be descnbed
Thence contmumg N 88°2755 'E along said North line, 330 00 feet to the Center¼ comer ofsmd Sec!Ion 16
Thence N 88°4125 'E along the North lme ofthe Southeast 'ofsaid Sect1on 16 1328 67 feet to the Northeast corner ofthe
Northwest¼ of the Southeast¼ ofsaid Secl!on 16,
Thence S 00°32'07"E along the East lme ofthe Northwest¼ ofthe Southeast 'ofsaid Section 16, 1321 89 feet to the Southeast
comer thereof,
Thence S 88°33 02 'W along the South lme ofthe Northwest¼ ofthe Southeast 'ofsad Sect1on 16 1328 90 feet to the
Southwest corner thereof
Thence S 88°29'0rW along the South lme ofthe Northeast¼ ofthe Southwest¼ ofsaid Section 16 330 00 feet to the
Southeast corner ofParcel 2 ofCert ified Survey Map No 5979
Thence N 00°31 '39 'W along the East lme ofsaid Parcel 2, 689 00 feet to the Southeast corner ofParcel I ofsaid Cert ified
Survey Map No 5979,
Thence S 88°29 03"W along the South lme ofsaid Parcel 1,330 00 feet to the Southwest corner thereof,
Thence N 00°31'38 'W along the West lme ofsaid Parcel 1, 465 89 feet,
Thence N 882755 'E along the West lme of said Parcel I 225 00 feet,
Thence N 00°31'39 'W along the West lme ofsaid Parcel 1, 125 02 feet to the Northwest corner ofsaid Parcel 1 sad pomt also
being the South rght-of-way line ofWest Forest Hill Avenue
Thence N 88°27'55"E along the North lme ofsaid Parcel 1 and said South nght-of-way lme, 105 00 feet to the Northeast corner
ofsaid Parcel 1,
Thence N 00°3 l 39"W, 45 01 feet to the pomnt ofbegmnnmng
Contamnmg 2,362,553 Square Feet - 54 237 Acres

Subject to (1fany) covenants, condutuons restrctions, nght-of-ways and easements ofrecord

That I have made such survey land d1v1sion and plat by the direction of James Mlzer ofFrank lm Public Schools
That such plat 1s a correct representation ofall extenor boundanes ofthe land surveyed and the subd1v1sion thereofmade
That I have fully complied wth the provstons ofChapter 236 34 ofthe WusconsStatutes and the Subdrvrson Ordinances

of the City ofFranklin m surveying, drvudmg and mappmg the same

Dated this day of , 2020

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY JORDAN BROST
AND DRAWN BY JORDAN BROST

PREPARED BY

~2 awoo ac«ea-o.1..% sET_4 or s sntrs
rs·so 4"t''.t

OWNER. CLIENT
FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Point of Beginning Inc FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS C/O JAMES MILZER
4941 Krcshling Court 8255 W FOREST HILL AVE 8255w FOREST HILL AVE

A_ Stevens Point WI 5448] FRANKLIN WI 53132-9705 FRANKLIN WI 53132-9795,
r Land Surveying r

Civil Engineering
Landscape Architecture
Jordan G Brost PLS #3009

r

Jordan G Brost
PLS No S-3009



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP )
'BEING A PART OF THE NORTHEAST4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4, "I

INCLUDING ALL OF PARCEL 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO 5979 AND
ALL OF THE NORTHWEST V4 OF SOUTHEAST 1V4, ALL IN SECTION 16,
TOWNSHIP S NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE
COUNTY, WISCONSIN

Owner's Certificate ofDedication
As owner I hereby certify that I caused the land descnbed on this Certified Survey Map to be surveyed,
d1v1ded dedicated and mapped as represented on the map I also certify that this Certified Survey Map 1s required by s236 34 to
be submitted to the following for approval or objections

City ofFranklm

Witness the hand and seal ofsaid owner this day of _ 2020

James Mlzer-Representative ofFranklin Public Schools, owner

STATE OF WISCONSIN)
COUNTY OF )

Personally came before me thus day of, 2020 the above named James Mlzer Representative of
Franklm Public Schools, owner to me known to be the person who executed the foregomg mstrument and hereby acknowledge
the same

Notary Pubhc _ Wisconsin

][y comm1ss1on XpreS

City ofFranklin Common CouncilApproval

APPROVED and Ded1cat10n accpeted by the Common Council ofthe C11} ofFranklin by
Resolution No, dated on thus_ day of2020

APPROVED AND SIGNED

Steve Olson Mayor City ofFranklm Date

Date

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRATTED BY JORDAN BROST
AND DRAWN BY JORDAN BROST

CLIENT

FRANKLIN WI 53132-9705

FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS
FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS C/0 JAMES MIL.ZER
8255 W FOREST HILL A VE 8255 W FOREST HILL AVE
FRANKLIN WI 53132-9705

OWNER

2>233

PREPARED BY

Sandra L Wesolowski City Clerk

r

FELD BOOK _36_ PAGE 42-43
9 Kusch fngCour SHEET S OF 5 SHEETS

A rot ·ecsno J4 $%,$£a,on, A 1or 20700 4
iiile

Point of Beginning Inc
494 l Kircshling Court

\. Stevens Point WI 54481

<,Land Surveying
Civil Engmeenng
Landscape Architecture
Jordan G Brost PLS #300?



ROLL CALL

CITIZEN COMMENT

MINUTES
NOVEMBER 19, 2019

A.

B

C.

APPROVED JANUARY 7, 2020
CITY OF FRANKLIN

COMMON COUNCIL MEETING
DECEMBER 3, 2019

MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Common Council was held on
November 19, 2019 and called to order at 6:31 p.m. by Mayor Steve
Olson in the Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W. Loomis
Road, Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were in
attendance: Alderman Mark Dandrea, Alderwoman Kristen Wilhelm,
Alderman Steve F. Taylor, Alderman Mike Barber, and Alderman John
R. Nelson. Alderman Dan Mayer is excused. Also present were City
Engineer Glen Morrow, Dir. of Administration Mark Luberda, City
Attorney Jesse A. Wesolowski and Deputy City Clerk Shirley Roberts.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:32 p.m. and closed at
6:33 p.m.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to approve the mmutes of the regular
Common Counctl meeting of November 19, 2019 as presented at this
meeting. Seconded by Alderman Dandrea. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

HEARINGS
2025 COMP MASTER
PLAN 8429 & 8459 W.
FOREST HILL AVE.

MAYORAL
APPOINTMENTS

D.

E.1.

A pubhc hearmg was called to order at 6:34 p.m regarding a proposed
Ordinance to amend the City of Franklin 2025 Comprehensive Master
Plan to change the Future Land Use Map use designation for property
generally located at 8429 and 8459 West Forest Hill Avenue, from
Residential Use and Areas of Natural Resource Features Use to
Institutional Use and Areas of Natural Resource Features Use (Franklin
Pubhc Schools, Applicant, Ronald S. Pesche and Susan D. Pesche,
property owners). The public hearing was closed at 6:36 p.m.

Alderman Dandrea moved to confirm the following Mayoral
Appointments: James Schubilski, 7342 S. Cambridge Dr., (Aid.
Dist 2), 5-year term to the Board of Water Commissioners, expirmg
09/30/24; and
Tourism Commiss1on:

a) Hotel/Motel Industry Member: Lance A. Schaefer, Everest
Hospitality, LLC, 6901 S 76 St. (Ald. Dist. 2), 1-year term
expiring 12/31/2020.

b) Shaun Marefka, 7644 S. Mission Ct. {Aid. Dist. 2), I-year term
expiring 12/31/2020.

c) Amy Schermetzler, 4227 W. Central Ave. (Ald. Dist. 4), 1-year
term expiring 12/31/2020.

d) Mark Wylie, 7468 Carter Circle S. (Ald Dist. 5), I-year term
expiring 12/31/2020.



Common Council Meeting
December 3, 2019
Page2

ORD. 2019-2401 G.1
AMEND THE 2025
COMP MASTER PLAN
TO CHANGE FUTURE
LAND USE AT 8429 &
8459 W. FOREST HILL
AVE (FRANKLIN
PUBLIC SCHOOLS,
APPLICANT)

ORD. 2019-2402 G.2.
AMEND UDO TO
REZONE 8429 & 8459
W. FOREST HILL AVE.

RES. 2019-7558 G.3.
MODIFY JOHNS
DISPOSAL CONTRACT

RES. 2019-7559 G.4.
JSA ENVIRONMENTAL
AGREEMENT

e) Ann Adamski, 7825 S. Stonebrook Ct. (Aid. Dist. 3), I-year
term expiring 12/31/2020.

Seconded by Alderman Nelson. On roll call, all voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderman Barber moved to confirm the Inspectors of Election and
alternates for 2020 and 2021 as listed on the action request form dated
12/03/2019. Seconded by Alderwoman Wilhelm. On roll call, all
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Dandrea moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2019-240 I, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF FRANKLIN 2025
COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN TO CHANGE THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN 2025 FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR PROPERTIES
LOCATED AT 8429 AND 8459 WEST FOREST HILL AVENUE
FROM RESIDENTIAL USE AND AREAS OF NATURAL
RESOURCE FEATURES USE TO INSTITUTIONAL USE AND
AREAS OF NATURAL RESOURCE FEATURES USE
(APPROXIMATELY 13.974 ACRES) (FRANKLIN PUBLIC
SCHOOLS, APPLICANT, RONALD S. PESCHE AND SUSAN D.
PESCHE, PROPERTY OWNERS). Seconded by Alderman Barber.
All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Dandrea moved to adopt Ordmance No. 2019-2402, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT
ORDINANCE (ZONING MAP) TO REZONE TWO PARCELS OF
LAND FROM R-6 SUBURBAN SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE
DISTRICT TO 1-1 INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT (8429 AND 8459
WEST FOREST HILL AVENUE) (APPROXIMATELY 13.974
ACRES) (FRANKLIN PUBLIC SCHOOLS, APPLICANT, RONALD
S. PESCHE AND SUSAN D. PESCHE, PROPERTY OWNERS)
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Taylor moved to adopt Resolution No. 2019-7558, A
RESOLUTION TO MODIFY JOHNS DISPOSAL SERVICES, INC.
CONTRACT TO PROVIDE WEEKLY RECYCLING AND
AUTOMATED GARBAGE SERVICES subject to technical
corrections by City Attorney and City Engmeer. Seconded by
Alderman Nelson. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Nelson moved to adopt Resolution No 2019-7559, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT TO CONTINUE PROFESSIONAL
ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES TO MONITOR
COMPLIANCE AT THE METRO RECYCLING & DISPOSAL



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND §15-3.0442 OF
THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT

ORDINANCE PLANNEDDEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT NO. 37 (THE ROCK SPORTS
COMPLEX/BALLPARKCOMMONS), TO
INCREASE THE MAXIMUM PERMITTED
SIGN FACE AREAOF APPROXIMATELY

750 SQUARE FEET TO 9,820 SQUARE FEET
(DISTRIBUTED BETWEEN 29 SIGNS) FOR

THE INDOOR SPORTS COMPLEX

(CHRISTOPHERD. BUDAY, RIVERROCK
PERFORMANCE PROPERTIES, LLC,

APPLICANT)

(AT APPROXIMATELY 7095 SOUTH
BALLPARKDRIVE)

MEETING
DATE

05/04/21

ITEM NUMBER

On May 22, 2021, the Plan Commission carried a motion to recommend approval of
an Ordinance to amend $15-3 0442 ofthe Unified Development Ordinance Planned
Development District No 37 (the Rock Sports Complex/Ballpark Commons), to
increase the maximum permitted signface area ofapproximately 750 square feet to
10,633 square feet (distributed between 29 signs) for the indoor sports complex (at
approximately 7095 South Ballpark Drive), with a sign area reduction of50%for the
llummnated North ID wall szgn The vote was six 'ayes', no 'noes', no absents (6-0­
0).

The applicant submitted revised a plan set and scope of work reducing the North ID
wall sign from 1,615.25 sfto 802.50 sf following Plan Commission recommendation.
The overall sign face area dropped from 10,633 sf to 9,820 sf.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2021-__, an ordinance to amend $15-3.0442 of
the Unified Development Ordinance Planned Development District No. 37 (The Rock
Sports Complex/Ballpark Commons), to increase the maximum permitted sign face
area of approximately 750 square feet to 9,820 square feet (distributed between 29
signs) for the indoor sports complex (Christopher D. Buday, River Rock Performance
Properties, LLC, applicant) (at approximately 7095 South Ballpark Drive).

Department of City Development: RMM



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 4-29-21]

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND $15-3.0442 OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT
ORDINANCE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 37 (THE ROCK

SPORTS COMPLEX/BALLPARK COMMONS), TO INCREASE THE
MAXIMUM PERMITTED SIGN FACE AREA OF APPROXIMATELY 750

SQUARE FEET TO 9,820 SQUARE FEET (DISTRIBUTED BETWEEN 29 SIGNS)
FOR THE INDOOR SPORTS COMPLEX

(CHRISTOPHER D. BUDAY, RIVER ROCK
PERFORMANCE PROPERTIES, LLC, APPLICANT)

(AT APPROXIMATELY 7095 SOUTH BALLPARK DRIVE)

WHEREAS, Section 15-3.0442 of the Unified Development Ordinance
provides for and regulates Planned Development District No. 37 (The Rock Sports
Complex/Ballpark Commons), same having been created by Ordinance No. 2012­
2089 and later amended by: Standards, Findings and Decision for a Special Exception
to Certain Natural Resource Provisions Dated March 19, 2013; Ordinance No. 2013­
2101; Ordinance No. 2016-2212; Ordinance No. 2017-2278, Ordinance No. 2018­
2312, Resolution No. 2018-7339, Standards, Findings, and Decision for a Special
Exception to Certain Natural Resource Provisions dated January 9, 2018, Ordinance
No. 2018-23 18, Ordinance No. 2018-2324, Ordinance No. 2018-2323 (re: Buildings
Bl thru B4), Ordinance No. 2018-2333 and Ordinance No. 2019-2368, with such
District primarily being located at 7095 South Ballpark Drive, bearing Tax Key Nos.
744-1003-000, 744-1004-000, 744-1005-000, 744-1006-000, 744-1007-000, 744-1008­
000, 744-1009-000, 744-1010-000, 754-9002-000, 754-9006-000, 754-9007-000, 754­
9008-000, 754-9010-000 and 754-9011-000, and is more particularly described below;
and

WHEREAS, Planned Development District No. 37 (The Rock Sports
Complex/Ballpark Commons) currently includes those lands legally described as
follows:

PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4; THE
NORTHEAST 1/4, NORTHWEST 1/4, SOUTHEAST 1/4, AND SOUTHWEST
1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4; AND THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 AND
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 5
NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, AND THE NORTHEAST 1/4 AND SOUTHEAST
1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4; AND THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST,
IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN;
COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHEAST
1/4 OF SECTION 4; THENCE NORTH 88°42'47" EAST ALONG THE SOUTH



ORDINANCE NO. 2021­
Page 2

LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST 1/4 SECTION, 1452.10 FEET TO LOOMIS
ROAD (STATE TRUNK HIGHWAY 36) REFERENCE LINE AS SHOWN
IN WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PLAT OF RIGHT
OF WAY PROJECT NUMBER F064-1(5)/2240-02-22, DATED JULY 3, 1956
AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 49°45'5 l" WEST
ALONG SAID REFERENCE LINE, 908.15 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVE;
THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY 1280.09 FEET ALONG SAID REFERENCE
LINE AND ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, WHOSE
RADIUS IS 3819.72 FEET AND WHOSE CHORD BEARS SOUTH 40%09'15"
WEST, 1274.10 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE SOUTH
30°33'51" WEST ALONG SAID REFERENCE LINE, 912.57 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 59°26'09" WEST, 146.77 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF
STONE HEDGE SUBDIVISION ADDITION NO. 1; THENCE NORTH
00°11'17" WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID STONE HEDGE
SUBDIVISION ADDITION, 2266.74 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY
LINE OF WEST RAWSON AVENUE; THENCE NORTH 88°31 '09" EAST
ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE 393.64 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 76°43'1 l" EAST 212.76 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF
PARCEL 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 3107; THENCE NORTH
00°21 '06" WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID PARCEL 1 AND
ALONG THE EAST LINE OF LOTS 14, 13, AND 12 OF BLOCK 1 OF
WHITNALL VIEW SUBDIVISION ADDITION NO. 1, 809.21 FEET TO THE
NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 12; THENCE SOUTH 88°41'11"
WEST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOTS 12 AND 11 OF SAID
WHITNALL VIEW SUBDIVISION ADDITION, 484.57 FEET TO THE
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 11; THENCE NORTH 00%21'07"
WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF LOTS 10 AND 9 OF SAID WHITNALL
VIEW SUBDIVISION, 400.06 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF
SAID LOT 9, SAID POINT BEING ON THE NORTH LINE OF THE
SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION; THENCE
NORTH 88°41'11" EAST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE, 544.58 FEET TO THE
EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 4; THENCE SOUTH
00921'07" EAST ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4,
35.86 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°42'30" EAST, 662.58 FEET TO A POINT
ON THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST 1/2 OF THE WEST 1/4 OF SAID 1/4
SECTION; THENCE NORTH 00%22'39" WEST, 1349.21 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 88833'16" EAST 1252.39, FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°19'12" EAST,
367.35 FEET; THENCE NORTH 54°02'33" EAST, 648.24 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 88°33'16" EAST, 204.06 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, BEING THE CENTERLINE OF SOUTH
76TH STREET; THENCE SOUTH 00°19'12" EAST ALONG SAID EAST
LINE, 519.27 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID NORTHEAST
1/4 OF SECTION 4; THENCE SOUTH 00°25'03" EAST ALONG THE EAST



ORDINANCE NO. 2021­
Page 3

LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, 1659.84 FEET TO SAID
REFERENCE LINE; THENCE SOUTH 49°45'51" WEST ALONG SAID
REFERENCE LINE, 1561.74 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.
CONTAINING IN ALL 8,951,502 SQUARE FEET (205.498 ACRES) OF
LAND, MORE OR LESS.

WHEREAS, Christopher D. Buday, River Rock Performance Properties, LLC,
having petitioned for a further amendment to Planned Development District No. 37
(The Rock Sports Complex/Ballpark Commons) to revise the District to allow for an
increase in the total sign face area for the new Indoor Sports Complex located at 7095
South Ballpark Drive (the Municipal Code allows a maximum sign face area of
approximately 750 square feet and the applicant is proposing 9,820 square feet
distributed in 29 signs); and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin Plan Commission on the 8th day of April,
2021, having reviewed the proposed amendment to Planned Development District No.
3 7 and thereafter having recommended to the Common Council that the proposed
amendment be approved subject to the conditions and restrictions included herewith;
and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the petition and having
concurred with the recommendation of the Plan Commission, and having determined
that the proposed amendment to Planned Development District No. 37 (The Rock
Sports Complex/Ballpark Commons) is consistent with the 2025 Comprehensive
Master Plan of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, and that it will promote the health,
safety and welfare of the Community.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1:

SECTION 2:

Section 15-3.0102 (Zoning Map) of the Unified Development
Ordinance of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, as previously
amended, is hereby amended specifically and only with regard
to the Planned Development District No. 37 Indoor Sports
Complex building and use and property located at 7095 South
Ballpark Drive, to allow for an increase in the total sign face
area for the new Indoor Sports Complex located at 7095 South
Ballpark Drive (the Municipal Code allows a maximum sign
face area of approximately 750 square feet and the applicant is
proposing 9,820 square feet distributed in 29 signs).

Section 15-3.0442A.D.l.e. ofthe Unified Development Ordinance



ORDINANCE NO. 2021­
Page 4

of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby amended as follows:
replace "All signs must be in accordance with the Municipal
Code, as amended, and approved by the Architectural Review
Board, or as approved by the Plan Commission on an individual
site plan basis, and subject to issuance of a Sign Permit through
the Inspection Department." with "All signs will be of
construction and style in accordance with the Municipal Code,
as amended, and approved by the Architectural Review Board,
or approved by the Plan Commission subject to the included
criteria for the amended Planned Development District square
footage (combined 9,820.67 square feet signage and graphic
panels). All signs are subject to issuance of a Sign Permit
[through] the Inspection Department. In addition thereto, and
specifically and only with regard to the Planned Development
District No. 37 Indoor Sports Complex building and use and
property located at 7095 South Ballpark Drive, signs may be
approved for up to a maximum of a combined 9,820.67 square
feet of signage and graphic panels, upon the Indoor Sports
Complex building and use and property located at 7095 South
Ballpark Drive."

SECTION 3:

SECTION 4:

SECTION 5:

SECTION 6:

All other applicable terms and provisions of §15-3.0442, shall
apply to the subject Christopher D. Buday, River Rock
Performance Properties, LLC Planned Development District No.
37 (The Rock Sports Complex/Ballpark Commons) district
revisions for the Indoor Sports Complex building and use and
property located at 7095 South Ballpark Drive, and all terms and
provisions of §15-3.0442 as existing immediately prior to the
adoption of this Ordinance, except as amended hereunder, shall
remain in full force and effect.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable.
Should any term or provision of this ordinance be found to be
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms
and provisions shall remain in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after
its passage and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
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Franklin this day of , 2021, by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of> 2020.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-­



Item D.3.
CITY OF FRANKLIN

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of April 22, 2021

Planned Development District (PDD) No. 37 Amendment

RECOMMENDATION: City Development staff recommends demal of the proposed
amendment to Planned Development District (POD) No. 37.

Project Name:

Project Address:

Applicant:

Agent:

Property Owner:

Current Zoning:

2025 Comprehensive Plan:

Use of Surrounding Properties:

Applicant's Action Requested:

Planner:

Ballpark Commons (PDD No 37) Planned Development DIstrct
Amendment for the MOSH Buldmng outdoor s1gnage
7095 S Ballpark Dnve
Midwest Orthopedic Spec1alty Hosp1tal (MOSH Buldmng)
Christopher Dav1d Buday
Michael Dlug1 Sign Effectz, Inc
BPC County Land LLC (A WI LLC)
Planned Development Distnct No 37
Mrxed Use

Parkmg lot to the north, S Ballpark Dnve to the east, Rawson
Avenue to the south and res1dent1al sngle-famly (Whtnall
View subdrv1son) to the west
Recommendat10n to the Common Counc!l for approval of
Planned Development DIstrct amendment to mcrease the
maxnnum outdoor signage area to I 0,663 sf
Regulo Martmez-Montilva, Pnnc1pal Planner

Introduction:

This apphcatron was presented before this Plan Commission at the previous meeting on Aprl 8,
the commission carried a motton to refer back to staff the applicant's request for revsons n
coordnaton wth the applcant and brng the revsed requested ordnance to amend $15-3 0442 of
the unified development ordinance planned development district no 37 (the rock sports
complex/ballpark commons), to ncrease the maxumumpermuttedsgnface area ofapproximately 750
squarefeetfor the indoor sports complex, the vote was 6-0-0

The applicant submitted a revised proposal on Aprl 14 with the followmg changes·
• The total signage area has been decreased from 12,507 sf to l 0,663 sf, with a total of 29

signs mstead of 38
• The four (4) west graphic panels have been removed
• The quantity of south openmg graphics has been reduced from eleven (11) to six (6) with

an mtermittent pattern

As noted mn the previous report, the applicant is requestmg to amend the Planned Development
District (POD) No. 37 (The Rock Sports Complex/Ballpark Commons) Section 15-
3 .0442A D 1 e "Signs" which currently states as follows



"All signs must be in accordance with the Municipal Code, as amended, and approved by
the Architectural Review Board, or as approved by the Plan Commission on an individual
site plan basis, and subject to issuance of a Sign Permit through the Inspection
Department "

Below 1s the amendment proposed by the applicant·
"All signs will be of construction and style in accordance with the municipal code, as
amended, and approved by the Architectural Review Board, or approved by the plan
commiss10n subject to the included criteria for the amended POD square footage
(combmed 10,633.42 sq feet s1gnage and graph1c panels) All sings are subject to
issuance of a Sign Permit [through] the Inspection Department."

The intent of this amendment 1s to increase the total sing face area for the new Indoor Sports
Complex also known as MOSH Buildmg located at 7095 S Ballpark Dive. In fact, the Mumc1pal
Code allows a maximum sing face area of approximately 750 square feet (sf) based on a factor of
1.5 of buildmg frontage per §210-4.C(d), while the applicant 1s now proposing 10,633 sf
distributed in 29 signs

Neither a sign variance nor a master sign program can allow such mcrease, so an amendment to
the PDD 1s required Planned Development District amendments need review and
recommendation of the Plan Commission and Common Council approval.

Project Description and Analysis:

City Development staffnoted four (4) concerns in the previous staff report traffic safety, land
use compatibility, content neutrality and equal protection The land use compatibihty issue has
been addressed by removing the west graphic panels, but the followmg still apply to this PDD
amendment

• Traffic safety. Even though the proposed signage facing Rawson Avenue has been
reduced, it is still over 1,877 sf (not including the south tenant sign), which is more than 2
times the permitted as of rght s1gnage area for the entire building (750 sf) The s1gnage
facing Rawson Avenue include· South ID wall sign (1,615 sf), 6 South opening graphics
(262 sf total), and the south tenant sign (1 5 factor of tenant fasc1a)

As noted in the previous staff report, "traffic safety is broadly accepted as a reasonable
ground for sign regulations by courts" (Kelly, 1989) Excessive amount of signage may
create a traffic safety hazard, especially for Rawson Avenue and South Ballpark Dnve
Per report prepared by the Wisconsin Department of Transportat10n m 2003, "some
stud1es conclude that extra-vehicular distract1on cause crashes" and thus 1s particularly
important for Rawson Avenue which registered an AADT (annual average daily traffic)
of 9,100 m 2017 and it 1s expected to mcrease with the new Ballpark Commons
Development Add1tonally, Sect1on 178-5 of the Mun1c1pal Code lusts signs near streets
as "public nmsance affectmg peace and safety" For these reasons, the Municipal Code
Chapter 210 "Signs" Immtts the sign face area based on buildmg frontage

2



• Content neutrality. An ordinance that classifies signs by their use, for example regular
signs and non-advertising graphic panels, is content-based and therefore it 1s
unconstitutional per North Olmstead Chamber of Commerce v City of North Olmstead
(N.D Oho 2000) (American Planning Assoc1at1on, 2006) The Municipal Code does not
have a definit10n for non-adverting signage or graphic panels, so the graphic panels
described mn thus applcaton should be cons1dered as regular wall s1gns

• Equal protection. The proposed amendment 1s still mcreasmg the amount of permitted
sign area by more than 1,300%, it 1s an excessive increase compared to a sign variance
(20%) or master sign program (100%). The resulting signs would exceed by far the
maximum permitted sign area for other properties m the rest of the city. The applicant's
justification for such increase is "to beautify and identify the buildmg as part of The Rock
Sports development and direct patients, visitors and customers to the appropnate areas
while also improvmg bleak areas of the exposed bare bmldmg elevat10ns"

StaffRecommendation:

City Development staff recommends denial of the proposed amendment to Planned Development
District (PDD) No. 37 for the reasons noted above.

OR

Alternatively, 1f the Plan Comm1sston washes to recommend approval, staff suggests to reduce
the total amount of sign area:

• The area of each graphic panel (north and east) of 871 sf exceeds the total maximum
permitted s1gn for the entire buildmng per Municipal Code Reducing the size or quantity
of these panels would increase compliance of this proposal with the Municipal Code

• L1kew1se, the area of each ID Wall signs (north and south) of 1,615 sf is more than the
double of the maximum permitted sign for the entire building.

The ordinance attached to this packet is drafted based on the applicant's proposal as presented,
the total signage square footage would need to updated at the discretion of the Plan Commission
as necessary.

References
Kelly, Eric Dam1an 1989 Sgn Regulatonfor Small andMdsze Communtes Planning Advisory
Report No 419 Chicago Amencan Planning Assoc1at1on

W1sconsm Depaiiment ofTransportat10n June 10, 2003 "Electromc Billboards and Highway Safety",
Transportation Synthesis Report

Amer1can Plannmg Assoc1at1on 2006 "Legal Issues 1 S1gn Regulation", Plannng and Urban Desgn
Standards
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Purpose and Intent of PDD Minor
Amendment

The MOSH building and tenant build-out space sgnage and graphic panels are intended to
beautify and 1dent1fy the building as part of The Rock Sports development and direct patients,
v1s1tors and customers to the appropriate areas while also improving bleak areas of the exposed
bare building elevations

We propose to fabricate and install new s1gnage for 1dent1f1cat1on of businesses and their
locations relatve to drvmng, parking and entering

Purpose and Intent of thus sgnage and graphics package 1s twofold

1 Signage
a To identify the business and/or businesses open and operating withing the

buildings and where to find them
2 Graphic Panels

a To beautify the exterior of the building and add imagery to several large open
barren walls that otherwise would be a stark wall elevation

Total cost associated with all s1gnage and graphic panels requested 1s $350,000 00



Sign SCOPE
1827 W Glendale Ave. Milwaukee WI 53209

Wednesday, April 28th, 2021

Roe Ventures
MOSH BUILDING SIGN PACKAGE

Project Detail Summary

NORTH MONUMENT
• Single Faced

o Internally llluminat1on with routed copy
o One Cabinet 47" x 120" (39 17 sf)
o Second Cabinet 24" x 120" (20 sf)

• Masonry Base

NORTH SECONDARY ID WALL SIGN
• lnd1v1dually illuminated channel letters

0 43" X 367" (109 59 sf)

EAST ID SIGN
• lnd1v1dually 11lum1nated channel letters

o 49" x 367" (143 26 sf)

SOUTH ID WALL SIGN
• lnd1v1dually illuminated channel letters

1646" x 1413 1" (1,615 25 sf)

NORTH ID WALL SIGN
• lnd1v1dually 11lum1nated channel letters

o 116" x 996 25" (802 5 sf)

ELIMINATED
WEST.GRAPHIC-PANELS

•Quantttyfour{4-)
e-Non.hutframes andface5
03656"x160(406225fEachPanel)

SOUTH OPENINGS - LOGO GRAPHIC PANELS
• Quantity Sx (6)

1 I



Sign
1827 W Glendale Ave. Milwaukee WI 53209

SCOPE

Wednesday, April 28th, 2021

o Non-lrt frames and vinyl graphics
o Opening overall sized - 144" x 180" (175 sf Each Opening)

25% Allowable for Graphics (43 75 sf)
o 6 x 43 75 = 262 5 sf Total

NORTH GRAPHIC PANELS
• Quantity Four (4)

o Non-ht frames and faces
o 309 4" x 405 7" (871 69 sf Each Panel)

EAST GRAPHIC PANELS
• Quantity Five (5)

o Non-ht frames and faces
o 309 4" x 405 7" (871 69 sf Each Panel)

SOUTH ELEVATION TENANT SIGNAGE
o 15 Square foot of sgnage per linear foot of tenant fascia along the south

buuldmng elevation

NORTH ELEVATION TENANT SIGNAGE
o 1 5 Square foot of s1gnage per linear foot of tenant fascia along the south

building elevation

TOTAL SIGNAGE SQUARE FOOTAGE

10,837 5 sq feet combined area of sgnage and graphics (non-copy/
advertsmng) panels



e Signs

All signs will be of construction and style in accordance with the municipal code, as amended,
and approved by the Architectural Review Board, or approved by the plan comm1ss1on subject
to the included cntena for the amended POD square footage (combined 10,663 42 sq feet
s1gnage and graphic panels) All signs are subiect to issuance of a Sign Permit though the
Inspection Department On-site d1rect1onal s1gnage may be allowed in any area needed to
control traffic or parking provided such sgnage has received approval from the Architectural
Review Board or the Plan Comm1ss1on appropriate

Interior S1gnage associated with the stadium, the ballfields, the indoor/outdoor golf facility, and
the indoor baseball facility, 1f not v1s1ble to the general public located outside The Rock Sports
Complex (not withstanding minor or indirect views of such sgnage), shall be permitted and in

add1t1on to, whatever amount of sgnage as may be allowed by the Municipal Code, subJect to
Plan Commission approval of associated site plans
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APPROVAL

REPORTS&
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS
AND RESTRICTIONS FORTHE

APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FORAN
AUTOMOTIVE WINDOW TINTING
SERVICE BUSINESS USE UPON

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 8581 SOUTH
27THSTREET

(MICHAEL A. LAFUENTES, OWNEROF
ILLIE TINTS, LLC, APPLICANT)

MEETING
DATE

05/04/2021

ITEM NUMBER

" ·r

,3,

At the regular meeting of the Plan Commission on April 22, 2021, following a properly
noticed public hearing, the following action was approved: a motion to recommend
approval of a Resolution imposing conditions and restrictions for the approval of a
Special Use for an Automotive Window Tinting Service business use upon property
located at 8581 S. 27 Street.
The Plan Commission recommended inclusion of an additional condition No. 4: The
applicant and property owner agree to not contest any request or requirement of the
Wisconsin Department of Transportation to remove paved parking area located within
the public right-of-way of South 27th Street.

The Plan Commission's recommendations in regard to the Special Use has been
reflected in the attached draft Resolution.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to approve Resolution 2021- , imposing conditions and restrictions
for the approval of a Special Use to operate an Automotive Window Tinting Service
business use upon property located at 8581 S. 27th Street.

Department of City Development MX



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 4-5-21,· Redraft 4-28-21]

RESOLUTION NO. 2021­--

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR AN AUTOMOTIVE
WINDOW TINTING SERVICE BUSINESS USE UPON PROPERTY

LOCATED AT 8581 SOUTH 27TH STREET
(MICHAEL A. LAFUENTES, OWNER OF ILLIE TINTS, LLC, APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, Michael A. LaFuentes, owner of Illie Tints, LLC, having petitioned the
City of Franklin for the approval of a Special Use within a B-4 South 27th Street Mixed-Use
Commercial District under Standard Industrial Classification Title No. 7536 "Automotive
Glass Replacement Shops", to operate an automotive window tinting service business, with
hours of operation from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, and on Saturday
from 9:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m., in an existing building located at 8581 South 27th Street,
bearing Tax Key No. 832-9997-000, more particularly described as follows:

S 58.865 FT OF N 235.73 FT OF E 370 FT OF 52.50 ACS OF SE 13 5 21
EXC E 80 FT FOR STR CONT 0.392 ACS; and

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of §15-9.0103D. of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan
Commission on the 22nd day of April, 2021, and the Plan Commission thereafter having
determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to certain
conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use upon
such conditions, pursuant to $15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in
harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive
Master Plan; that it will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that it
will not interfere with the development of neighboring property; that it will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services; that it will not cause undue traffic
congestion; and that it will not result in damage to property of significant importance to
nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions,
meets the standards set forth under $15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Michael A. LaFuentes, owner of Illie
Tints, LLC, for the approval of a Special Use for the property particularly described in the
preamble to this Resolution, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following
conditions and restrictions:



MICHAEL A. LAFUENTES, OWNER OF ILLIE TINTS, LLC- SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2021---
Page 3

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such
Special Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9.0103 of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to $15-9.0103G. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall
be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution,
unless the Special Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit
for such use

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2021.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



Items C.l
CITY OF FRANKLIN

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of April 22, 2021

Special Use

RECOMMENDATION: Department of City Development staff recommends approval of the
Special Use Application, subject to the conditions in the draft resolution.

Project Name:

Project Address:

Applicant:

Property Owner:

Current Zoning:

2025 Comprehensive Plan

Use of Surrounding Properties:

Applicant Action Requested:

Planner:

Illie Tints Special Use

8581 South 27street

Steven Greenspan, Root River Auto Body

Michael F. Paul

B-4 South 27 Street Mixed Use Commercial District

Mixed Use

Single-family residential to the north, Root River Auto
Body to the south, multi-family development (City ofOak
Creek) to the east and vacant commercially zoned land to
the west

Approval ofthe Special Use Application

Marion Eeks, Assistant Planner

On January 25, 2021, the applicant submitted a Special Use Application for Illie Tints, to operate
an auto glass repair and tinting use upon property located at 8581 South 27" Street. The
proposed business use is allowed in the B-4 South 27" Street Mixed Use Commercial District as
a Special Use under Standard Industrial Classification Title No.7536 "Automotive glass
replacement shops."

The applicant is proposing to occupy space within an existing building and is not proposing any
building or site changes.

Pro i ect Description/Analysis
Special Use:

The applicant has provided responses to the special use standards and regulations, copy ofwhich
has been provided. The application complies with the standards of $15-3.0701: General
Standards for Special Uses. Although this is an auto-service business, the applicant is not
requesting approval for overnight parking, as tinting can be completed in approximately one
hour.

Hours ofoperation will be Tuesday through Saturday from 9:00 AM through 6:00 PM.



Ste Plan:

The subject use is occupying the existing building located at 8581 S. 27 Street, which is
approximately 3,050 square feet. Michael F. Paul, owner and operator of Root River Auto Body,
owns both the properties. Root River Auto Body uses the detached accessory building on this lot
for storage. The applicant is not proposing any exterior building modifications or site changes.

Parking:

The required parking for vehicle repairs shops, per Table 15-5.0203, is 4 parking spaces per
service bay There will be two indoor work areas for the business, necessitating eight (8) parking
spaces. Previous office uses required seven (7) spaces based on floor area. The applicant has
identified nine (9) parking spaces specific to the business, and a total of 16 available on the lot.
The applicant notes that the subject property shares access and parking with Root River Auto,
located on the property to the south, 8595 and 8607 S. 27 Street.

Signage:

Any proposed signage will be subject to separate review and approval and require issuance of a
Sign Permit through the Inspection Department

Staff Recommendation
Department of City Development staff recommends approval of the Special Use Application,
subject to the conditions in the draft resolution

2



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 4-5-21]

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR AN AUTOMOTIVE
WINDOW TINTING SERVICE BUSINESS USE UPON PROPERTY

LOCATED AT 8581 SOUTH 27TH STREET
(MICHAEL A. LAFUENTES, OWNER OF ILLIE TINTS, LLC, APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, Michael A. LaFuentes, owner of Illie Tints, LLC, having petitioned the
City of Franklin for the approval of a Special Use within a B-4 South 27th Street Mixed-Use
Commercial District under Standard Industrial Classification Title No. 7536 "Automotive
Glass Replacement Shops", to operate an automotive window tinting service business, with
hours of operation from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, and on Saturday
from 9:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m., in an existing building located at 8581 South 27th Street,
bearing Tax Key No. 832-9997-000, more particularly described as follows:

S 58.865 FT OF N 235.73 FT OF E 370 FT OF 52.50 ACS OF SE 13 5 21
EXC E 80 FT FOR STR CONT 0.392 ACS; and

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of § 15-9.0103D. of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan
Commission on the 22nd day of April, 2021, and the Plan Commission thereafter having
determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to certain
conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use upon
such conditions, pursuant to § 15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in
harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive
Master Plan; that it will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that it
will not interfere with the development of neighboring property; that it will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services; that it will not cause undue traffic
congestion; and that it will not result in damage to property of significant importance to
nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions,
meets the standards set forth under § 15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Michael A. LaFuentes, owner of Illie
Tints, LLC, for the approval of a Special Use for the property particularly described in the
preamble to this Resolution, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following
conditions and restrictions:



MICHAEL A. LAFUENTES, OWNER OF ILLIE TINTS, LLC - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-
Page 2

1. That this Special Use 1s approved only for the use of the subject property by Michael
A. LaFuentes, owner of Illie Tints, LLC, successors and assigns, as an automotive
window tinting service business use, which shall be developed in substantial
compliance with, and operated and maintained by Michael A. LaFuentes, owner of
Illie Tints, LLC, pursuant to those plans City file-stamped April 12, 2021 and
annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

2. Michael A. LaFuentes, owner of Illie Tints, LLC, successors and assigns, shall pay to
the City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review
fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of
Franklin, for the Michael A LaFuentes, owner of Illie Tints, LLC automotive
window tinting service business, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any violation of
this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject
to § 15-9 .0502 thereof and § 1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and
remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Michael A. LaFuentes, owner of
Illie Tints, LLC and the automotive window tinting service business use for the
property located at 8581 South 27th Street: (1) being m compliance with all applicable
governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordmances, and (i1) obtaming all
other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and
applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this approval.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that m the event Michael A. LaFuentes, owner of
Illie Tints, LLC, successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply
with one or any of the conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution, following a
ten (10) day notice to cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the Common
Council, upon notice and hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted under this
Resolution

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condrtton or
restriction of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than
$2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as
may be specified therein from time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a
separate violation. Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of
that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such
Spec1al Use Permit as is contemplated by $15-9.0103 of the Unified Development
Ordinance.



MICHAEL A. LAFUENTES, OWNER OF ILLIE TINTS, LLC - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-
Page 3

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to §15-9.0103G. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall
be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution,
unless the Special Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit
for such use

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsm.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of, 2021.

Passed and adopted at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of, 2021.

APPROVED

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---
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City of Franklin
Department of City Development

Date:

To:

From:

RE:

March 22, 2021

Steven Greenspan, Root River Auto Body

Department of City Development

Spec1al Use - Staff Comments - 8581 South 27th Street

Please be advised that City Staff has reviewed the Special Use Application for Illie Tints, 8581
South 27 Street. Department comments are as follows:

General:
1. What are the hours of operation?
2. How many employees work out of this site?

Unified Development Ordinance {UDO) Requirements

Special Use:

3. The applicant has provided required responses The application complies with the
standards of $15-3 0701 · General Standards for Special Uses.

Site Plan:

4. Is a dumpster enclosure located onsite? If not, please fmther explam how trash is
removed from the site. If a dumpster is located on the property that is not currently
enclosed, staff recommends that a dumpster enclosure be provided. Ifproviding an
enclosure, please include detatls as part of the Plan Commission submittal. Details must
include the location, size, height and materials for construction.

Parking.

5. How many parking spaces will the business use? Please provide information about the
location and number of spaces, mcluding a drawing

6. Will the building include service bays or other mdoor work areas? If so, how many
vehicles will be accommodated and what is the square footage of these bays? Note that
the required parkmg for vehicle repairs shops, per Table 15-5.0203, is 4 parking spaces
per service bay.

7. Are any vehicles over 8,000 pounds gross vehicle weight being stored onsite overnight?
If so, what types of vehicles, size of vehicles (length and gross vehicle weight), and
where will the vehicles be parked? The location must be noted on the site plan. Please let
Department of City Development staff know immediately if vehicles will be parked
overnight that exceed 8,000 pounds manufactured Gross Vehicle Weight as that request
needs to be specifically stated in the public hearing notice.

2



Lighting:
8. Staff understands that there is no new exterior lighting proposed. Ifnew lighting is

proposed, please provide a lighting plan per Section 15-7.0103W. of the UDO. Lighting
standards can be found in Division 15-5.0400 of the UDO.

Signage:
9. Please note that vehicle parking must not violate Section 210-10 of the City of Franklin

Municipal Code, which states, "Signs placed on or affixed to vehicles and/or trailers,
which are parked on a public nght-of-way, public property, or private property so as to
be visible from a public right-of-way, where the apparent purpose is to advertise a
product or direct people to a business or activity located on the same or nearby property,
are prohibited. This provision shall not prohibit signs placed on or affixed to vehicles
and/or trailers, such as lettering on motor vehicles, where the sign is incidental to the
primary use of the vehicle or trailer."

l 0. Is any new signage proposed? Please note signs require separate review and approval.
Please contact the Inspection Department to discuss sign requirements and the process
further.

Fire Department Comments

Must comply with fire protect1on requirements for use and occupancy type

Legal Department Comments

Please provide the legal name of the business owner, including middle name. Please provide the
full business name which this business is registered with the Wisconsin Department of Financial
Institutions.

3



DIVISION 15-3.0700

SECTION 15-3.0701

SPECIAL USE STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS

GENERAL STANDARDS FOR SPECIAL USES

A. General Standards. No special use permit shall be recommended or granted pursuant to
this Ordinance unless the applicant shall establish the following:

I. Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent. The proposed use and
development will be in harmony with the general and specific purposes for which this Ordinance
was enacted and for which the regulations of the zoning district in question were established
and with the general purpose and intent of the City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan or
element thereof.

Response: The building located at 8581 has been in usefor over 100 years. We areproposing
that this building be usedfor Ilie Tints, a company that applies tint film to vehicle
windows. This establishment will have a positive effect on the area with less than 10
vehicles per day. There is very little waste and no chemicals or other products used
in operating the business.

2. No Undue Adverse Impact. The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue
adverse or detrimental effect upon or endanger adjacent property, the character of the area, or the
public health, safety, morals, comfort, and general welfare and not substantially diminish and impair
property values within the community or neighborhood.

Response: Illie Tints is an established business with a sterling reputation. This is a minority
run and owned business that will help add diversity to the 27 Street Corridor. Illie
Tints will have no impact on the public health, safety, morals comfort and general
welfare of the area.

3. No Interference with Surrounding Development. The proposed use and development will be
constructed, arranged, and operated so as not to dominate the immediate vicinity or to interfere
with the use and development of neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning
district regulations.

Response: The proposed use will have no impact on any of the surrounding areas and there
is no development necessary for the proposed business.

4. Adequate Public Facilities. The proposed use and development will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services such as streets, public utilities including
public water supply system and sanitary sewer, police and fire protection, refuse disposal, public
parks, libraries, schools, and other public facilities and utilities or the applicant will provide
adequately for such facilities.

Response: Illie Tints has no additional requirements for any public facilities or services.
This is an extremely low impact business.
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5. No Traffic Congestion. The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic
congestion nor draw significant amounts of traffic through residential streets. Adequate
measures will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize traffic
congestion in the public streets.

Response: The proposed business requires no additional considerations for traffic. Most
appointments are scheduled several weeks in advance and the current ingress and
egress are more than adequate.

6. No Destruction of Significant Features. The proposed use and development will not result in
the destruction, loss, or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of significant
importance.

Response: Illie Tints does not require any modifications

7. Compliance with Standards. The special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the
applicable regulations of the district in which it is located, except as such regulations may,
in each instance, be modified by the Common Council pursuant to the recommendations of the
Plan Commission. The proposed use and development shall comply with all additional
standards imposed on it by the particular provision of this Division and Ordinance authorizing
such use.

Response: Illie Tints will comply with all existing and future regulations, ordinances and
standards to assure compliance.

B. Special Standards (or Specified Special Uses. When the zoning district regulations authorize
a special use in a particular zoning district and that special use is indicated as having special
standards, as set forth in Section 15-3.0702 and 15-3.0703 of this Division, a Special Use
Permit for such use in such zoning district shall not be recommended or granted unless the
applicant shall establish compliance with all such special standards.

Response: This business requires no special standards or permits

C. Considerations. In determining whether the applicant's evidence establishes that the foregoing
standards have been met, the Plan Commission and the Common Council shall consider the
following:

I. Public Benefit. Whether and to what extent the proposed use and development at the particular
location requested is necessary or desirable to provide a service or a facility that is in the interest
of the public convenience or that will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or
community.

Response: Illie Tints provides a service that is in high demand and there are no competitors
within 10 miles. Appointments are generally booked several weeks in advance
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because ofthe high demand, outstanding reviews and their business reputation.

2. Alternative Locations. Whether and to what extent such public goals can be met by the location
of the proposed use and development at some other site or in some other area that may be more
appropriate than the proposed site.

Response: Illie Tints is best suited in this location because the business relies on visibility
and a location that is common to all ofthe communities served. Most ofthe cliental
will have to waitfor an hour ormore and spend that time shopping at local businesses.
Theproposed building is on a sharedproperty with a body shop andprovides a unique
location and this is a complimentaryfacility.

3. Mitigation of Adverse Impacts. Whether and to what extent all steps possible have been taken
to minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use and development on the immediate vicinity
through building design, site design, landscaping, and screening.

Response: There are no adverse effects to the areafrom the proposed business. There will
be no site changes other than some additional landscaping in the immediate area
adjacent to the building. The forward area along 27 Si. belongs to the DOT and
cannot be modified..

4. Establishment of Precedent of Incompatible Uses in the Surrounding Area. Whether the
use will establish a precedent of, or encourage, more intensive or incompatible uses in the
surrounding area.

Response: Illie Tints is a standalone business that provides an outstanding presence to the
community serving a majority ofnew and very upscale car owners. Window tinting
has been a servicefor a long time although always as a value added business to an
existingfacility. This opportunity is unique and could not be duplicated. It would be
impossibleforanother incompatible or undesirable business to use this as aprecedent.
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8581 Project Summary
lll1e Tints 1s an automotive boutique that services a small number of vehicles per day. They
provide one service which rs window tinting and the company has been operating for 3 years
with an outstanding reputation.

The current building located at 8581 $. 27St., Franklin W1 53132 will require no current or
future mod1f1cat1ons, structural changes or site improvements for the proposed business. The
current ut1lrt1es, ingress and egress Is more than adequate and the business will have a
mmnmmum impact on the vicinity.
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Dateof Appllcatlon : January20th, 2021

SPECIAL USE/SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT APPLICATION
Complete, ocurareandspecific informationmustbe entered. PleggePim&.

Panning Department
9229West LoomisRoad
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132
Email: geerallannlpg@frankdlnv-so

Phone: (414) 425-4024
Fax; (414) 427-7691

Web Site: www.frankllnwi.gov

Zip: 53132

Applicant (Full LegalName[s]}:
Mame: Michael Lafuentes

Company:JUI@'UP-
Malling Address:18.27tht.
C-rty / State: Franklln, WI
Phone: 414-326-7283

Email Address: lam_Ulle@yahoo.com

Applicant ks Representedby:{contactperson)FullLegalName[sJ)
Name; Seven Greenspon

Company: RootRiverAuto Body
MalllngAddress: _859_5_S_._271h__s_t _
City/ State: Franklln, WI z.5819
Phone: 414-761-0180

Email Address. RootRWverAuto~ody@SBCGlobal.net

ProjectProperty Information :
Property Address: 8581S. 271hSt., FrankinWI 53132

Property Owner(s):MHdsdFa
Tax Key Nos; 832-9997-000

Mailing Address: _8595__s_._2_7th_St _
City/State; Franklin, WI z. 9913-
Email Address: RootRfverAutoBody@ SBCGlobal.net

ExlstlngZonlng:_B4 _
ExlstlpgUse: _None _

Proposed Use: IDie Tints-Window Tinting Establishment
Future Land use Identification: _

"The 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan future Land Use Mao Is availableat http://www.frankllnwl.gov/Home/ResourcesDocumeots/Maps.htm

Special Use/Special UseAmendment submitals forrgylegmust Includeand be accompanied by the following:
[W This Appllcatlon form accuratelycompletedwith original slgnature{s). Facsimiles and copieswill not be accepted.
Ill Application filing Fee, payable to City ofFr.inklln: .0 $1000 Special Use Amendment

0 $1500, New Special Use over 4,000 square feet O $750, New Special Use under 4,000 squarefeet
Iii Legal Description for the subject property (WORD.doc or compati ble format).
Ii One copy of a response to theGeneral Standards, Special Standards (ff applicable), and Considerations found In Section 15--3.0701(A), (B), and (C) of

the Unified Development Ordinanceavailable atwww.frankimy4.gov-
0 Seven (7) complete collated setsof Appllcatlo n materials to Include:
0 One (1)original and six (6) copiesof awritten Project Summary, includingdescriptionofanynewbuildingconstructionandsitework,

interior/exterior bu//dingmodljkatlons or additions tobemade toproperty, siteImprovementcosts, estimate ofproject value andany other
information that is available.)

0 Three (3) tolded full size, drawn to scalecopies (at least 24" x 36") of the Site Plan/Site PlanAmendment package. (The submittalshouldinclude
only theseplans/Itemsasset/orth In Section 17-7.0101, 15-7.0301 and15-5.0402 of theUni/ledDevelopmentOrdinance thatare Impactedby the
development. (e.g., SitePlan, BulldlngElevations, LandscapePlan, OutdoorLightingPlan, Natural ResourceProtection Plan, etc.)

D Four (4) folded red11ced size {11"x17") copiesof theSite Plan/SitePlan Amendment package.
0 One colored copy (11517") of the buikllngelevatlons, Ifapprable.
0 Three copies ofthe Natural Resource Protection Plan and report, Ifapplicable (see Section 154.0102 & 15-7.0201 of the UDO).
0 Email (or CO ROM) with all plans/submittal materials. Plansmustbe submitted In both Adobe PDFandAutoCAD compatibleformat (where applicable}.

·am op l~,2l

•

Signatu re - Prope rtyOwner

•Upon receiptof a completesubmittal, staff reviewWill be conductedwithintenbusiness days.
·Special Use/Spacial Use Amendment requests require Plan Commission review, a PubbcHearing and Common council approval

The applicant and property owner{s) hereby certify that: (1) all statements and other lnfonnatlon submitted as partof thisappllcation are true and correct to the best
of applicant's and property owner(s)' knowledge; (2) the applicant and property owners) has/have read and understand all Information In this application, and (3)
the applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals basedon representations made by them In this Application and Its submittal, and any subsequently
iSSued building permits or other type of pennlts, may be revokedwithout notice if there Is a breach of such representatlon{s) or any condltlon(s) of approval. By
execution of this appflcatlon, theproperty owner{s) authorize theCity of Frankffn and/or Its agents to enter upon the subject property(Jes) between the hours of 7:00
a.m and 7:00 p.m. dally for the purpose of Inspection while the application is under review. The property owner(s) grant this authorization even if the property has
been posted against trespassing pursuant to WIS. Stat. 5943.13.
(Theapplicant's signaturemustbe from aManagingMember if the business is onUC. orfrom the Presidentor VigPresidenthf thebusiness Is a corporotion . A
signedapplicant's authorization Kettermoy beprovided In Heu of theapplicant's signature below, anda signedpropertyowner's authorization lettermay be
provided In lieuofthepropertyowner'ssignature{s]below. ifmorethanone,allof the ownersof the propertymustsignthisApplication),

±-./ 2.pc
Name & lltle (PRINl)

4$ks..EMA



because ofthe high demand, outstanding reviews and their business reputation.

2. Alternative Locations. Whether and to what extent such public goals can be met by the location
of the proposed use and development at some other site or in some other area that may be more
appropriate than the proposed site.

Response: Illie Tints is best suited in this location because the business relies on visibility
and a location that is common to all ofthe communities served. Most of the cliental
willhave to waitfor an hour or more andspend that time shopping at local businesses.
Theproposed building is on a sharedproperly with "bodyshop andprovides a unique
location and this is a complimentaryfacility.

3. Mitigation of Adverse Impacts. Whether and to what extent all steps possible have been taken
to minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use and development on the immediate vicinity
through building design, site design, landscaping, and screening.

Response: There are no adverse effects to the areafrom the proposed business. There will
be 110 site changes other than some additional landscaping in the immediate area
adjacent to the building. Theforward area along 27% St. belongs to the DOT and
cannot be modified.•

4. Establishment of Precedent of Incompatible Uses in the Surrounding Area. Whether the
use will establish a precedent of, or encourage, more intensive or incompatible uses in the
surrounding area.

Response: Illie Tints is a standalone business that provides an outstanding presence to the
community serving a majority ofnew and very upscale car owners. Window tinting
has been a servicefor a long time although always as a value added business to an
existingfacility. This opportunity is unique am/ could not be duplicated. It would be
impossiblefor another incompatible or undesirable business to use this as a precedent.
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Response to Franklmn Ctty Staff request for additional information

1. What are the hours of Operation?
I ll1e Tints operates Tuesday through Saturday from 9:00 AM through 600 PM

2 How many employees work out ofth1s site
There are 2 full time employees

3 Special use responses are adequate
4 Is there a dumpster located ons1te?

There Is no dumpster located onsite The trash is mmnmmal and us disposed of at the body shop

5 How many parking spaces will the business use?
There are 9 parking spaces dedicated to the business

6. Will the building include service bays or other indoor work areas
There are 2 indoor work areas

7. Are there any vehicles over 8,000 pounds?
Cars and lght trucks are the only vehicles that are serviced There are no vehicles that are over
8,00 pounds

8 There Is no new lighting planned

9. There are no vehicles that will be on or near the roadway and there are no trailers with s1gnage
placed near the roadway

10 There Is no new sgnage proposed or planned

11 Owner· Michael Anthony LaFuentes
Full Business Name Ille Tints LLC



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

STATUS UPDATE FROM THE QUARRY
MONITORING COMMITTEE (QMC) ON

THE FRANKLIN AGGREGATES
RECLAMATION PLAN

MEETING
DATE

05/04/21

ITEM NUMBER

On March 25, 2021, the Quarry Monitoring Committee (QMC) carried a motion to
recommend that the Reclamation Plan with updates be provded to the Common
Council as readyfor review by the Plan Commisson The vote was four 'ayes', no
'noes', one absent (4-0-1 ).

The QMC reviewed previous versions of the reclamation plan at regular meetings on
March 25, 2021; November 12, 2020; September 24, July 29, and July 27, 2017.

Attached is a copy of the Franklin Aggregates Reclamation Plan as submitted by
Payne & Dolan, Inc. on April 29, 2021. This plan will be presented to the Plan
Commission for review and approval, meeting date to be defined.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

No action is requested on this matter.

Or

A motion to take action on the above item as the Common Council deems appropriate.

Department of City Development: RMM



N3 W23650 Badinger Road I Waukesha, WI 53188
262.524 1700 I 1 , i

April 29, 2021

Mr Regulo Martmez-Mont1lva
Department of City Development
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Subject: Reclamation Plan - Franklin Aggregates

Dear Mr. Mart1ez-Mont1lva·

Enclosed 1s the final reclamation plan as reviewed and approved by the Quarry monitoring
committee for the Franklin Aggregates quarry. We appreciate the amount of time and effort that
the Quarry Mon1tonng Committee has spent in reviewing the plan and feel that the committee's
input has led to the development of a quality reclamation plan.

The purpose of this reclamation plan Is to describe the activities necessary to reclaim the Franklin
Aggregates Quarry site to a cond1t1on whereby future development 1s feasible after completion
of mineral extraction actvrtes. The plan was designed to acheve final site reclamation that 1s mn
compliance with uniform reclamation standards while fulfilling all the applicable requirements as
outlined in PDDs #23 & #24, the City of Franklin Non-Metallic Mining Reclamation Ordinance and
the state wide reclamation law referred to as NR-135

The proposed land use to which this site will be reclammed 1s Green/Open Space. This proposed
land use (outside of the env1s1oned lake) 1s to be considered a temporary use. The final end use
for the reclaimed site 1s not being proposed at this time. The ultimate land development and end
use (beyond grading, vegetation and other requirements detailed in this plan) will be subject to
future land use requirements.

No final end-use development proposals shall be implemented prior to subm1ss1on of detailed
end-use plans pursuant to then applicable City of Franklin ordinance requirements, and the
granting of detailed zoning and land use approvals in accordance with such applicable ordinance
requirements

This approach of reclaiming the site to a temporary Green/Open Space land use, will allow for
the srte to be reclammed to a proposed land use as required by NR-135 while maintaining flexibility
in the land use and development of the site to meet the communities future needs

·Hf aURECIIA



We would appreciate 1t 1f the reclamation plan could be sent to the Plan Comm1ss1on 1n the near
future for their final review and approval

Please do not hesitate to contact me in the office at (262) 524-1258, 1f you have any add1t1onal
questions and/or would hike some additional mnformaton.

Sincerely,

Payne & Dolan, Inc.

Clint Weninger, P G
Land Resources Manager
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Payne & Dolan, Inc.

City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, WI

FINAL REVISION -- September 1, 2020
SUBMITTED·- April .29, 2021
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I. Purpose and Scope

The purpose of this reclamation plan ts to describe the act1v1t1es necessary to reclaim the Franklin Aggregates
Quarry site to a cond1t1on whereby future development 1s feasible after completion of mineral extraction
activities The plan was designed to achieve final srte reclamation that is mn compliance wth uniform reclamation
standards while fulfilling all the applicable requirements as outlined in PDDs #23 & #24, the City of Franklin Non­
Metallic Mining Reclamation Ordinance and the state wide reclamation law referred to as NR-135
Implementation of this reclamation plan shall be completed within three (3) years after the cessation of
extraction operations

Reclamation of the site will result mn environmental protection, a stable non-eroding site, productive end land
uses, the potential to enhance wildlife habitat and increase land values and tax revenues

The proposed land use to which this site will be reclaimed 1s Green/Open Space This proposed land use (outside
of the envisioned lake) ts to be considered a temporary use The final end use for the reclammed srte s not being
proposed at this time The ultimate land development and end use (beyond grading, vegetation and other
requirements detailed m this plan) will be subject to future land use requirements

No final end-use development proposals shall be implemented prior to subm1ss1on of detailed end-use plans
pursuant to then applicable City of Franklin ordinance requirements, and the granting of detailed zoning and
land use approvals in accordance with such applicable ordinance requirements

This approach of reclaiming the site to a temporary Green/Open Space land use, will allow for the site to be
reclammed to a proposed land use as required by NR-135 while mamntamnmng flexibility mn the land use and
development of the site to meet the communities future needs

Payne & Dolan has a history of completing successful reclamation at this site After the crushing, stockpiling and
loadout operations that were located adjacent to the Root River for many years where moved unto the floor of
the quarry in 2003, Payne & Dolan successfully reclaimed the former operations area See attached Fact Sheet
for additional information

II. Proposed Earthwork and Reclamation

Prior to beginning mineral extraction, the topsoil and other overburden materals covering the nonmetallic
mineral deposit are removed and stockpiled separately for future reclamation Available topsoil and other
overburden materials have been stored in berms adjacent to the north, south, and east portions of the active
mineral extraction operations Some overburden materials have also been placed mn the bottom of the quarry
m areas that have previously been mined

Reclamation of the site will commence after all non-metallic minerals have been removed from the site
Reclamation of the site will include a 250 acre lake with restored slopes and rock faces surrounding the lake (see
Sheet 3 - Final Conditions and Sheet 4 - Cross Sections) The stockpiled topsoil and other overburden materials
will be placed over the reclaimed areas surrounding the lake, graded to conform with the surrounding land and
seeded The necessary topsoil and overburden are re-distributed across the parcel and fine graded to present a
uniform appearance Reclaimed slopes will be seeded upon completion of the fine gradmg

Payne 8 Dolan, Inc. 2 Tanklmn Aggregates



The berms surrounding the extraction area will be removed and regraded ( e leveled} as shown on the
reclamation plan view (Sheet 3 - Final Cond1t1ons) Excess overburden materials, including but not l1m1ted to
silt, clay, sand, dirt, rock, gravel and other earth materials lying on top of the limestone, not used mn the
reclamation of the slopes surrounding the quarry will be placed mn the bottom of the extraction area

The reclamation plans has been designed to maintain pre-mine drainage patterns to the greatest extent possible
and to improve upon existing cond1t1ons where feasible Existing grading and stormwater features such as road
side ditches, storm water drainage pipe, and the stormwater retention pond shall remain However, the
stormwater currently pumped from the quarry to the Root River will cease after the surrounding slopes are
reclaimed and the quarry 1s allowed to fill with water and stormwater from within the site to create the lake

', -«4.
} .
""'I'

Photo Showing Approximate Location of Stormwater Drainage Pipe and Retention Pond

Note Constructed per Stormwater Management Plan dated August 8, 1997

Payne & Dolan will perform the necessary grading to achieve the final topography and drainage patterns as
outlined mn the attached reclamation plan view (Sheet 3 Final Conditions) Grading actrtes along the west
extent of the property shall be limited so as to min1m1ze the gradmg that would occur towards the Root River

Payne 8, Dolan, Inc. Fr ankln -Aggregates



grading ! n. - radin

Photo Showing High Road Along West Edge ofQuarry (looking South)

Note A maJority of the grading for the reclaimed slope along western edge of quarry will occur from the outside edge of the "high
road" that extends around the quarry in this area

Ill. Geologic Composition of the Site and Depth of the Nonmetallic Mineral Deposit

The mineral deposit currently extracted consists of Silurian age limestone & dolomite, approximately 210- 250
feet thick, ofwhich over 90% ofwhich will be extracted from under the water table The amount of overburden
overlying the limestone vanes across the site but averages approximately 40 feet The overburden consists of
primarily clay and silt

Groundwater elevation and subsequent lake water elevation was ongmally obtained from a technical report
published by the Southeastern Wisconsmn Regional Planning Commission (Source Groundwater Resources of
Southeastern Wisconsin, Technical Report Number 37, 2002, SEWRPC and WSGNS, p 81) Thus information provided tn this
report for this location has been confirmed by two consultants, GAS (now Graef) and most recently by GZA
GeoEnvironmental

Also, groundwater elevations ma well monitored by the Unites States Geological Survey located on S92nd Street
Just south of Grange Ave has shown little movement of the groundwater table from 1/7/2000 - 33 01 ft below
the ground surface (bgs) to 1/28/2016- 31 19 ft bgs

PaynP & Dolan, Inc. 4 Ii ank!tn 4gg, egates
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IV. Revegetation Plan

After the overburden materials have been placed over the reclaimed slopes, a minimum of 6" of topsoil (PDD's
#23 and #24 specify a 4" minimum} will be spread over the reclaimed slopes, fine graded, seeded and mulched
Seeding act1v1t1es will be earned out m accordance with accepted seeding spec1f1cat1ons provided in the
reclamation plan Marginally steep slopes (greater than 3 1} will have either a minimum of 8" of topsoil or
add1t1onal erosion control measures, such as coIr (coconut fiber} erosion mat, to stabilize the slope dunng
revegetat1on

If any slopes toward the Root River must be re-graded, a seed mixture containmg native grasses as provided by
the City of Franklin or a WI DOT No 70 senes seed mix, shall be used A mycorrh1zal moculant or acceptable
alternative will be used when seeding any slopes toward the Root River
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Prepared soil will be seeded at any time dunng the growing season when soil cond1t1ons are suitable but not
longer than 7 days after the final grading of reclaimed slopes Seeding act1v1t1es should not be earned out
1mmed1ately following ram, when the ground 1s too dry, or during windy periods

Trees that are located within the grading limits as shown on Sheet 3 - Final Cond1t1ons shall be removed during
the reclamation grading Trees located outside of the grading limits shall remain
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All seeding and mulching will be done in accordance with the State ofWisconsin Department ofTransportation
Standard Spec1f1cat1ons for Seeding and Mulching, Sections 630 and 627, or as updated and amended

[QMC recommends use of a w1/dflower dn/1 such as Tye, Bnllon, or modified Truax instead of hydroseed,ng}
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V. Erosion Control and Post Operational Maintenance

Upon completion of the mineral extraction operations, operator shall obtain a land disturbance permit, or any
other permits required by the City of Franklin, prior to the commencement of the proposed earthwork for
reclamation as described above.

Erosion control measures will be implemented as necessary to min1m1ze off-site erosion until such time as
permanent placement and shaping of overburden and topsoil and seeding 1s possible Best Management
Practices (BMP's) such as check dams, straw bales, silt fence, surface water d1vers1ons, energy d1ss1paters, mulch
or art1f1c1al cover, cover crop of vegetation, buffer areas or other appropriate measures will be taken as
necessary to limit off-site erosion All erosion and sediment control practices will be periodically checked for
stability and operation on a regular basis by Payne & Dolan and made available to the City

Erosion control measures shall be inspected within 24 hours ofthe end ofeach rainfall event that exceeds O 25",
or dally during perods of prolonged rainfall, or weekly during periods wrthout ramnfall Immediately repatr
and/or replace any and all damaged, failed, or inadequate erosion control measures Operator shall maintain
records of all inspections and any remedial actions taken on-site

Remove any sediment reaching a public or private roadway, parking lot, sidewalk, or other pavement
Completely remove any accumulations not requiring 1mmed1ate attention at least once daily at the end of the
workday

Frequently dispose of all waste and unused construction materials in licensed solid waste or wastewater
facilities Do not bury, dump, or discharge, any garbage, debris, cleaning wastes, toxic materials, or hazardous
materials on the site, on the land surface or in detention basins, or otherwise allow materials to be earned off
the site by runoff onto adJacent lands or into receiving waters or storm sewer systems

Environmental pollution m1t1gat1on will not be needed 1f all measures outlined in the reclamation plan are
followed and adhered to

Follow up inspections of all reclammed and otherwise stabilized surfaces along with all erosion control and
sediment control practices will be conducted on a monthly basis to ensure their stability until such time as the
vegetation required to support the post-mining land use (Green/Open Space) has been successfully established
and the f1nanc1al assurance has been released

Seeded areas will be reseeded and fertilized as necessary to establish and maintain a dense self-sustaining cover
over reclaimed slopes Re-apply s01I stabilizers, tack1f1ers, polymers and antontc polyacrylamdes as needed to
prevent erosion of exposed soil Erosion and sediment control measures will be repaired and /or replaced as
necessary Other preventative measures not mentioned in this reclamation plan will be taken as necessary to
minimize off-site erosion

Such Best Management Practices shall be removed at time of final stabilization, as defined wthin Sect1on 15­
8 0303 of the City of Franklin's UDO as may be amended

Payne 8. Dolan, Inc 8 Fr ankln ·Aggregates
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VI. Costs of Reclamation

Reclamation is an on-going process during mineral extraction, with a mayorty of the reclamation being
completed during active mineral extraction Final reclamation will consist of reclamming the quarry perimeter
upon completion of the mineral extraction activities Approximately 75 acres will need to be reclammed and the
remamnmng 250 acres wall become a lake

The estimated costs of reclamation shall approximate the actual costs of reclamation including, but not l1m1ted
to grading and shaping overburden around the lake perimeter as shown on the reclamation plan, d1strrbuting
and placing of topsoil, developing public access, installing necessary erosion control measures, seeding,
mulching, Inspection and maintenance

j 3, 'lj ' 1

Grade Topsml & Subsoil Rock Face 5 600 $7 35 FT $41160 00
Grade Topsoil & Subsoil Slope into Water 8,800 $23 50 FT $206,800 00
Grade Excess overburden 1,000 $175 Hour $175 000 00
Removal of bulidmgs 2 $20 000 LS $40 000 00
Misc Cleanup 1 $20000 LS $20 000 00
Public Access Development 1 $25 000 LS $25 000 00
Erosion Control 1 $25,000 LS $25 000 00
Inspection & Maintenance 1 $10 000 LS $10 000 00
Seed, Fertilize & Mulch (per DOT standards) 75 $1,700 Acre $127,500 00

' '

Estimated Costs of Reclamation

I
l.

r
L

'\'

t

Map Showing Rock Face (red) and Reclaimed Slope Location (blue)

Note All overburden within the quarry extraction area have will have been moved to the floor of the quarry during active extraction
operations and thus will not need to be moved during reclamation
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VII. Assessing Successful Reclamation

Payne & Dolan will assess successful reclamation with the approved reclamation plan using the following
methods:

1 All buildings, structures and equipment associated with the mineral extraction act1v1t1es, but not the
ramps into the quarry, have been removed as part of the reclamation process

2. The available overburden and topsoil have been graded to the contours shown on the grading plan, and
have been fine graded, seeded and mulched

3 Public access has been provided at the location spec1f1ed on the reclamation plan

4 Adequate vegetation has been established to stabilize reclaimed surfaces Adequate vegetation will be
determined by utilizing the guideline outlined in the Wisconsin Technical Note-Agtronomy-WI 1,
Guidelines for Herbaceous Stand Evaluation, dated May 15, 1991 or by percent cover, which will be
determined as total cover (minimum 70%) within one year of planting as measured by the canopy
(vertical pr0Ject1on of plant parts) and will be recorded by species Revegetat1on will be measured over
the entire revegetated site at no less than 1 randomly placed 10 ft x 10 ft quadrant for each 1 acre area

5 The Cert1f1cat1on of Reclamation by the City of Franklin as outlined in Chapter 176 Nonmetallic Mining
Reclamation

§ 176 29 Completed reclamation: reporting, certification and effect.
A. RepoItIng. The operator of a nonmetallic mI111ng site may certify completion of reclamation for a po1t1011 01· all of the

nonmetallic munmng site pursuant to a reclamation plan prepared and approved pursuant to thus chapter and Chapter NR 135,
Wisconsn Administrative Code

B. Reporting of mnterim reclamation The operator of a nonmetallic mmnmng srte may report completion of mtermm reclamation as
spec1f1ed m the reclamation plan for the site prepared and approved pursuant to this chapter and Chapter NR 135, W1sconsI11
Admmnustrarve Code Reporting of mntenmreclamation shall be done accordmg to the procedures 111 Subsection A.

C Cert1f1cat1on of completed reclamation The City of Franklin shall inspect a nonmetallic mI111ng site for which reporting of
1·eclamat1on or Internn reclamation has been submtted pursuant to this subsection within 60 days of receipt and make a
determination in wrung mn accordance wth176-14A(7)(c) If it is determined that interim or final reclamat on Is complete
mncludmng revegetation, as specified in a reclamation plan that conforms wth $ 176-13, the City of Fr·ankhn shall issue the rnine
operator a written certificate of completion

D. effect of competed reclamation If reclamatron rs cert1f1ed by the Crty of Franklin as complete under Subsection C for part or
all of a nonmetallic nuning sale hen

(1) No fee shall be assessed under $ 176-27 for the area so certrf1ed

(2) The finanual assu ante requ red by 5 176-14 shall be released or appr opalely reduced n the case ol compleuon of
reclamation for a portion o the mrnmg srte

E. Effect of matron followmg/epor of completed reclamation If no wten response as required by Subsecuon C for a 1 area
of the rnrne site reported as reclaimed or mtermm recla med rs given wthin 6o days of recerv ng such request any annual fee
paid to the City of Franklrn for rt under§ 176-27 shall be refunded

Payne & Dolan, Inc 11 Hankln lggegates



VIII. Public Access

Upon completion of reclamation, public access to the reclaimed quarry lake will be located on the north side of
the site along Rawson Avenue, as shown on the reclamation plan, (Sheet 3 - Final Cond1t1ons) The public access
will include greenspace and a ramp for lake access The lake shall be a public resource, owned in common by all
Wisconsmn crtzens under the State's Public Trust Doctrine

The public access will be transferred to the City of Franklin and P&D will provide a temporary easement from
the public access to the quarry ramp to allow for public access to the lake while the quarry Is filling with water

Such temporary easement shall be made available for public access use on such terms and condrtons as are
mutually agreed upon by and between Payne & Dolan and the City of Franklin, which shall include an agreement
by the City of Franklin to maintain, operate and manage the public access and to defend and hold harmless
Payne & Dolan, from and against any clamms, actions, or labilrty arsmng out of, or relative to public use of the
temporary easement, excepting such claims, actions, or liability for which Payne & Dolan would be responsible
due to its acts and/or om1ss1ons prior to the date of delivery of such temporary easement, but for such
agreement The temporary easement shall expire when water m the quarry reaches the 675 ft msl elevation
A final contour map of the lake bed shall be provided at that time

IX. Safety

The reclamation of the site will help insure the long term safety to the general public The site 1s currently
enclosed by a safety fence to limit access The safety fence shall remain after reclamation until the quarry has
filled with water to the proJected final lake level

Approximately 65% of the reclaimed slope around the perimeter of the lake will have 3 1 safety slopes that
extend to a minimum depth of 6 ft as required by NR-135 The remaining 35% of the penmeter of the lake will
consist of a rock face However, there will still be two access points to the lake in this area· (1) the public access
ramp and (2) the existing quarry ramp

The exposed h1ghwalls will have the unconsolidated material scaled back at least 25 feet from the quarry edge
(drop-off) to form safety ledges as shown on Sheet 4 - Cross Sections As an added measure of safety, exposed
rock h1ghwalls will be scaled (scraped) to remove loose rock and to m1rnm1ze the potential for rock-falls

During the time rt takes the quarry lake to fill with water, the existmng fence shall remamn around the perimeter
of the property until the quarry lake fills to the elevation outlined in the reclamation plan At that time the fence
may be removed by Payne & Dolan, however a fence shall remain along the reclaimed rock face high wall areas
(as previously shown) until such time as those areas are developed

Give the close prox1m1ty of the northwestern edge of the quarry to West Rawson Avenue, a berm or strategic
placement of large boulders or beam guard in add1t1on to the fence shall be added

Payne [S< Dolan Inc.. 12 Fanklmn Aggregates
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X. Certification of Reclamation

I hereby certify, as a duly authorized representative or agent, that the reclamation at this nonmetallic mining
site will be earned out in accordance with the approved reclamation plan submitted by Payne & Dolan, Inc I
also certify that the information contained herein 1s true and accurate and complies with the local and statewide
nonmetallic mining reclamation standards established in NR-135, Wisconsin Admin1strat1ve Code

Signature of representative or agent

Clint G Weninger, P G
Land Resources Manager
Payne & Dolan, Inc

Payne & Dolan Inc

Date signed

_April 29, 2021

Fankln Aggregates



XI. Soils

Current Soils Map

Source USDA NCSS soils mnformation util zmng Google Earth website, 2015

Note All s011s within the quarry extraction area have previously been disturbed
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H1stoncal Soils Map (1918)

Source USDA Soil Survey of Milwaukee County, WI {1918)

HISTORICAL SOIL TYPES

Ml - Miami Loam

:'.III-\lll LO.nr.

'1.'he :surface soil conssts of 6 to 10 mclws of yello\\ ish or hro\\ll-
1sh-g1"<ty loam to 1ir1P :-;,1wly lo,nn. and the s11h-,01l chffers ,erJ httle
i'tom tlw '--OJI. At :2-1- to BO mehes the mteial is a more compact,
<-tick,, \ ellowish-lno\111 ::--and,v clay loam or loam. Urasclly sandy
Jfl[lll l ,.., oft ell Cll l-Ull ll tl'Jl:'d al ao l,o ;\(l HI( IH"l. The ',Oil JS shght-ly

u able, being a tidy sandy clay lo m some places and a more
open sandy onam m otllC' 1 • Gavel sometimes oectus on sharp
knollc.:. and bowldens orgmall were quite numerous. though mo::.t
of these have been 1eoed 'I hi, soul i intimately assoc1ated wth
the }lrntni eln, lo.1m rtncl <,Jlt.y ela} loam. nnd in places the boundtu·y
1s largely alt1ary.
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APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

An Ordinance to Repeal and Recreate Chapter 133
Fire Prevention, Protection, and Control Code, ofthe

Municipal Code ofThe City ofFranklin; and to
Discontinue Enforcing Grandfathered Local Code

Requirements UnderWisconsin Act 270

MEETING
DATE

/04/2021
ITEM NUMBER

Background:
Since at least the 1990's the State of Wisconsin Department of Commerce (AKA "Comm."), more recently titled
the Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services (DSPS) has maintained statutory authority over
enforcing fire protection standards innew commercial andmulti-family buildings. Prior to 2013, DSPS
allowed local municipalities to enforce additional code requirements for fire protection systems (fire alarm and
fire sprinkler systems) that were "at least" as stringent as the DSPS requirements, which were in fact based on
the International Building Code (IBC).

In 2013, the State Legislator passedWisconsmAct 270, which effectively created a "Min-Max" Wisconsin
Commercial Building Code (WCBC) which included fire code requirements for fire protection systems, and
local municipalities were no longer permitted to enforce requirements and standards for fire protection
systems in commercial buildings that were more stringent than the WCBC requirements. DSPS did, however,
allow municipalities to continue to enforce "grandfathered" code requirements that were either substantially
consistent with DSPS requirements, or that had no noticeable impact. An example of the latter is Franklin's
requirement that a fire alarmpull station be located at every egress point on every floor of every structure.
(Smoke detectors would activate the alarm system automatically prior to human interventionwhether the
structure is occupied or not, so the pull stations were a superfluous -yet extremely costly - local code
requirement).

In late 2019, the fire department presented (and the CommonCouncil approved) an updated fire code that
simplified the fire code by eliminating redundant and unnecessary language, and which adopted by reference
national codes and standards, ensuring that local code requirements would always reflect current DSPS
requirements. The revision also removed language regarding plan review submission requirements that are
better addressed in procedural documents and guidelines, which canbe adjusted as needed to streamline
business practices and optimize customer service. An alternative intent in the code revisionwas to allow the
department to transition to a new fire safety consulting firm, which could also act as a delegated agent of
DSPS for fire protection systemplan reviews, saving considerable time andmoney to Franklin businesses and
property-owners. DSPS has not yet approved the delegation request, based on two concerns.

First, when the department simplified and reorganized the code in 2019, some reformatting took place, and
while the language remained identical to grandfathered local code requirements approved and published on
the DSPS website, some of the Chapter subheadingnumbers were changed and didnot match the published
information.

Secondly, as part of the 2013 Act 270 rules, DSPS requires any changes in fire code related to fire alarm and fire
sprinkler systems be submitted to DSPS andbe published by the municipality 120 days prior to taking effect.
This was an original requirement of Act 270 andwas intended to allow DSPS sufficient time to review
mumcipal code submissions in order to compare them to DSPS codes for potential grandfathering. Fire
department administrationwas not aware that this requirement would still be enforced, particularly when the
proposed local code changes would bring local code requirements into substantial parity with DSPS code
language.



Options:
Fire department administration could make corrections to the revised code, keeping the grandfathered
sections of the pre-2013 fire code in their current locations and subchapter designations. This creates an
extremely disjointed and confusing document that maintains unnecessary and redundant code requirements.
It also ties the department to enforcement of outdated language.

Alternatively, the Fire Chief proposes revising the local code to remove any references to the grandfathered
code requirements related to fire alarm and sprinkler systems, as they are unnecessary redundancies - in many
cases creating significant cost increases for Franklin business and property owners, while not positively
impacting overall life-safety. The department would then withdraw its 2013 request to DSPS to enforce
grandfathered language, and would instead strictly enforce DSPS requirements as established and periodically
reviewed and amended by industry experts, and adopted by the State. Fire department administration has
been in communication with the DSPS Section Chief, who is supportive of this course of action. The fire
department would then renew its application for delegated agent status on behalf of DSPS. If approved, this
process and authority will represent significant cost savings to stakeholders; and will serve to expedite plan
reviews and approvals, keeping construction projects on schedule, and positively impacting the business­
friendly posture of the City.

A copy of the proposed fire code revision (Chapter 133 of Franklin Municipal Ordinances) is included. The
code has again been reviewed and updated to remove redundant and conflicting language and to follow a
more logical and readable format. As stated, references to outdated and unnecessary requirements for fire
protection systems have been removed, and the document adopts by reference all applicable national codes
and standards, ensurmng that the fire department remains in a position to always enforce the most current
requirements established and revised by industry experts and enacted by the State.

The Fire Chief and Director of Inspections Services recommend approval of the revised Fire Code (Chapter 133
of Franklin Municipal Ordinances). The Fire Chief also requests approval to withdraw the department's 2013
request to the DSPS to grandfather certain requirements regarding fire protection systems in new construction
of public buildings, defined in the city's pre-2013 fire code, and that the newly revised code be published for
120 days prior to effective date.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve an Ordinance to Repeal and Recreate Chapter 133 Fire Prevention,
Protection, and Control Code, of the Municipal Code of The City of Franklin; and to
Discontinue Enforcing Grandfathered Local Code Requirements Under Wisconsin Act 270.

Fire/AJR



Adam Remington

To:
Subject:

Adam Remington
FW: Fire Code

From: Adam Remington <ARemington@franklmnwi.gov>
Sent: Thursday, April 15, 202111:18 AM
To: Sandi Wesolowski <SWesolowski@franklinwi.gov>
Cc: Jesse Wesolowski <jweslaw@aol.com>; Steve Olson <Solson@franklinwi.gov>; Catherine Heder
<CHeder@franklinwi.gov>
Subject: Fire Code
Importance: High

Please see the attached proposed revision to Chapter 133 of the Municipal Code. All references to items that by law are
regulated by other agencies and codes have been removed, along with burdensome, redundant, and often contradictory
language related to plan submission requirements related to those items.

Arguably they were appropriate at one time, but they are no longer appropriate or enforceable in this code.

I would characterize this as a "repeal and replace" action, and barring any objections, I plan to put this on the first
agenda in May.

Adam J. Remington
Fire Chief
Franklin Fire Department
(414) 425-1420
aremington@franklinw1 gov
g
Franklin

t5 O N ? N

This message is intended for the sole use of the individual and entity to which t is addressed, and maycontain information that isprivileged, confidential and
exempt from disclosure under applicable law Ifyou are not the intended addressee, norauthorized to receive for the intended addressee, you are herebynotified
that you maynot use, copy, disclose ordistribute to anyone the message oranyinformation contained in the message Ifyou have received this message in error,
please immediately advise the senderbyreplyemail and delete the message.
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STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2021­

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
draft 4/29/21

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL AND RECREATE CHAPTER 133 FIRE PREVENTION,
PROTECTION, AND CONTROL CODE, OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE

CITY OF FRANKLIN

WHEREAS, the Fire Chief and Fire Department staff having reviewed Chapter 133
of the Municipal Code and having provided a redraft of the entirety of the Chapter to in part
provide for updates for consistency with the applicable State of Wisconsin Administrative
Code and National Fire Prevention Association Code requirements and regulations, and to
provide for further efficiency in the provision of fire prevention, protection and control as
has been developed through the years, and the Fire Chief having recommended approval of
such revisions; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the recommendation and
having determined same to be in furtherance of the protection of the health, safety and
welfare of the Community.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1: Chapter 133 Fire Prevention, Protection, and Control Code, of the
Municipal Code of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby repealed
and recreated to read as follows:

Chapter 133
Fire Prevention, Protection, and Control

§133-1. General Provisions.
$133-2. Definitions.
$133-3. Adoption ofWisconsin Administrative Code.
$133-4. Adoption oflntemational Code Council (ICC), Inc. Codes.
$133-5. Adoption by reference ofNational Fire Prevention Association (NFPA) publications.
$133-6. Automatic fire sprinkler control and/or fire suppression system protection.
$133-7. Liability for damages.
$133-8. Service of correction orders.
$133-9. Variances.
$133-10. Revocation ofpermits.
$133-11. Closing and vacating buildings.
$133-12. Investigation of fires.
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$133-13. Miscellaneous construction provisions.
$133-14. Miscellaneous use provisions.
$133-15. Flammable, combustible, and hazardous materials.
$133-16. Fire inspection fees.
$133-17. Fees.
$133-18. Violations and penalties.
$133-19. Appeals.

$133-1. General Provisions.
A. Intent. The intent of this chapter is:

1) To provide the municipality with comprehensive regulations to improve public safety by
attempting to control, limit, restrict, and/or eliminate fire hazards.

2) To improve life safety for residents, occupants, employees, firefighters, and frequenters of
places of employment and public buildings.

3) To regulate the installation, use and maintenance of equipment; to regulate the use of
structures, occupancies, and open areas.

4) To require the removal and/or reduction of fire hazards; to establish the responsibilities and
procedures for code enforcement; and to set the minimum standards for compliance and
achievement of those objectives.

5) To protect property from the hazards of fire and explosion by establishing minimum
standards for the use, operation, maintenance and inspection of building structures and
premises.

B. Applicability.
1) The provisions of this code shall apply to all public buildings and places of employment.

Exceptions: The following buildings and uses are not public buildings or places of
employment and are not subject to the provisions of this code:

2) One and two-family dwellings.
3) Buildings used exclusively for farming as described in Wis. Stat.§ 102.04(3).
4) Nothing contained in this section shall be construed as applying to the transportation of any

article or thing shipped in conformity with the regulations prescribed by the Interstate
Commerce Commission, or as applying to the military forces of the United States.

5) The provisions of this code shall apply equally to new structures, including additions to
existing structures and existing conditions, except that existing conditions not in strict
compliance with the terms of this subsection shall be permitted to continue where the
exceptions do not constitute a distinct hazard to lrfe or adjoining property as determined by
the Authority Having Jurisdiction (AH)).

6) The provisions of this code apply equally to the property owner and/or occupant.
7) Sections 133-8., 133-9., 133-10., 133-11., 133-14., 133-15. and 133-18. apply to all

individuals and/or properties within the jurisdiction of the municipality.
C. Permits required.

1) The fire department shall be responsible for issuing the following permits:
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a Fireworks permits.
b Bonfire permits.
c Outdoor burning of yard waste (Outdoor Burning Permit must be purchased from the

Office of the City Clerk, Franklin City Hall).
2) Certificates of occupancy. The AHJ shall have dual authority with the building inspector in

the issuance of certificates of occupancy for multifamily, public buildings, places of
employment, commercial structures, places of assembly and schools to the extent that the
AHJ shall inspect and have approval authority over proposed occupancies to ensure
compliance with this chapter.

D. Stop-work order.
1) The AHJ may request that the building inspector issue a stop-work order upon any permit

issued subject to the inspection and approval authority of this chapter, where the AHJ finds
that any of the conditions for issuance have not been maintained or where there has been
any false statement or misrepresentation of any material fact made in the application or
plans upon which the issuance was based.

2) If the AHJ determines requirements of this code are not complied with or there may be life
safety issues, the AHJ may issue a stop-work order on any project or portion thereof.

E. Inspection and testing.
1) AII fire suppression systems and fire alarm systems required under this code shall be

inspected by a qualified authorized agent of the AHJ prior to having any of their parts
covered up or concealed in any manner whatsoever. The authorized reviewing agent shall
be gven a 72-hour notice prior to any system inspection.

2) A qualified authorized agent of the AHJ shall witness all tests of fire-controlled systems, fire
alarm initiating devices, notification appliances, and any other required system requiring an
operational test. The authorized reviewing agent shall be given a seventy-two (72) hour
notice prior to any system witness test.

3) All testing shall be conducted mn accordance with the NFPA standard applicable to the
system being tested.

F. Right of entry.
1) The AHJ and/or his or her authorized representative may, at all reasonable hours, enter any

place of employment and/or public building within its jurisdiction for the purposes of
making any inspection or investigation which, under the provision of this section, is deemed
necessary.

2) The AHJ shall inspect, or cause to be inspected, all places of employment and public
buildings as often as may be necessary, but not less than once a year.

3) The purpose of any inspection and/or investigation is to determine if any violations of the
provisions or intent of this code and/or codes or standards adopted by reference exist and
to order corrections of the violations observed.

4) The AHJ or his/her authorized representative, upon the complaint of any person or
whenever he or she deem necessary, shall inspect any place of employment and/or public
building and premises within its jurisdiction.
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5) Any owner or occupant of any place of employment and/or public building who refuses to
permit, prevents or interferes with entry into or upon the premises by anyone authorized by
the AHJ shall be subject to penalties under §133-18. Exception: The interiors of dwelling
units will not be inspected unless an inspection is specifically requested by the owner or
occupant and/or as allowed by state statutes.

G. Enforcement and documentation.
1) The fire chief, as the AHJ, or anyone the fire chief has designated as an authorized

representative or agent of the AHJ, shall enforce the provisions of this code.
2) Whenever any authorized representative or agent of the AHJ shall discover fire hazards due

to conditions that are not in compliance with the requirements of NFPA 1, this code, and
any all other applicable codes and adopted standards, he or she shall order such conditions
or materials to be removed or remedied in such manner as may be specified. These hazards
may include, but are not limited to, the following:
a. Dangerous or unlawful amounts of flammable, combustible, or explosive material as

determined by the AHJ.
b. Hazardous conditions arising from defective or improperly installed equipment for

handling or using flammable, combustible, or explosive material.
c. Dangerous accumulations of rubbish, waste paper, boxes, shavings, or other highly

flammable materials as determined by the AHJ.
d. Accumulations of dust, grease, or waster materials in air conditioning system, exhaust

ducts or vent hoods.
e. Obstructions to or in fire escape stairs, passageways, doors, or windows liable to

interfere with the operation of the fire department or egress of occupants. This
includes snow.

f. Any building, structure or premises which for want of repairs, lack of exit facilities, fire
alarm apparatus or fire extinguishing equipment, or any reason of age or dilapidated
condition, or from any cause, creates a fire hazard.

3) The AHJ may use any means necessary in documentation of inspections or conditions,
including but not limited to the use of electronic equipment.

4) No change can be made in the use or occupancy of any building or structure, or any space
within a building or structure, either in a different division of the same occupancy group or
in a different occupancy group, unless the building or structure complies wrth this code's
requirements for the new division of occupancies, as these requirements exist. Exception:
This subsection does not apply to an approved temporary use or to a new use that will be
less hazardous, based on life and/or fire risk, than the existing use.

5) An inspection by the fire department or an authorized representative or agent of the AHJ
shall be required for any new or change of occupancy.

H. Temporary use. The AHJ may allow a building or portion of a building to be used temporarily in a
manner that differs from the approved use for the building or space, or may approve a
temporary building to be used by the public, subject to all of the following provisions:
1) The AHJ shall determine the time frame within which the temporary use is permitted, based

on the extent hazards are created by the temporary use.
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2) The AHJ shall determine any fire protection and/or control devices and life safety provisions
that may be needed.

§133-2. Definitions.
A. Unless otherwise expressly stated in this code, all definitions, including those of occupancy

types, shall be as stated in the most current versions of NFPA 1 (Chapter 3), NFPA 101, (Chapter
3) and/or the NFPA standard(s) or code(s) applicable to the specific subject material, that are
legislatively adopted by state statue.

§133-3. Adoption ofWisconsin Administrative Code.
A. The most current legislatively enacted version by the State of Wisconsin of the Wisconsin

Administrative Code, on the effective date of this Code, shall apply.
SPS 303 Administrative Procedures
SPS 305
SPS 307
SPS 308
SPS 310
SPS 314
SPS 316
SPS 318
SPS 326
SPS 328
SPS 333
SPS 334
SPS 335
SPS 340
SPS 341
SPS 343
SPS 345
SPS 348
SPS 361-366
SPS 371
SPS 375-379

Licenses, Certification and Registration
Explosives and Fireworks
Mines, Pits and Quarries
Flammable, Combustible and Hazardous Liquids
Fire Prevention
Electrical
Elevators, Escalators and Lift Devices
Manufactured Home Communities
Smoke Detectors and Carbon Monoxide Detectors
Passenger Ropeways
Amusement Rides
Infectious Agents
Gas Systems
Boilers and Pressure Vessels
Anhydrous Ammonia
Mechanical Refrigeration
Petroleum and Other Liquid Fuel Products
Wisconsin Commercial Building Code
Solar Energy Systems
Existing Buildings

B. Any violation of the incorporated provisions constitutes a violation of this code.
C. In cases of conflict between local and state codes, the most restrictive provisions, as determined

by the AHJ, shall govern.

§133-4. Adoption of International Code Council (ICC), Inc., codes.
A. The latest ICC publication(s) listed below and published on or before the effective date of this

code are adopted by reference, enforced, and incorporated into thus code as fully set forth
herein.
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§133-5. Adoption by reference ofNational Fire Prevention Association (NFPA)
publications.

A. The latest version of NFPA 1 (Fre Code) that is legislatively adopted by reference by State
Wisconsin, including all of the publications, codes, standards, and documents adopted by
reference by the State of Wisconsin in Chapter 2 of that code, are hereby adopted by reference,
enforced, and incorporated into this code as if fully sent forth herein.

§133-6. Automatic fire alarm, fire sprinkler, and fire protection systems.
A. The design and construction of all automatic fire alarm, fire sprinkler, and fire protection

systems in all public buildings and places of employment shall comply with the administrative
code provisions under the Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services (DSPS)
Wis. Adm. Code§§ SPS 361.03, SPS 361.05 and SPS 314.

$133-7. Liability for damages.
A. The code shall not be construed to affect the responsibility of any persons owning, operating, or

installing equipment for injury to persons or damage to property caused by any defect therein,
nor shall the municipality, any person, firm, company or agent(s) for the municipality be held as
assuming such liability by reason of any inspection or re-inspection authorized herein or the
permit issued herein provided or by reason of the disapproval or approval of any equipment
and/or system authorized herein.

$133-8. Service correction orders.
A. The service of correction orders shall be made upon the owner, occupant or other person

responsible for the condition(s) that violates any section of this code. A copy of the service
order can be delivered personally to the owner or by leaving it with the person in charge of the
premises. Whenever it may be necessary to serve such order upon the owner of the premises,
such an order may be served either by delivering to and leaving with the person a copy of the
order or, 1f such owner is absent from the jurisdiction of the AHJ making the order, by mailing
such a copy to the owner's last known post office address.

B. Conditions that are hazardous to life or safety ofthe occupants shall require immediate
correction. All other violations shall be corrected within a specified time or date, as the AHJ
shall determine.

C. When the owner of any property or person in apparent control of the property 1s issued an
order by the AHJ and fails to comply with the order, the municipality may do the work ordered,
and the cost of such work shall constitute a special assessment against the property pursuant to
Wis. Stat. S 66.0703(12), within 90 days of the date of the final determination of the governing
body.

D. No person shall refuse to permit or shall prevent or interfere with any entry into or upon any
building or premise by the AHJ who is lawfully on the premises or interfere with any such
inspection. If consent to enter onto personal or real properties which are not public buildings,
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or to portions of the buildings which are not open to the public, has been denied, the Fire
Inspector shall obtain a special inspection warrant underWis. Stat. § 66.0119.

§133-9. Variances.
A. Except as otherwise prohibited by state law, the AHJ shall have power to modify any of the

provisions of this code upon application in writing by the owner or occupant, or a duly sworn
authorized agent, when there are practical difficulties in the way of carrying out the strict letter
of the code, provided that the spirit of the code shall be observed, public safety secured, and
substantial justice done.

B. The AHJ thereon shall enter upon the records of the department, and a signed copy shall be
furnished to the applicant, the particulars of such variances when granted.

C. The AHJ may require tests as proof of compliance with the intent of this code. Such tests are to
be made by an approved agency at the expense of the person requesting approval of the
alternate material or method of construction.

D. If technical expertise is unavailable within the municipality because of new technology, process,
products, facilities, materials and uses attending design, operation or use of a building premises
subject to the inspection of the municipality, the AHJ may require the owner or the person in
possession or control of the building or premises to provide without charge to the municipality a
technical opinion and report. The opinion and report shall be prepared by a qualified engineer,
specialist, laboratory or fire safety organization, acceptable to the AHJ and owner, and shall
analyze the fire safety properties of the design, operation or use ofthe building or premises and
the facilities and appurtenances situated thereon, and prescribed the necessary recommended
changes. The department may also acquire technical assistance from a consultant and may
charge a fee to the owner or occupant for the service provided.

§133-10. Revocation of permits.
A. The AHJ may revoke any permit issued in accordance with this code in any case where it may

find that any of the conditions of the issuance have not been maintained or where there has
been false statement or misrepresentation of any material fact in the application or plans on
which the issuance was based.

B. The AHJ shall promptly notify the permit holder of the request for revocation and, if so
requested by the permit holder, the effective date of the revocation shall be deferred pending a
hearing before the chief of the fire department. The decision of the fire chief for revocation,
following the hearing, shall be final.

§133-11. Closing and vacating buildings.
A. The AHJ may order compliance with thus section and all other lawful orders or laws related to

fire prevention and fire protection in existing buildings and structures.
B. Where the public is exposed to immediate danger, the AHJ shall order the closing and vacating

of the building at once.
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§133-12. Investigation of fires.
A. The Fire Department shall investigate the cause and origin, and circumstances of fires occurring

within their jurisdiction to determine if the fire is of carelessness or design. Such investigations
may begin immediately upon the occurrence of such a fire, and if it appears to the officer
making such an investigation that such fire 1s of suspicious origin and of a significant nature, the
fire chief shall be notified of the facts. AHJ shall notify the proper authorities designated by law
to pursue the investigation of such matters and shall further cooperate with the authorities in
the collection of evidence and in the prosecution of the case. A member of the fire investigation
team shall file a written report of damage associated with every fire in a timely manner. It shall
contain a statement of all facts relating to cause and origin and circumstances of such fire and
other information as may be required.

8. Fire-damaged buildings (securing). All dwelling and buildings within a municipality damaged
from fire shall be secured within 24 hours of release of the property by the AHJ. The owner of
the damaged property shall assume the liability for the protection of the public until the
property s secured.

§133-13. Miscellaneous construction provisions.
A. Building plan review. The fire department shall conduct plan reviews and issue approvals of fire­

safety related elements prior to construction of any public buildings or places of employment.
8. Addresses and door labeling. Addresses as assigned by the City shall be placed on all structures

or property supporting the same as follows:
1) Placement. The address shall be put in place on the structure as soon as reasonably possible

during construction at a location acceptable to the AHJ.
2) Description of numbers and letters. Numbers and letters shall be of contrasting colors (e.g.

black and white) and readable from the road or highway and:
a. Arabic numbers shall be used; script and roman numerals cannot be used alone, but

may be used as an addition to the requirements of this section.
b. All single-family and two-family residential buildings shall have street numbers, not less

than four (4) inches tall and placed on the exterior wall of the principal building that
faces the street or service drive providing access to the building. All such residential
units shall also have street numbers, not less than three and one-half (3) inches tall,
placed on their respective mailbox. If the building setback 1s greater than 100 feet from
the roadway the address shall be moved no further than 25 feet from the roadway and
placed within ten (10) feet of the entrance to the property. Numbers and letters shall
be visible from the roadway at all times of the year.

3) Commercial and industrial requirements.
a. All suite numbers that identify each individual unit shall be placed on the primary

entrance to each business or occupancy.
b. All commercial or industrial structures which have a rear service door shall identify the

occupant and the street address conspicuously and on said rear door in contrasting and
reflective letters and/or numbers not less than six (6) inches tall, and shall continually
maintain same.
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C. Door, floor and stairway identification. Any occupancy having more than five exterior means of
egress and/or more than two floors in height shall number the individual egress areas according
to this section:
1) An identifying number shall be placed on the interior and exterior of each means of egress

doorway not less than six inches tall, and in contrasting color and light reflective.
2) Each floor shall have a sign indicating room numbers, with an arrow indicating the direction

to these rooms. The location of this sign must be acceptable to the AHJ.
3) Each interior door providing access to an enclosed stairway that is considered part of an

accessible means of egress shall be identified with numbers and letters not less than three
and one-half (3 ) inches tall in the following manner:
a. Have a sign indicating floor level posted on both sides of the egress door in a location

acceptable to the AHJ.
b. Have a sign indicating the exterior exit door egress assigned in compliance with

Subsection B (1) located on both sides of the egress door in a location acceptable to the
AHJ.

(4) Identification numbers shall be placed on the exterior windows of all hotels, motels, nursing
homes, and multifamily occupancies to identify room number or address it services. The
numbers shall not be less than three and one-half (3) inches tall, light reflective, and in a
location acceptable to the AHJ.

D. Fire Department access roads and fire lanes. Unobstructed fire lanes that are accessible from a
public road shall be provided for every building or portion in accordance with Wis. Adm. Code §

SPS 362. Fire Department access roads shall comply with the requirements of NFPA 1,
(18.2.3.1).

E. Fire hydrants.
1) Intent. The intent of this section is to insure adequate water supply for fire-fighting

purposes to structures, buildings, and normal premises. For the purposes of placing
hydrants, "normal access routes" are defined as pavement, sidewalks, streets, driveways
and paths leading to a building that are clear and maintained year-round. The normal
access route does not include grass, parking stalls, ditches, hills, shrubs, flower beds, fences,
walls or any other area typically used for ingress or regress to a building.

2) Where required. Any building or structure hereafter erected shall provide, at the owner's
expense, approved water hydrants. Fire hydrant location, distribution and installation shall
comply with NFPA 1(18.5)
a. Mobile home parks. Any new mobile home or trailer part or any mobile home or trailer

park which expands by adding additional trailers or area to the present court site shall
provide an approved water hydrant when any trailer or building located in such park is
more than 300 feet from an approved hydrant. Water hydrants shall be provided so
that no trailer or building is more than 300 feet from an approved hydrant by normal
access routes. Fire extinguishers are required in mobile home parks per Chapter 174 of
Franklin municipal ordinances.

b. Notwithstanding the above, the need and location of any fire hydrant shall be
determined by the AHJ as he/she deems necessary to protect life and property.
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3) Inspection, testing, maintenance and repair.
a. Private fire service mains and water tanks shall be inspected, tested and maintained in

compliance with the requirements established in NFPA 25.
(1) Property owner shall immediately advise the fire department and the Water Utility

as to hydrants which have been damaged, are inoperable, or have been found
deficient in required fire flow.

(2) AII inoperable hydrants shall be repaired as soon as is practically possible or within a
reasonable time frame as determined by the AHJ.

(3) All records of inspections shall be maintained on site and made available to the AHJ
upon request.

4) Hydrants must be accessible at all times. Prohibited obstructions may include but are not
limited to snow, parked vehicles, materials, equipment, storage and refuse. No obstruction
shall be within a four-foot radius of the hydrant.

F. Access box system requirements.
1) An access box system has been adopted for use by this fire department. The following

structures shall be equipped with an access box at or near the main entrance or such
location as required by the AHJ.
a. Commercial or industrial structures protected by an automatic alarm system or

automatic fire suppression system, or such structures that are secured in a way that
restricts access during an emergency.

b. Multifamily residential structures that have restricted access through locked doors and
have a common corridor for access to the living units.

c. Nursing homes, community-based residential facilities (CBRFs), child day-cares and
other health facilities.

d. All educational occupancies.
e. The AHJ shall have the authority to require any structure to install and maintain an

access box.
f. Exception: Any building or site that has twenty-four hour, seven-day-a-week security

guard service or any occupancy that remains open 24 hours a day, seven days a week,
does not require an access box unless required by the AHJ.

2) AII newly constructed structures subject to this section shall have the access box installed
and operational prior to the issuance of an occupancy permit. All structures in existence on
the effective date of this section and that are subject to this section shall have one year
from the date of being ordered by the AHJ to have an access box installed to complete
installation.

3) The owner or agent of a structure required to have an access box shall keep the following
inside the box:
a. Keys to locked points of ingress and egress whether on the interior or exterior.
b. The keys to locked mechanical equipment, electrical and elevator control rooms, fire

alarm and/or sprinkler riser rooms.
c. The keys needed to open any alarm panels.
d. Floor plans or maps as required by the AHJ.
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e. The keys to other areas as directed by the AHJ.
f. Number of keys required:

(1) Occupancies less than 10,000 square feet shall provide a minimum of two master
keys.

(2) Occupancies of at least 10,000 square feet but less than 50,000 square feet shall
provide a minimum of three master keys.

(3) Occupancies of 50,000 square feet or more and/or those occupancies with special
hazards shall provide a minimum of four master keys.

(4) Any existed occupancies shall have one year from the date of an AHJ order to
provide the required number of keys within the access box.

(5) The access box shall be installed at the owner's expense.
(6) The size and type of access box must be acceptable to the AHJ.
(7) If the locks to the building are changed, the AHJ must be notified and new keys

placed in the access box within 24 hours.
G. Carbon-monoxide (CO) detectors.

1) Intent. The intent of this section is to decrease the leading cause of poisoning deaths in the
United States by requiring the installation and maintenance of carbon monoxide (CO)
detectors.

2) Installation required. Installation shall be required, installed, tested and maintained as set
forth in Wis. Stat.§ 101.149.

H. Smoke Alarms
1) Installation required. A "ten year'' smoke alarm with a sealed battery or smoke alarms

hardwired to the structure's electrical power with a battery backup and interconnected with
each other shall be installed mall multi-family and mixed-use occupancies not later than
January 1, 2013. Smoke alarms must be installed in all bedrooms, in the common hallway
outside of the bedrooms and/or at the head of all stairways and/or in locations required by
the AHJ.

2) Testing and maintenance.
a. The owners of multi-family occupancies are responsible for monthly testing and

documentation of the same for all smoke alarms not located within tenant areas.
b. The owner and/or occupant of mixed-use occupancies are responsible for monthly

testing and documentation of the same for all smoke alarms location within areas they
occupy.

3) Once notified of a missing or defective smoke alarm, the owner of a multi-family occupancy
shall repair or replace the smoke alarm within five days.

§133-14. Miscellaneous use provisions.
A. Fireworks.

1) Sales. Except as provided in Wis. Stat. S$ 167.10(2) and (4), no person shall sell or possess
with the intent to sell fireworks.

2) Possession. No person shall possess, manufacture, use, display, discharge or sell any
fireworks without a permit.
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3) Use. Except as provided in Wis. Stat. S 167.10(3), no person shall possess or use fireworks
without a user's permit issued pursuant to Subsection 4)d. below.

4) User permit.
a. As provided in Wis. Stat. 5 167.10(3), fireworks user's permits may be issued for festivals

or celebrations after proper application to the municipality.
b. The AHJ shall require certificate of liability insurance or similar proof of coverage on an

amount deemed appropriate.
c. Fireworks displays shall be required to be conducted in accordance with the conditions

and requirements set forth in NFPA 1123, Codefor Fireworks Displays.
d. Permits to display or discharge fireworks shall be issued as follows:

(1) An application for a permit may be obtained at the Fire Department
(2) Applications shall be submitted not less than seven days prior to the date of such

display.
(3) No accumulating or purchase of fireworks shall be allowed prior to the issuance of

the permit.
(4) After review of the application and inspection of the site, a permit shall be issued or

denied at the discretion of the provisions of this chapter and the promotion of
public safety and security of adjoining property.

(5) The AHJ reserves the right to re-inspect the display and landing sites at any time to
ensure public safety.

(6) NFPA 1123 and 1124 will be used as a guide for these inspections.
(7) The cost of such permits shall be set forth under §133-17 of this code.
(8) AII persons applying for a permit must also submit proof of liability insurance in the

amount of $1,000,000 and a copy of any contract with companies which will be
responsible in whole or part for the fireworks, storage, or display.

(9) AII display companies and personnel who are paid to set off fireworks within the city
shall return to the area of fireworks display with 18 hours of the display and during
daytime hours to carefully search for and dispose of unexploded fireworks.

(10)The Franklin Police Department and/or Fire Department personnel are authorized to
enlarge the area required to be searched by the display companies and their
personnel.

5) No permits. Permits will not be issued to sell or manufacture fireworks.
6) Use of caps and sparklers. No unlicensed person may use fireworks, caps, or sparklers in a

municipal park or at a firework display for which a permit has been issued if the display is
open to the public.

7) Pyrotechnics. Pyrotechnics are prohibited in public buildings and places of employment
unless authorized by the AHJ and shall be used in accordance with NFPA 1123.

8) The fire chief and/or his or her designee may disallow the display of fireworks due to local
circumstances, such as extremely dry conditions or other unforeseen circumstances.

9) Sky lanterns. The use of free-floating sky lanterns and similar devices utilizing an open flame
shall be prohibited.

B. Outdoor burning.
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1) Restricted Burning (permit required). Outdoor burning of any kind may be restricted upon
issuance of a burning ban order by the AHJ for environmental conditions such as prolonged
dry periods, or for other reasons at the discretion of the AHJ.
a. Open burning. There shall be no open burning of any combustible waste material except

as allowed by permit and subject to the following regulations:
(1) A Franklin Burning Permit must be obtained from the Office of the City Clerk (9229

W. Loomis Rd.) by the listed property owner prior to ignition. {Permits shall only be
issued to owners of one and two-family residential properties.)

(2) Wind velocity shall not exceed nine miles per hour.
(3) Contents of the pile may contain only dry leaves, brush, and other dry plant

material.
(4) Burning of construction or packaging materials is prohibited.
(5) The size of the burn pile shall not exceed four feet in width or three feet in height.
(6) Open burning shall be constantly supervised by a competent person, at least 16

years old, until the fire is extinguished.
(7) The pile to be burned shall be a minimum of 50 feet from buildings and 25 feet from

any public roadways.
(8) If smoke travels in such a manner as to cause a nuisance to neighbors, or obscure

any public roadway, the fire shall be required to be extinguished.
(9) Open burning shall only be permitted from 7:00 a.m. to½ hour after sunset.
(lO)Open burning shall be permitted from April 1 to June 15 and October 15 to

November 3g",
(11)Flammable or combustible liquids shall not be used to ignite or accelerate the fire at

any point.
(12)A garden hose or other means of extinguishment must be present and readily

accessible at all times.
b. Bonfires. Bonfires may be conducted for public ceremonies, celebrations, and special

events; only with a permit approved by the fire department, and subject to the
following conditions and requirements:
(1) An application shall be obtained from and submitted to the fire department no less

than seven days prior to the date of the event.
(2) The cost of such permit shall be as set forth under §133-17 of this code. (Fees shall

be refunded if a bonfire permit application is denied by the AHJ.)
(3) After review of the application and inspection of the site, a permit shall be issued or

denied at the discretion of the AHJ upon due consideration of the provisions of this
chapter and the promotion of public safety and the security of adjoining property.

(4) No accumulating of items to burn in the bonfire shall be allowed prior to the
issuance of the permit.

(5) The AHJ reserves the right to re-inspect the bonfire site at any time to ensure public
safety.

(6) Fire shall be no larger than 10 feet in diameter or 10 feet tall.
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(7) The fire area shall be protected by a fire ring or in some other fashion acceptable to
the AHJ to prevent fire spread or a fire hazard.

(8) Fires shall contain only wood; other building products are prohibited.
(9) Fires shall not be started or accelerated using flammable liquids.
(10)Fires must be attended at all times by a competent person of at least 18 years of age

who has obtained permission of the property owner.
(11)The fire must be at least 50 feet from all structures, roadways and lot lines.
(12)lf smoke travels in such a manner that it obscures roadways, the AHJ reserves the

right to require that the fire be extinguished.
(13)A garden hose or other means of extinguishment must be present and readily

accessible at all times.
a. Prescribed burns. Prescribed burns may be conducted in order to control invasive

weeds, grasses, and brush for the purpose of restoring native prairie plant species and
improving wildlife habitat, with the following conditions and restrictions:
(1) Prescribed burns shall be conducted only by a professional environmental

consulting or engineering firm demonstrating adequate proof of insurance, and with
the approval of the fire chief.

(2) Prescribed burn requests shall be evaluated and approved or denied on a case-by­
case basis at the sole discretion of the fire chief, after consideration of geographic
location, present condition, and potential impact on adjoining properties,
structures, and roadways.

2) Permissible burning (permit not required).
a. Grills:

(1) For other than one- and two-family dwellings, no hibachi, grill, or similar devices
used for cooking, heating, or any other purpose shall be used or kindled on any
balcony, under any overhanging portion, or within 10 ft (3m) of any structure.

(2) For other than one- and two-family dwellings, no hibachi, grill, or other similar
devices used for cooking shall be stored on a balcony.

(3) Listed equipment permanently installed in accordance with its listing, applicable
codes, and manufacturer's instructions shall be permitted.

(4) Electric grills shall be permitted to be used and stored on balconies, provided that
they are UL-listed and intended for outdoor use; and provided they are left
uncovered so as to be readily identified as meeting the requirements of this code.

c Recreational fires:
(1) Portable fire puts shall not be used or kindled on any combustible surface, balcony,

or under any overhanging portion; or within 25 feet of any structure unless
contained in an approved manner.

(2) Total fire area shall not exceed three feet in diameter and two feet in height.
(3) Only dry firewood may be burned; burning of yard waste, construction materials, or

other refuse is prohibited.
(4) Recreational fires shall be attended at all times by a competent person at least 16

years old, who has obtained permission of the property owner.
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(5) Flammable or combustible liquids shall not be used to ignite the fire.
(6) Smoke shall not be a nuisance to neighbors or public roads.

D. Christmas tree sales. For the purpose of this subsection, the following minimum standards shall
apply to the storage, handling, and display of live Christmas trees and foliage: *??*
1) Trees and foliage shall be stacked not closer than 10 feet to any gasoline pump or other

device for the transfer of petroleum products.
2) Aisles or clear spaces of not less than three feet shall be maintained at all times.
3) A fire extinguisher with a 2A4-10BC rating or greater shall be provided by the merchant for

each 75 feet of travel display and/or storage area.
4) All storage and sales of live Christmas trees and foliage shall be held outside of buildings.

E. Blasting.
1) Blasting shall comply with Chapter SPS 305.20 of the Wisconsin Administrative Code.
2) The fire department shall be notified a minimum of seven (7) days prior to blasting

operatons.
3) The AHJ reserves the right to re-inspect the project site at any time to ensure public safety.
4) No blasting materials may be accumulated or stored on site.
5) Exemptions: Persons or entities engaging in the active operation of quarrying activities, as a

legal, nonconforming, permissive or special use of land, prior to the effective date of this
chapter, shall be exempt from the permit requirement hereunder.

F. Outdoor, ordinary combustible-fired or fuel furnaces. An outdoor wood-fired furnace shall not
be installed or used within the City.

§133-15. Flammable, combustible, and hazardous materials.
A. Storage of flammable, combustible and hazardous materials for all occupancy types shall comply

with Chapter 60 of the version of NFPA 1 that is currently adopted by reference by the
Wisconsin Administrative Code.

B. Flammable, combustible and hazardous materials shall be identified in accordance with NFPA
704.

§133-16. Fire inspection fees.
A. A fire inspection fee shall be charged to the property owner and/or property occupant, jointly

and severally, and respectively for each part or portion of a building, structure or premises
subject to a separate zoning compliance permit and/or a separate occupancy permit, including
for each return or repeat inspection of each building, structure, and premises or part or portion
thereof.

B. The annual fee shall constitute a special charge against the property inspected and shall be
entered upon the tax roll as a charge against the property unless previously paid, and all
proceedings in relation to the collection, return, and sale of the property for delinquent real
estate taxes shall apply to the collection of any unpaid inspection fees.
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C. The fee for the required fire inspections shall be charged to and paid by the owners of
multifamily residential property, med use property, commercial property, industrial property,
health-care-facility property, schools, churches and other places of worship, child day-care
centers, rooming houses, community-based residential facility property, adult-family-home
property, adult-day-care facility property, nursing home property and assisted living property.
Inspection fees to be charged and paid under this section shall be in the amount of $20 for an
inspection which does not exceed 20 minutes in duration; $30 for an inspection which does not
exceed 40 minutes in duration; $40 for each inspection which does not exceed 60 minutes in
duration; and $40 pro rata for each portion of an inspection hour in addition to and immediately
following an initial hour of inspection. Total inspection fees charged to any single property or
facility shall not exceed $500 mn a calendar year.

D. Should re-inspections be necessary for any purpose, the base fee for all re-inspections shall be
$75 for any portion of an hour, however this fee shall be waived if all conditions and violations
have been corrected and the building and/or space is in full compliance with the requirements
of this code.

§133-17. Fees.
A. Fees shall be established for permits shall be payable to the municipality. Fees are subject to

change.
B. Permit fees. The fees established in Table 133-17A apply to permits required by this code.

Table 133-17A

Permit Fee
Bonfires $50 per fire
Open Burning $15 per year
Blasting $100 per project
Fireworks $50 per event
Addition, alteration, or removal of 1-20 $50 per project
sprinkler heads or alarm components to an
existing system
Installation of any fire protection system; $100 per project; in addition to any plan
including fire sprinkler, fire alarm, wet review and inspection fees charged by
chemical, clean agent, water mist, or other authorized third party contracted plan review

consultant

§133-18. Violations and penalties.
A. Any person who violates any of the provisions of this code, or who fails to comply with any

order made hereunder, or who builds in violation of any detailed statement of specifications or
plans submitted and conditionally approved hereunder, or any certificate or permit herein from
which no such appeal has been taken, or who fails to comply with such an order as affirmed or
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modified by a court of competent jurisdiction within the time fixed herein, shall for each and
every violation and noncompliance be subject to the following:

B. Imposition by forfeiture of no more than $500 per day by the Municipal Court.
C. Imposition of a penalty for each such violation shall not excuse the violation or permit it to

continue, and such violations or defects shall be corrected or remedied within the time stated in
the order. Each and every day that a violation of this code occurs constitutes a separate
offense.

D. False alarms. If the fire department responds to three or more false alarms in one calendar year,
the Fire Department may:
1) Fine the building owner or occupant the amount as per City of Franklin $76-7 to reimburse

the Fire Department for the cost of equipment and personnel that was used to respond to
the alarm.

2) Require that the fire alarm be serviced, upgraded or replaced to bring the alarm system into
compliance with current code in order to prevent future false alarms.

E. Any contractor that begins installation and/or alteration of any system regulated by this code
prior to obtaining the required permit will be charged a triple fee.

§133-19. Appeals.
A. Whenever the AHJ shall disapprove on application or refuse to grant a permit applied for, or

when it is claimed that the provision of this code does not apply or that the true intent and
meaning of this Code has been misconstrued or wrongly interpreted, the applicant may appeal
the decision of the AHJ.

B. Appeals shall be submitted, in writing, to the Chief of the Fire Department for a review of the
initial determination within 30 days from the date of the decision of the AHJ.

C. All appeals shall follow Wisconsin Statute Chapter 68, Municipal Administrative Procedure.
D. Whenever the Fire Official shall disapprove an application or refuse to grant a license or permit

applied for, or when it is clammed that the provisions of this chapter do not apply or the true
intent and meaning of this section have been misconstrued or wrongly interpreted, the
applicant may appeal the decision of the Fire Official to the Board of Zoning and Building.

SECTION 2:

SECTION 3:

SECTION 4:

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances mn contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its
passage and publication of a notice thereof within 15 days of passage
pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 62.11(4)(a), and 120 days from and after the
date ofpublication pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 101.02(7r)(c)4.
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Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of2021, by Alderman _

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---
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APPROVALco
Reports and

Recommendations

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

APPROVAL ANDACCEPTANCE OF SECOND
(Years 6-10) DRUG-FREE COMMUNITY GRANT

CYCLE

and
APPROVAL FORTHE CITY OF FRANKLIN TO
CONTINUE TO SERVE AS THE FISCAL AGENT
FORTHE DRUG-FREE COMMUNITY GRANT

and
APPROVAL OF MEMORANDUM OF

UNDERSTANDING BETWEENVOLITION
FRANKLINAND THE CITYOF FRANKLIN

MEETING DATE
05/04/2021

ITEM NUMBER

Background: In September of 2016 and with Common Council support the Health Department
accepted the Drug-Free Communities Grant on behalf of Volition Franklin (formally known as
Franklin Area Parents and Students United). The Drug Free Communities grant is a 10-year
grant that runs on two 5-year cycles, with awardees required to submit a competing
continuation application prior to year six of funding. The grant application specifies that the
City of Franklin will continue to serve as the fiscal agent for the Drug-Free Community Grant
which will be administered by the Health Department.

Analysis: Volition Franklin has been a committed coalition in the Franklin community for
over 10 years and has actively worked to reduce the threat of alcohol, marijuana, tobacco, and
prescription drug misuse in Franklin, particularly amongst our youth. Through donation of in­
kind services and relationships with community partners, Volition Franklin has brought over
$1,000,000 to the City of Franklin which goes directly towards furthered youth prevention and
health promotion activities. With continued municipal support, Volition Franklin can continue
prevention activities and further promote a safe and healthy community.

Options:
1. Approve Volition Franklin's competing continuation application for the Drug-Free

Community grant and accept the Drug Free Community grant award (if granted)
2. Decline Volition Franklin's competing continuation application for the Drug-Free

Community grant and do not accept the Drug Free Community grant

Recommendation: The Director of Health and Human Services recommends approval of the
Drug-Free Community competing continuation application, acceptance of the Drug-Free
Community Grant (if granted), approval for the City to continue to serve as the fiscal agent of
the grant, and approval of the Memorandum of Understanding between Volition Franklin and
the City of Franklin.

Fiscal Note: The second grant cycle is for the budget period 09/30/2021 -09/29/2026 and the
project period of 09/30/2016-09/29/2026. Each year of the 5-year project period the City of
Franklin can be awarded $125,000 for the progress in the Drug-Free Community grant work



plan. The City will serve as the fiscal agent for the grant and the Health Department will
partner with Volition Franklin in fulfilling the contractual grant obligations.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

The Director of Health and Human Services requests a motion (1) to approve Volition Franklin's
competing continuation application for the second 5-year cycle of the Drug-Free Community Grant,
(2) to accept the Drug Free Community grant award (if granted) and (3) to approve a Memorandum
of Understanding between Volition Franklin and the City of Franklin outlining expectations to fulfil
contractual grant obligations.

E. Henry



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

AnOrdinance to Amend §§22-3A. and B. of the
Municipal Code Pertaining to Municipal Court

Stipulations and Deposits to Update Same with regard to
References to the Wisconsin Statutes Provisions, and a
Deposit Schedule for non-Police Department (Health,

Inspection, Fire, Engineering and City
Development [Planning]) Citations

MEETING
DATE

May 4, 2021

ITEM NUMBER

G.7.

Attached is a copy of a draft of the above-entitled ordinance. Also attached is a copy of a memo from the
Municipal Court Judge setting the amount of $500.00 for a bond deposit for non-Police Department (Health,
Inspection, Fire, Engineering and City Development [Planning]) citations, for which there previously had been
no deposit amount. Municipal Court staff has been experiencing an increase in these citations non-appearances
by persons cited and recommends the proposed citation bond amount to improve such circumstances.
Additionally, below is a motion to approve the Deposit Schedule amount for a citation issued pursuant to
Municipal Code Ch. 80 Animals, Article V Possession ofwild animals, as enforcement and citations thereunder
may be performed and issued by the Police Department and non-Police Departments, which is also included in
the memo from the Municipal Court Judge.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt An Ordinance to Amend §§22-3A. and B. of the Municipal Code Pertaining to Municipal
Court Stipulations and Deposits to Update Same with regard to References to the Wisconsin Statutes
Provisions;

and

A motion to approve the Deposit Schedule for non-Police Department (Health, Inspection, Fire, Engineering
and City Development [Planning]) issued citations, pursuant to the Municipal Court Judge memo dated April
27, 2021;

and

A motion to approve the Deposit Schedule for violations of Municipal Code Ch. 80 Animals, Article V
Possession ofwild animals, citations, pursuant to the Municipal Court Judge memo dated April 27, 2021.

Legal Services Dept.: jw, EMB



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
Draft 4/27/21

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND §§22-3A. AND B. OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE
PERTAINING TO MUNICIPAL COURT STIPULATIONS AND DEPOSITS TO
UPDATE SAME WITH REGARD TO REFERENCES TO THE WISCONSIN

STATUTES PROVISIONS

WHEREAS, §§22-3A. and B. of the Municipal Code as it pertains to stipulations and
deposits for Municipal Court matters provides citations of Wisconsin Statutes provisions
which over time have been repealed or amended and Municipal Court staff having
recommended that such Code provisions be amended accordingly to provide current citations
pertaining to the Municipal Court stipulations and deposits process; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the recommendation and
having determined same to be reasonable and in the public interest.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1:

SECTION 2:

§§22-3A. and B. of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, are hereby amended to read as follows [note deletons appear mn
strke-through text, addtons appear n double-underlned text, unchanged text s not
highlighted]:

A. Deposit schedule to be established. The Municipal Judge shall
establish and submit to the City Council for approval, in accordance
with § 800.03(3)800.037, Wis. Stats., a schedule of deposits for
violations of City ordinances, resolutions and bylaws, except traffic
regulations, which are governed by § 345.26, Wis. Stats., and boating
violations governed by § 23.67, Wis. Stats. When approved by the
Council, such deposit schedule shall be posted in the office of the
Municipal Court Clerk and the City Police Department.
B. Stipulation and deposit in lieu of court appearance. Persons cited for
violations of City ordinances, resolutions or bylaws for which a deposit
has been established under this section shall be permitted to make a
stipulation of no contest and a deposit in lieu of court appearance as
provided in $$ 800.03800.037, 800.04800.035 and 800.09, Wis. Stats.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.



ORDINANCE NO. 2020­
Page 2

SECTION 3:

SECTION 4:

All ordinances and parts of ordinances m contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its
passage and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
___ day of , 2021, by Alderman _

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of> 2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT­



City of Franklin Municipal Court
9455West Loomis Road, Franklin, W153132
Phone: 414-425-4768 • Fax: 414-858-2625

FrederickF. Klimetz, Municipal CourtJudge

April 27, 2021

TO: Franklin Health Department, Franklin Inspection Department, Franklin Fire Department,
Franklin Engineering Department, Franklin Planning Department& Franklin Police Department

RE: CITATION BONDAMOUNT PROCEDURES

Upon the approval of the Common Council, the Office of the Municipal Court Clerk shall begin
processing non-Police Department (Health, Inspection, Fire, Engineering, Planning) citations which show
a mandatory court appearance (date/time) and which show a bond deposit amount of $500.00. The
Municipal Court Clerk will no longer accept nor file any of the affected department citations issued with a
$0.00 bond deposit or with a "blank" bond deposit.

RE: POSSESSION OFWILDANIMALS BONDAMOUNT

Upon the approval of the Common Council, the bond deposit amount for violations of Franklin
Municipal Code Ch. 80 Animal-Article V, Possession ofWild Animals shall be set at $500.00.

Sincerely,

FRANKLIN MUNICIPAL COURT

Frederick F. Klimetz
Municipal Judge



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCENO. 2020-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
Draft 4/27/21

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND §§22-3A. AND B. OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE
PERTAINING TO MUNICIPAL COURT STIPULATIONS AND DEPOSITS TO
UPDATE SAME WITH REGARD TO REFERENCES TO THE WISCONSIN

STATUTES PROVISIONS

WHEREAS, §§22-3A. and B. of the Municipal Code as it pertains to stipulations and
deposits for Municipal Court matters provides citations of Wisconsin Statutes provisions
which over time have been repealed or amended and Municipal Court staff having
recommended that such Code provisions be amended accordingly to provide current citations
pertaining to the Municipal Court stipulations and deposits process; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the recommendation and
having determined same to be reasonable and in the public interest.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1:

SECTION 2:

§§22-3A. and B. of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, are hereby amended to read as follows [note deletions appear m
strke-through text, addtons appear mn double-underlined text, unchanged text s not
highlighted]:

A. Deposit schedule to be established. The Municipal Judge shall
establish and submit to the City Council for approval, in accordance
with § 800.03(3)800.037, Wis. Stats., a schedule of deposits for
violations of City ordinances, resolutions and bylaws, except traffic
regulations, which are governed by § 345.26, Wis. Stats., and boating
violations governed by § 23.67, Wis. Stats. When approved by the
Council, such deposit schedule shall be posted in the office of the
Municipal Court Clerk and the City Police Department.
B. Stipulation and deposit in lieu of court appearance. Persons cited for
violations of City ordinances, resolutions or bylaws for which a deposit
has been established under this section shall be permitted to make a
stipulation of no contest and a deposit in lieu of court appearance as
provided in§§ 800.03800.037, 800.04800.035 and 800.09, Wis. Stats.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-
Page 2

SECTION 3:

SECTION 4:

All ordinances and parts of ordinances m contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its
passage and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of2021, by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of°2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT­



APPROVAL
l)

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER §13-4 OF
THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO PROVIDE FOR

PUBLICATION OF BUDGET AMENDMENTS ON
THE CITY WEBSITE IN CONFORMANCE WITH

STATE STATUTE §65.90(5)

MEETING DATE
Mat 4, 2021

ITEM NUMBER

Background
Currently Franklin's Municipal code $13-4 requires the "publication within 10 days thereafter in the
Official City Newspaper" after adoption of a budget amendment.

State Statutes were amended to require a budget amendment notice:

Shall publish either a class 1 notice of the changes, under ch 985, within 15 days after any
change is made or post a notice of the changes on the municipality's website within 15 days
after any change is made. [emphasis added]

Franklin spent $2,858 in 2019 and $1,216 in 2020 publishing budget amendment notices in the
Official newspaper. Rarely, if ever, is there any feedback on those publication notices.

The City maintains a page dedicated to the City Budget. To publish any budget amendment notices
to that page would provide a clear link between the Adopted Budget (and its details) to any changes
made to that budget for all the public to see.
It is unclear what the Franklin circulation is of the Official Newspaper to Franklin residents. However,
folks interested in the City financial information can obtain a wealth of budget and actual financial results
by consulting the city website. Posting budget amendments would further serve that transparency.

Analysis

Amending the Municipal code to comply with the State Statutes would provide the flexibility the City
needs to reduce cost and become more transparent.

Recommendation

Staff recommends adopting the proposed amendment to the Municipal Code.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion adopting An ordinance to amend Chapter $13-4 of the Municipal Code to provide for
publication of budget amendments on the city website in conformance with State Statute
§65.90(5)

Finance Dept - Paul



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2021­

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
draft 4/26/21

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE MUNICIPAL CODE $13-4 CHANGES IN
BUDGET; PUBLIC NOTICE, TO PROVIDE NOTICE OF A CITY BUDGET

AMENDMENT ON THE CITY WEBSITE

WHEREAS, Wis. Stat. § 65.90(5)(a) was amended by 2019 Wis. Act 42 to in part
provide that in lieu of the publication of a budget amendment ordinance as a class 1 notice
within the official municipality newspaper, the notice of the amendment may be made by
way of "post a notice of the changes on the municipality's website within 15 days after any
change is made"; and

WHEREAS, the Department of Finance and Treasury having recommended an
amendment to the Municipal Code accordingly, having considered the costs of official
newspaper publications and the City website being an appropriate and readily accessible
method of communication to the public; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having reviewed such proposed Ordinance and
having determined same to be reasonable and in the public interest.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1:

SECTION 2:

$13-4 Changes in budget; public notice, of the Municipal Code of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, is hereby amended to read as follows:
"The amount of the tax to be levied or certified, the amounts of the
various appropriations and the purposes thereof shall not be changed
after approval of the budget except by a two-thirds vote of the
members-elect of the City Council. Notice of such transfer shall be
given by publication by either a class 1 notice of the changes, under
Wis. Stat. Ch. 985, in the Official City Newspaper within 15 days after
any change is made or by posting a notice of the changes on the City's
website within 15 days after any change is made. In this subsection,
"members-elect" has the meamng given m Wis. Stat. §
66.10015(1 )(bs).

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-
Page 2

SECTION 3: All ordinances and parts of ordinances m contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 4: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage
and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2021, by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---
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9.
REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2020-
2453, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2021
ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE GENERAL AND

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUNDS TO
CARRYFORWARD $350,000 CITY WIDE
SECURITY APPROPRIATIONS AND

RECLASSIFYING $6,600 OF CONTINGENCY
APPROPRIATIONS TO PARK EXPENDITURES

MEETING DATE
May 4, 2021

ITEM NUMBER

Background
On December 15, 2020, the Council approved a request to carry forward $350,000 of the 2020 Capital
Improvement fund project for city wide security improvements. The project was delayed due to several
factors including the change in Director of Administration and the pandemic.
On March 2, 2021, Common Council authorized upto a $6,600 expenditure from General Fund
Contingency for environmental consulting services related to a proposed dog park. Those
expenditures are more appropriately categorized as Park Expenditures.
Analysis
The 2020 project was to be funded by a transfer from the General Fund. The General Fund had a
$565,000 surplus in 2020 and fund balance exceeded the upper end policy of 30% of General Fund
expenditures.

Unassigned General Fund balance at Dec 31, 2020 exceeded 2020 expenditures by $778,000. A
$350,000 transfer out would use less than half the excess General Fund balance.

Recommendation

Staff recommends adoption of the proposed 2021 budget amendment providing for:
• Transferring $6,600 of Contingency appropriations to Park Non-personnel appropriations
• Transferring out of General Fund $350,000 to the Capital Improvement Fund
• Carrying forward a $350,000 2020 appropriation for city wide security improvements in the

Capital Improvement fund.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion adopting an Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2020-2453, an Ordinance adopting the 2021
annual budgets for the General Fund and Capital Improvement Fund to carryforward $350,000
city wide security appropriations and reclassifying $6,600 of contingency appropriations to park
expenditures

Roll Call Vote Required
Finance Dept - Paul



STATE OFWISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCENO. 2021---

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2020-2453, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2021 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR THE GENERAL AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
FUNDS TO CARRYFORWARD $350,000 CITYWIDE SECURITYAPPROPRIATIONS
AND RECLASSIFYING $6,600 OF CONTINGENCYAPPROPRIATIONS TO PARK

EXPENDITURES

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted the 2021 Annual
Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 17, 2020; and

WHEREAS, on December 15, 2020 the Common Council directed that $350,000 of
uncompleted citywide security project expenditures be carryforward to the 2021 Capital
Improvement Fund with a transfer out of the General Fund as resources; and

WHEREAS, on March 2, 2021 the Common Council authorized the use ofup to $6,600 of
General Fund contingency appropriations for environmental consulting services for a potential dog
park that are better classified as Park expenditures.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1 That the 2021 Budget for the General Fund be amended as follows:

Contingency
Park Non-Personnel
Transfers Out

Decreased
Increased
Increased

$6,600
$6,600

$350,000

Section 2 That the 2021 Budget for the Capital Improvement Fund be amended as follows:

Transfers In
Muni Bldg Capital

Increased
Increased

$350,000
$350,000

Section 3 Pursuant to §65.90(5)(a), Wis. Stats., the City Clerk is directed to publish a Class 1
notice of this budget amendment within ten days of adoption of this ordinance.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of2021.

APPROVED:

Stephen R Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:



Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



APPROVAL

S
REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Request to Authorize Carry Forward of Unused 2020
Appropriations, for Use in 2021, in the Amount of$549,900

MNUMBER

G/}.
The following items, included in the 2020Budget, are being requested for carryover into 2021, so that the
initiatives may be completed in2021 with the authorized 2020 budgeted funds:

1) Initiative: WebsiteRedevelopment
Amount: $20,000
Account: 41-0144-5843, Capital Outlay Fund-Information Services, Software
Reason: Staff is requesting carryoverof these funds to make improvements to the website including:
the addition of anurgent alertmessage panel, the addition of a banner allowing for rotating images,
the expansion of authors and editors for the site to be able to improve managing content and keeping
data fresh, addition of subscriptionmanagement to allow interested parties to sign up for notifications
of website information, training on the Google Analytics functionality, some auditing for content and
accessibility, reorganizationof pages, and other improvements as needed.

2) Initiative: KenWindl PavilionRepairs
Amount: $65,000
Account: 41-0551-5822, Capital OutlayFund-Parks, Building Improvements
Reason: Staff is requesting to carryover $65,000 for this initiative that hasbeen needed for some time,
andwas approved andbudgeted in2020. With the Buildings and Facilities Surveybeing scheduled
and completed in 2020, this project was delayed. The project did receive a high priority rating, as
needing to be completed as soon as possible, in the survey results.

3) Initiative: Inspections Limited-Term Temporary Help
Amount: $78,300
Account: 01-0231-XX0X, General Fund-Inspection Services, Various Payroll Accounts
Reason: Staff is requesting to carryover $78,300 to preserve the optionof hiring limited-term temporary
help for the Director of Inspection Services to use and assign as needed. This includes various,
appropriately-licensed, commonly-retired individuals to supplement our response in the Department. The
Director has access to individualswilling to do the workon such a part-time, on-call basis. This provides
additional flexibility to address peak demands. These funds have been carried over in previous years, used
sparingly, andwill notbe replacedwhen spent.

4) Initiative: Merit Pay Pool
Amount $36,600
Account: 01-XXXX-XXXX, General Fund-Various Functions, Appropriate Payroll Accounts
Reason: Staff is requesting to carryover the $36,600 that was budgeted for 2020, to be used for
merit increases, and was not spent due to not having developed the merit plan in 2020. As
discussed at budget time, the classification and compensation plan that was approved and
implemented approximately five years ago, includes a merit element that allows employees to
achieve placement over the 65% level in their pay grade; however, no merit plan has been
developed to date, which is creating an issue with retention as employees progress in their
positions. Since the $36,600 was budgeted for this purpose, and remains unused due to the
absence of a functioningmerit plan, staff did not include additional funds in the 2021 Budget for
this purpose. This carry over will allow the implementation of the merit portion of the pay plan
onl after such Ian is a rovedb the Council.



5) Initiative: Security Improvements »
Amount: $350,000
Account: 46-XXXX-XXXX, Capital Improvement Fund-Various Functions, Various Accounts
Reason: Staff is requesting to carryover $350,000 of the $500,000 that was budgeted in 2020 for
citywide security improvements. This initiative is just getting kicked off inQuarter 4 of 2020, with
information gathering and research being done, the actual improvementswill be completed in 2021.
There are a number of needed improvements, including: cameras, interior and exterior; door access
control; alarm availability, access, andmanagement; electronic timekeeping; hallway safety; security
glass; an emergencyplan; training; and other related improvements as needed, While this initiative
was originally planned for deficit spending in 2020, staff is working to ensure that the use of fund
balance is kept to a minimum. However, since the $350,000will likelynot suffice for all needed
improvements, staff will monitor the year endnumbers and consider an additional request depending
on the project needs, available funding, and otherCity priorities.

As noted above, each of the detailed initiatives was part of the authorized 2020 budget that was not able to be
completed during the year, so the request is being made to carry the initiatives forward into 2021 so that the
funds canbe used during 2021 for the same purpose and samemanner as previously authorized.

Please note the following in regard to funding of each of the above enumerated initiatives: Items 1 and 2 are
already fully funded in the Capital Outlay Fund; Items 3 and 4 are expected to be covered in full by available
funds in the General Fund; and for Item 5, although the entire project was slated for deficit spending (i.e.
using fund balance), this initiative will be funded first by available funds in the General Fund, which will be
transferred to the Capital Improvement Fund, before a request is made for Council to consider utilizing fund
balance.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to authorize the carry forward of unused 2020 appropriations, for use in 2021, in the amount of
$549,900, and direct the Director of Finance and Treasurer to prepare a 2021 Budget modification for the
same, for Council consideration.

DOA-PS



Common Council Meeting
March 2, 2021
Page 4

BUDGETS FOR CIP
AND SANITARY
SEWER

RFP FOR AUDITING G.14.
AND ACCOUNTING
FOR 2021-2025

ORD. 2021-2459 G.15
COVID-19
CONTINGENCY
APPROPRIATIONS

ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 202 l ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR
THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND SANITARY SEWER
FUNDS TO REMOVE ENCUMBRANCE APPROPRIATIONS FOR
2020 FOR LATE ARRIVING INVOICES CHARGED TO 2020
OPERATIONS Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman On roll call,
all voted Aye. Motion can ied.

Alderwoman Wtlhelm moved to authorize a Request for Proposal on
auditmg and other accountmg services for the City of Franklin for
calendar years 2021 through 2025 with an option for two additional
years Seconded by Alderwoman Hanneman. All approved Aye,
motion carried.

Alderwoman Hanneman moved to adopt Ordmance No. 2021-2459,
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 2019-2398, AN
ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2020 ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR
THE GENERAL FUND, CAPITAL OUTLAY, GRANT, DEBT
SERVICE, TID 5, TID 6 AND TID 7 TO ALIGN COVID-19
CONTINGENCY APPROPRIATIONS WITH ACTUAL 2020
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER 2020 BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS.
Seconded by Alderman Dandrea On roll call, all voted Aye. Moton
carried.

FIBER NETWORK

SIGMA GROUP
AGMT-DOG PARK
CONSULTING
SERVICES

VOUCHERS AND
PAYROLL

G.16.

G.17.

I.

Alderman Barbe1 moved to authorize an "Evaluation to Determine the
Feasibility of Establishing a Fiber Network to Access Internet Services
for City of Franklin Business Operations, Including the Possibility of
Additional Infrastructure to Serve the Community", awarding this
phase of the project to Multimedia Communications & Engineering, at
a cost not to exceed $12,567, and authorize the Director of
Administration to execute the appropriate, related contracts as needed
as well as take app10priate action to execute such agreement.
Seconded by Alderman Nelson. All voted Aye; motion canied.

Alderwoman Wilhelm moved to enter into an agreement with The
Sigma Group, Inc. for environmental consulting services (potent1al dog
park) for a not to exceed fee of $6,600 with funding provided by the
General Fund Contingency Account Seconded by Alderman Nelson
All voted Aye, motion carried

Alderman Dandrea moved to approve the following: City vouchers
with an ending elate of March 1, 2021 in the amount of $4,294,582.50,
Payroll dated February 26, 2021 m the amount of $405,140 38 and
payments of the various payroll deductions in the amount of
$464,862 23 plus City matclung payments; Estunatecl payroll dated
March 12, 2021 in the amount of $398,000 00 and payments of the
various payroll deductions mn the amount of $269,000, plus City
matching payments, Property Tax disbursements with an endmng date



APPROVAL

cho
REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Resolution Declaring Official Intent to
Reimburse Expenditures from Proceeds of

Borrowing

MEETING DATE
May 4, 2021

ITEM NUMBER

Background
The 2021 Budget includes debt proceeds for several issues, $2 million for capital programs, $3
million for a water tower, $3 million for replacing a lift station in the industrial park. Debt issues of $3
million for TID6 and $6 million in TID8 are included in the 2021 Budget, however don't require any
action at this time. Projects to be financed by the debt issues will be initiated at various times of the
year, while the actual debt issues likely will be scheduled in 03 or 04 of 2021. The debt issues will
combined where practical to minimize debt issuance costs.

City 2021 capital programs anticipated a $2 million Debt issue to provide resources for approved
projects. Attached is a list of capital projects in the 2021 Capital Outlay and Capital Improvement
Funds that would be financed with the $2 million debt issue.

Analysis
The Common Council could adopt a Declaration of Intent to reimburse expenditures from debt
proceeds to protect any projects initiated prior to the debt sale using current funds on hand.

Prior to the Debt Sale, the projects would use available City cash reserves to finance expenditures.
Because the City Financing will take advantage of tax-exempt provisions of the internal Revenue
Code, the City must declare its intent to reimburse itself for projects expenditures incurred prior to the
Debt sale.

The projects will require expenditures at different times, some before the debt proceeds will become
available:

• City capital projects in the 2021 Capital Outlay and Capital Improvement Funds.
• Replacing the lift station in the Industrial park - $3.2 million
• A $6 million water tower project on Highway 100 and St Martin's Road.

Recommendation

The Director of Finance & Treasurer recommends the Common Council adopts the proposed
Resolution, declaring its intent to reimburse the City from proceeds for expenditures on the
projects prior to the debt sale.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion adopting Resolution 2019- A Resolution declaring official intent to reimburse
expenditures from proceeds of borrowing.

Finance Dept - Paul



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2021­

RSOLUTION DECLARING OFFICIAL INTENT TO REIMBURSE EXPENDITURES FROM
PROCEEDS OF BORROWING

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin (the "Issuer") plans to
undertake the 2021 Capital program for the City for $2 million of projects in the Capital Outlay
and Capital Improvement Funds combined with a $6 million Water Tower project and replacement
of the Industrial Park Lift Station for $3 million (the 'Projects"); and

WHEREAS, the City expects to finance the Projects on a long-term basis by issuing tax­
exempt notes or other obligations (collectively, the "Notes"); and

WHEREAS, because the Notes will not be issued prior to commencement of the Project,
the Issuer must provide interim financing to cover costs of the Project incurred prior to receipt of
the proceeds of the Notes; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the Issuer deems it to be necessary, desirable, and in
the best interests of the Issuer to advance moneys from its funds on and on an interim basis to pay
the costs of the Projects until the Notes are issued.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin that:

Section 1. Expenditure of Funds. The Issuer shall make expenditures as needed from its
funds on hand to pay the cost of the Projects until proceeds of the Notes become available.

Section 2. Declaration of Official Intent. The Issuer hereby officially declares its intent
under Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-2 to reimburse said expenditures with proceeds of the
Notes, the principal amount ofwhich is not expected to exceed $11 million.

Section 3. Unavailability of Long-Term Funds. No funds for payment of the Project from
sources other than the Notes are, or are reasonably expected to be, reserved, allocated on a long­
term basis, or otherwise set aside by the Issuer pursuant to its budget or financial policies.

Section 4. Public Availability of Official Intent Resolution. The Resolution shall be made
available for public inspection at the office of the Issuer's Clerk within 30 days after its approval
in compliance with applicable State law governing the availability of records of official acts
including Subchapter II of Chapter 19, and shall remain available for public inspection until the
Notes are issued.

Section 5. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective upon its adoption and
approval.



Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of__, 2021.

Passed at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this day
of , 2021.---

APPROVED:

Stephen R Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



City Of Franklin WI
Capital Outlay Fund
2021 by Dept
Where no priorities are listed, none provided by requester

Priority Requested Adopted
Clerk - 141
Laptop - replacement 1 1,000

Total Clerk - 141 1,000

Information Services Dept - 144
Unexpected Hardware Replacements 6,000 5,000
Server & SAN Warranty Extensions 21,600 21,500
Disk Upgrade for VMWare Servers 12,500 12,500
Unexpected Software Upgrades/Replacement 6,000 5,000

Total Information Services Dept - 144 46,100 44,000

Administration Dept - 147
Computer Equipment 4,000 0

Administration Dept - 147 4,000

Municipal Buildings - 181
Meeting Room Chair Replacement - Remainder 1 6,200 6,200
HVAC Equipment Replacement - North Section City Hall 2 8,000
Landscaping/Tree Replacement 3 8,000 5,000

Total Municipal Buildings Dept - 181 22,200 11,200

Total General Government 73,300 55,200

4/26/20212:04 PM



City Of Franklin WI
Capital Outlay Fund
2021 by Dept
Where no priorities are listed, none provided by requester

Priority Requested Adopted
Police Dept - 211
Ballistic Body Armor (14} - replacement 1 11,500 11,500
Squad Cars and Related Equipment (5)- replacement 2 352,000 352,000
Taser X2 Units & Holsters (5)- replacement 3 10,600 10,600
Portable Radios (5)- replacement 4 26,400 26,400
Squad Tablet (5)- replacement 5 31,200 31,200
Un interruptible Power System (1)- replacement 6 25,000
Digital Forensics Oriented Computer Work Station (1)- new 7 6,200
Laptop Computer (1)- new 8 1,400
ASP Talon Disc Lock Batons (15) - replacement 9 2,600
40mm Single Shot Launcher (2)- new 10 2,200
Squad Video System (4)- replacement 11 23,500 23,500
SWAT Rifles (10)- replacement 12 27,600
SWAT Communications & Ballistic Helmets (11)- replacement 13 21,200
Preliminary Breath Test Units (2)- replacement 14 900
Digital Cameras & Cases (7), Memory Cards & SD Card 15 5,600
Drone Batteries (2) - new 16 600
SWAT Recon Robotics Throwbot 2 Base Kit (1)- new 17 18,000
Pet Microchip Reader (1)- replacement 18 500
Police Mountain Bikes (2)- replacement 19 2,900
Field Training Software - new 20 6,400
Smart Board (1)- new 21 600

Total Police Dept - 211 576,900 455,200
Fire Dept - 221
Structural Turnout Gear (5 sets & 2 coat/pants only) 1 25,785 25,785
Hurst E-Draulic Cambi-Tool 2 13,550 13,550
Inspection Office Buildout 3 20,000 20,000
Laptop Computers (3)- replacement 4 2,550

Fire Station #1 Masonry Repair and Window Replacement 5 105,000 105,000
Misc Replacement of Furnishings 6 3,000
Blow-Hard Battery-Powered Ventilation Fan 7 4,390
Plymo-Vent Magnetic Grabber Boots - replace 5 @ St 1 8 15,750
Stihl Gas-Powered Rotary Saw 9 1,500

Total Fire Dept - 221 191,525 164,335

Total Public Safety 768,425 619,535

4/26/20212:04 PM



City Of Franklin WI
Capital Outlay Fund
2021 by Dept
Where no priorities are listed, none provided by requester

Priority Requested Adopted
Engineering - 321
Misc Furniture 1,000
Digital Camera 500
iPad 750
Misc Adapters, Add-Ons, etc. 500
Blue Beam Revu 500
Seiler TPP Software Maintenance - Trimble Access 700

Total Engineering Dept - 321 3,950

Highway Dept - 331
3/4 ton Pick-up trucks (2) - new 1 99,000 50,000
Track Skid Steer (1) - new 2 85,000 85,000
Stainless Steel V-Box Salt Spreaders (2) - replacement 3 49,000 49,000
Trailer Mounted Message Sign Board (1) - new 4 19,000 19,000
Tilt Bed Trailer (2) - replacement 5 29,000 15,000
Single Axle Plow Trucks (2) - new 6 ** 520,000 270,000
Parking Lot replacement 7 70,000
Trailer Mounted Solar Arrow Board (2) - replacement 8 19,000
Snowblower Attachment (1) - replacement 9 7,600
Sky Lights/Garage Door Openers - replacement - partial work 10 35,000
Various Computer Purchases/Projects - replacement 11 3,000
Floor scrubber (1) - replacement 12 16,000
Street Trees (57), Developer Trees (170)- new 13 39,750 30,000
Fuel Island Fuel Dispenser (1) - replacement 14 23,000 23,000
DPW Exterior Doors - replacement 15 25,000
Truck Mounted Brine Geo Sprayer (1) - replacement, but new 16 19,000
Various Tables & Chairs - replacement 17 3,500
Equipment to Aid in Virtual/Distance Training - new 18 2,500
Misc Equipment attachment replacements 10,000
** One plow to equip staffing request, other one to replace two spare units that are frequently not usable

Total Highway Dept - 331 1,064,350 551,000

Total Public Works 1,068,300 551,000

4/26/20212:04 PM



City Of Franklin WI
Capital Outlay Fund
2021 by Dept
Where no priorities are listed, none provided by requester

Priority Requested Adopted
Culture & Recreation
Parks Dept - 551
96" Zero Turn Mower - new
11' Wide General Parks Mower - new
72" Zero Turn Mower - replacement
Snow Removal Equipment (shared with DPW) (1) - new
Tennis Courts (2) - replacement @ Jack Workman & Lion's
Landscape Trailers (2) - replacements
Misc replacement/new Park Equipment
Trees & Landscaping
Playground Structure Replacement Parts
Lake Ernie Aeration System

Total Parks Dept - 551
Total Culture & Recreation

Conservation & Development
Planning Dept - 621
Comprehensive Master Plan Update
Unified Development Ordinance Reorganization
Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan Update

Total Planning Dept - 621

Total Conservation & Development

Contingency

Total Capital Outlay

Resources

Net Rev (expenditures)

Forecasted Beginning Fund Balance
Ending Fund Balance

1 41,000 41,000
1 97,000 97,000
1 29,000 29,000
2 98,000 60,000
3 130,000 65,000
4 19,000 20,000
5 45,000 40,000
6 4,000 2,000
7 20,000 10,000

77,000 0

560,000 364,000
560,000 364,000

100,000
200,000 150,000
30,000 30,000

330,000 180,000

330,000 180,000

60,000 40,650

2,860,025 1,810,385

1,806,150

(2,860,025) (4,235)

322,711
(2,860,025) 318,476

L \41803 VOLl Finance\BUDGET\2021 Budget\Workmg Files\Cap,tal Requests\[Capital Outlay Requests xlsx]2021 Requests

4/26/20212:04 PM



City of Franklin
Capital Improvement Fund
Budget 2021

Project/Name
Landfill Siting Revenue
Investment Income

Total Revenue

Expenditures
APPROVED PROJECTS

Activity

Adopted

Total Funding Source

5,000

5,000

Amount Net City Funds
$ 51,500

5,000

56,500

PARK DEVELOPMENT
Pleasant View Park ­ Improvements Park 300,000 Park lmoact Fees 141,000 159,000
Park's Signaqe Park 20,000 20,000
116th Street Trail Park Park lmoact Fees -
Church Street pathway Park 75,000 Park Impact Fees 53,250 21,750
Ernie Lake aeration system Park 15,000 15,000
Water Tower Park Improvements Park Park lmoact Fees -

Public Safety
Parking Lot Replacement@ Police Bldg Pub Safetv -
Replace roof@ Police Dept Pub Safety 127,500 127,500
Video Survellance Cameras - replacement
@Police Bldg Pub Safetv 247,000 247,000
911 Phone system - replacement Pub Safety 125,000 125,000

-
PublicWorks -

Marquette Ave construction - 49th to 51st
Street Pub Wrks 186,000 Grant 101,500 84,500
ADA compliance sidewalk improvements PubWrks -
Water Main on W Minnesota Ave Pub Wrks 140,000 Utilitv Develoomen1 140,000 -
Water Tower in Southwest Zone Pub Wrks 4,000,000 Water Impact Fees 2,000,000 2,000,000

Pub Wrks Water Fund 2,000,000 (2,000,000
Highway Building addition - design work Pub Wrks 30,000 30,000
Replace Industral Park temporary Luft PubWrks 3,000,000 sfer in from Sewer 3,000,000 -
Curb replacements Pub Wrks 35,000 35,000
Muni Buildings Improvements 350,000 350,000

Total Approved Projects

PROJECTS PENDING APPROVAL

8,650,500 7,435,750 1,214,750

Water Projects Utilitv 500,000 ater Connecton Fe 500,000 -
Sewer Projects Utility 500,000 ewer Connection Fe 500,000 -

-
Contingency 150,000 150,000

Total Projects Pending Approval

Total Projects

Net Revenue (Expenditures)

Loan Proceeds
Transaction fees

Net Rev (Expenditures)

Projected Beginning Fund balance

Projected Ending Fund Balance

4/26/2021 2 05 PM

9,800,500

Capital Improvement - Project funding xlsx

8,435,750 1,364,750

(1,308,250)

1,458,000
(100,000)
49,750

396,395

$ 446,145



APPROVAL,
Sh)

REPORTS &
RECOMMENDATIONS

Background

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

March, 2021 Monthly Financial Report

MEETING DATE
May 4, 2021

ITEM NUMBER
G,'/.

The March, 2021 Financial Report is attached.

The Finance Committee reviewed this report at its April 27, 2021 meeting and recommends its
acceptance.

The Director of Finance & Treasurer will be available to answer any questions.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Receive and place on file.

Finance - PAR



Date:

To:

From:

Subject:

April 20, 2021

Mayor Olson, Common Council and Finance Committee Members

Paul Rotzenberg, Director of Finance & Treasurer

Mar 2021 Financial Report

The March, 2021 financial reports for the General Fund, Debt Service Fund, TIO Funds, Library
Fund, Tourism Fund, Solid Waste Fund, Capital Outlay Fund, Equipment Replacement Fund,
Street Improvement Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Development Fund, Utility Development,
Sanitary Sewer Fund, Water Utility Fund, Self Insurance Fund, and Post Employment Insurance
Fund are attached.

The budget allocation is completed using an average of the last five years actual spending
against the Original Budget. Caution is advised in that spending patterns may have changed.
Comments on specific and trending results are provided below to aid the reader in
understanding or explaining current year financial results.

Cash & Investments Summary - is provided to aid in understanding the resources available to
meet current activities. Cash & investments are positions with safety and liquidity as primary
objectives as stated in the City's Investment policy. Investment returns are secondary in the
investment decisions, while return potential is not ignored. Cash & Investments in the
Governmental Funds totaling $40.1 million decreased $2.2 million since last month. General
fund payroll requirements were the biggest reason for the reduction.

Cash Balances - Feb & March 2021

I•

$25,000,000

$20,000,000

$15,000,000­

$10,000,000 ­

$5,000,000­

$­
General Debt Serv TIF NonMajor Sewer Water Self Ins Other Tax Fund

■ Current Month , Prior Month



March 2021
Financial report

Investment balances have been reduced at Institutional Capital Management. The yield curve
at the short end has flatten and lowered to the point that bank CD's have become more
attractive. Our relationship with American Deposit Management has provided the environment
to tap the bank CD market. However, in anticipation that the yield curve will steepen, CD's have
been limited to 24 months or less. Two-year Treasuries are yielding 15 bp, while the CD's
generate 79 bp.

GENERAL FUND revenues of $14.5 million are $0.1 million short of budget. Tax collections
were a little slower this year than prior years. Ambulance resources were not available for the
March report. Investment income was less than budget with continued very low rates of return.

Year to Date expenditures of $6.5 million are $138,700 less than budget.

A $8.0 million surplus is even to budget.

DEBT SERVICE - Debt payments were made March 1 as required.

TIF Districts - The TlD's collected the $3.8 million increment in January as expected.

TIO 3- The 2021 increment was collected and the TIO retired $965,000 of debt along
with $1,006,000 Municipal Revenue Obligation payment. The TIO has a $377,000 fund
balance.

TIO 4 - The $1.1 million 2021 increment was collected. $1.2 million of Advances were
repaid. The TIO has a $380,000 deficit related to the $1.3 remaining Advance outstanding.

TIO 5 - The $558,000 2021 Increment was collected. $300,000 of debt service was paid.
The TIO has an $812,000 fund balance related to capitalized interest.

TIO 6 - There is no 2021 Increment. The TIO has a $450,000 fund balance.

TIO 7-There is no activity in TID7 at this time.

TIO 8- There is no activity in TID8 at this time.

LIBRARY FUND- all things are tracking as expected.

TOURISM COMMISSION - Resources are collected in the final quarters of the year. Little
activity has taken place so far this year. The fund has a $376,000 fund balance.

SOLID WASTE FUND-Activity is occurring as budgeted.

CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND- Resources are as expected.

The Police have ordered several squads, and Highway has ordered much of the equipment
budgeted for 2021.

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND - Resources are as expected so far in 2021.



March 2021
Financial report

The Fire department has ordered the radios planned for 2021. The highway department has
begun the snow plow orders.

STREET IMPROVEMENT FUND - There has been little activity in this fund so far in 2021

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND- Resources have not been received as yet.

Most of the expenditures relate to projects started in 2020, most significantly, Marquette Ave
construction The same can be said for park projects.

DEVELOPMENT FUND- The $148,000 of resources relate to new housing starts in Aspen
Woods.

Transfers to Debt Service account for all the use of Public Safety resources. While the park
expenditures relate to commitments to developers on new subdivisions.

There are now $5.0 million of park impact fees and $2.9 million water impact fees on hand.

UTILITY DEVELOPMENT FUND-There has been little activity in this fund in 2021.

SANITARY SEWER FUND - Activity is progressing as planned in this fund.

WATER UTILITY -Activity is progressing as planned. Water usage in Q1 was impacted by the
pandemic, with residential usage greater than planned, and Commercial/Industrial usage much
less than planned.

Operating costs are as expected, with a $77,000 operating surplus, compared to a $165,000
surplus in 2020.

SELF INSURANCE FUND - Resources are as expected thru March 31.

The $845,000 of claims have been greater than expected and 2020.

The fund generated a $135,000 deficit this first quarter compared to a $161,000 surplus. The
fund has a healthy $3.1 million fund balance.

RETIREE HEALTH FUND -- Insurance results are on par wth the prior year. Investment results
have been stellar in Q1, with a $420,000 gain, compared to a $929,000 loss in Q1 2020.
Markets are volatile, so put investment results into perspective with a longer view.
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City of Franklin
Cash & Investments Summary

March 31, 2021

American Institutional Local Prior
Cash Deposit Capital Government Total Month

Management Management Invest Pool Total

General Fund $ (551,512) $ 14,418,345 $ 123,369 $ 3,286,892 $17,277,094 $ 19,149,400

Debt Service Funds 6,874 197,871 204,745 201,230

TIF Distncts 98,874 2,964,833 673,442 3,737,149 3,713,222

Nonmajor
Governmental Funds 716,100 11,414,282 6,760,878 18,891,260 19,306,782

Total Governmental
Funds 270,336 28,995,330 7,557,689 3,286,892 40,110,248 42,370,633

Sewer Fund 498,555 1,057,812 1,556,367 1,682,936

Water Utility 1,994 731,233 2,307,423 3,040,650 3,250,112

Self Insurance Fund 11,869 460,412 2,879,633 3,351,914 3,416,461

Other Designated Funds 12,410 12,410 10,826

Total Other Funds 524,828 2,249,457 5,187,056 7,961,341 8,360,335

Total Pooled
Cash & Investments 795,164 31,244,787 12,744,745 3,286,892 48,071,588 50,730,968

Property Tax Fund 998,705 9,758,900 10,757,604 4,363,066

Total Trust Funds 998,705 9,758,900 10,757,604 4,363,066

Grand Total
Cash & Investments 1,793,869 41,003,686 12,744,745 3,286,892 58,829,193 55,094,034

Average Floating Rate of Return 0 09% 200% 0.06%
Avg Weighted Rate of Return - CD's 0.79%

Maturities:
Demand 1,793,869 29,935,058 20,529 3,286,892 35,036,348 30,850,676
Fred Income & Equities
2021- Q1 500,000
2021 -O2 1,022,876 2,005,506 3,028,382 3,009,061
2021 - Q3 500,000 1,010,313 1,510,313 1,511,875
2021 -O4 4,547,260 4,547,260 4,553,629
2022 - Q1 2,752,876 2,081,865 4,834,742 2,084,663
2022 - O2 267,876 267,876
2022 2,700,000 2,563,728 5,263,728 8,242,214
2023 3,825,000 515,544 4,340,544 4,341,918

1,793,869 41,003,686 12,744,745 3,286,892 58,829,193 55,094,034

4/14/2021 Findata Qtrrpt Cash & Investments xlsx March 2021



City of Franklin
General Fund

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the 3 months ended March 31, 2021

2021 2021 2021 2021 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Vear-to-Date Surplus

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

Property Taxes $ 19,196,900 $ 19,196,900 $ 13,065,092 $ 12,786,968 $ (278,124)
Other Taxes 614,900 614,900 18,863 174,336 155,473
Intergovernmental Revenue 1,785,400 1,785,400 262,379 401,085 138,706
Licenses & Permits 1,111,150 1,111,150 198,855 183,740 (15,115)
Law and Ordinance Violations 490,000 490,000 155,713 131,219 (24,494)
Public Charges for Services 2,424,650 2,424,650 541,638 465,045 (76,593)
Intergovernmental Charges 203,200 203,200 11,264 29,632 18,368
Investment Income 359,718 359,718 98,668 30,377 (68,291)
Sale of Capital Assets 10,250 10,250 727 333 (394)
Miscellanous Revenue 123,000 123,000 18,422 51,939 33,517
Transfers from Other Funds 1,050,000 1,050,000 277,070 278,036 966

Total Revenue $ 27,369,168 $ 27,369,168 $ 14,648,691 $ 14,532,710 $ (115,981)
9921%

2021 2021 2021 2021 Var to Budget
Original Amended Vear-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Expenditures Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

General Government $ 3,160,403 $ 3,184,743 $ 918,544 $ 867,517 $ (51,027)
Public Safety 18,352,063 18,472,161 4,379,497 4,240,336 (139,161)
Public Works 4,288,736 4,516,454 937,420 1,162,711 225,291
Health & Human Services 713,239 713,239 159,859 144,514 (15,345)
Culture & Recreation 218,343 222,886 50,297 39,533 (10,764)
Conservation and Development 599,884 617,257 125,694 131,276 5,582
Contingency & Unclassified 3,077,500 3,114,100 143,830 6,600 (137,230)
Anticipated Underexpenditures (315,000) (315,000) (78,750) 78,750
Transfers to Other Funds 24,000 24,000
Encumbrances (94,851) (94,851)

Total Expenditures $ 30,119,168 $ 30,549,840 $ 6,636,391 $ 6,497,636 $ (138,755)
97 91%

Excess of revenue over
(under) expenditures (2,750,000) (3,180,672) 8,012,300 8,035,074 $ 22,774

Fund Balance, beginning of year 9,199,013 9,199,013 9,199,013

Fund Balance, end of period $ 6,449,013 $ 6,018,341 $ 17,234,087



City of Franklin
General Fund

Comparative Statement of Revenue
For the 3 months ended March 31, 2021

2021 2021 2021 2021 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

Property Taxes $ 19,196,900 $ 19,196,900 $ 13,065,092 $ 12,786,968 $ (278,124)

OtherTaxes:
Cable television franchise fees 443,000 443,000 12,885 116,807 103,922
Mobile Home 20,000 20,000 5,000 8,593 3,593
Room tax 151,900 151,900 978 48,936 47,958

Total Other taxes 614,900 614,900 18,863 174,336 155,473

Intergovernmental Revenue:
State shared revenue-per capita 433,000 433,000
Expenditure restraint revenue 45,000 45,000
State computer aid 228,000 228,000
State transportation aids 540,000 540,000 215,144 400,000 184,856
Fire insurance dues 170,000 170,000
Other grants & aid 369,400 369,400 47,235 1,085 (46,150)

Total Intergovernmental Revenue 1,785,400 1,785,400 262,379 401,085 138,706

Licenses & Permits:
Licenses 170,450 170,450 22,601 15,064 (7,537)
Permits 940,700 940,700 176,254 168,676 (7,578)

1,111,150 1,111,150 198,855 183,740 (15,115)

Law & Ordinance Violations:
Fines, Forfeitures & Penalties 490,000 490,000 155,713 131,219 (24,494)

Public Charges for Services:
Planning Related Fees 75,300 75,300 20,027 31,924 11,897
General Government 8,700 8,700 1,835 3,736 1,901
Architectural Board Review 4,500 4,500 1,007 2,460 1,453
Police & Related 6,800 6,800 1,712 674 (1,038)
Ambulance Services - ALS 1,350,000 1,350,000 347,964 122,396 (225,568)
Ambulance Services - BLS 62,560 62,560
Fire Safety Training 1,500 1,500 486 686 200
Fire Sprinkler Plan Review 4,000 4,000 1,212 700 (512)
Fire Inspections 5,000 5,000 1,098 3,397 2,299
Quarry Reimbursement 45,000 45,000 989 3,550 2,561
Weed Cutting 7,000 7,000 97 (97)
Engineering Fees 260,000 260,000 20,211 128,967 108,756
Public Works Fees 36,000 36,000 3,675 7,081 3,406
Investment Mgmt Fees 71,500 71,500 17,875 19,380 1,505
Weights & Measures 7,600 7,600 4 (1) (5)
Landfill Operations - Siting 345,000 345,000 86,250 56,160 (30,090)
Landfill Operations - Emerald Park 80,000 80,000 12,281 13,927 1,646
Health Department 116,750 116,750 24,915 7,448 (17,467)

Total Public Charges for Services $ 2,424,650 $ 2,424,650 $ 541,638 $ 465,045 $ (76,593)



City of Franklin
General Fund

Comparative Statement of Revenue
Forthe 3 months ended March 31, 2021

2021 2021 2021 2021 Varto Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

Intergovernmental Charges:
Milwaukee County - Paramedics $ 117,800 $ 117,800 $ 11,264 $ 29,632 $ 18,368
School Liaison Officer 85,400 85,400

Total Intergovernmental Charges 203,200 203,200 11,264 29,632 18,368

Investment Income:
Interest on Investments 256,718 256,718 72,918 7,277 (65,641)
Market Value Change on Investments (221) (221)
Interest -Tax Roll 100,000 100,000 25,000 21,006 (3,994)
Other Interest 3,000 3,000 750 2,315 1,565

Total Investment Income 359,718 359,718 98,668 30,377 (68,291)

Sale of Capital Assets 10,250 10,250 727 333 (394)

Miscellaneous Revenue:
Rental of Property 52,000 52,000 14,938 19,487 4,549
Refunds/Reimbursements 20,000 20,000 3,175 971 (2,204)
Insurance Dividend 50,000 50,000
Other Revenue 1,000 1,000 309 31,481 31,172

Total Miscellaneous Revenue 123,000 123,000 18,422 51,939 33,517

Transfer from Other Funds:
WaterUtility-Tax Equivalent 1,050,000 1,050,000 277,070 278,036 966
Total Transfers from Other Funds 1,050,000 1,050,000 277,070 278,036 966

Total Revenue $ 27,369,168 $ 27,369,168 $ 14,648,691 $ 14,532,710 $ (115,981)
99 21%



City of Franklin
General Fund

Comparative Statement of Expenditures
For the 3 months ended March 31, 2021

2021 2021 2021 2021 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Expenditures Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency

General Government:
Mayor & Aldermen - Labor $ 65,903 $ 65,903 $ 16,476 $ 16,476 $
Mayor & Aldermen - Non-Personnel 37,350 38,760 16,036 17,070 (1,034)
Municipal Court - Labor 189,109 189,109 43,641 44,025 (384)
Municipal Court - Non-Personnel 21,475 23,040 14,436 13,966 470
City Clerk Labor 334,272 334,272 76,942 75,775 1,167
City Clerk - Non-Personnel 28,500 28,500 6,018 5,226 792
Elections - Labor 28,922 28,922 9,561 9,064 497
Elections - Non-Personnel 25,000 25,000 1,811 869 942
Information Services - Labor 102,343 102,342 23,041 23,403 (362)
Information Services - Non-Personnel 432,736 454,102 128,385 108,815 19 570
Administration - Labor 262,816 262,816 59,500 60,841 (1,341)
Administration - Non-Personnel 129,755 129,755 28,743 28,611 132
Finance - Labor 424,474 424,474 96,302 86,963 9,339
Finance - Non-Personnel 122,490 122,490 45,279 40,685 4,594
Independent Audit 30,050 30,050 1,439 4,750 (3,311)
Assessor - Non-Personnel 237,650 237,650 59,375 44,221 15,154
Legal Services 353,600 353,600 94,791 74,439 20,352
Municipal Buildings - Labor 106,778 106,778 21,328 22,356 (1,028)
Municipal Buildings - Non-Personnel 120,615 120,615 26,463 22,753 3,710
Property/liability insurance 106,565 106,565 148,977 167,209 (18,232)

Total General Government 3,160,403 3,184,743 918,544 867,517 51,027

Public Safety:
Police Department - Labor 9,133,458 9,133,458 2,107,721 2,071 500 36,221
Police Department - Non-Personnel 1,235,790 1,277,535 398,567 279,709 118,858
Pandemic Emergency - Labor 33,429 (33,429)
Fire Department - Labor 6,268,073 6,268,073 1,447,260 1,482,353 (35,093)
Fire Department - Non-Personnel 515,980 516,033 138,069 89,835 48,234
Public Fire Protection 283,300 283,300 72,240 70,007 2,233
Building Inspection - Labor 753,818 832,118 175,615 174,168 1,447
Building Inspection - Non-Personnel 154,044 154,044 40,025 39,335 690
Weights and Measures 7,600 7,600

Total Public Safety 18,352,063 18,472,161 4,379,497 4,240,336 139,161

Public Works:
Engineerng - Labor 599,419 599,419 135,340 133,530 1,810
Engineering - Non-Personnel 292,850 320,797 73,061 146,973 (73,912)
Highway - Labor 2,015,467 2,015,467 464,746 483,163 (18,417)
Highway - Non-Personnel 1,016,750 1,176,681 193,103 344,642 (151,539)
Street Lighting 357,200 397,040 71,170 54,403 16,767
Weed Contro l 7,050 7,050

Total Public Works $ 4,288,736 $ 4,516,454 $ 937,420 $ 1,162,711 $ (225,291)



City of Franklin

General Fund

Comparative Statement of Expenditures

For the 3 months ended March 31, 2021

2021 2021 2021 2021 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Expenditures Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

Health & Human Services:
Public Health - Labor $ 597,789 $ 597,789 $ 139,832 $ 131,717 $ 8,115
Public Health - Non-Personnel 67,450 67,450 6,377 4,846 1,531
Animal Control 48,000 48,000 13,650 7,951 5,699

Total Health & Human Services 713,239 713,239 159,859 144,514 15,345

Culture & Recreation:
Senior Travel & Activities 22,000 22,000 5,618 5,618
Parks - Labor 122,368 122,368 28,239 28,211 28
Parks - Non-Personnel 73,975 78,518 16,440 11,322 5,118

Total Culture & Recreation 218,343 222,886 50,297 39,533 10,764

Conservation & Development:
Planning - Labor 367,941 367,941 84,908 83,555 1,353
Planning - Non-Personnel 75,650 81,673 8,736 11,857 (3,121)
Economic Dev - Labor 95,793 95,793 21,434 21,859 (425)
Economic Dev - Non-Personnel 60,500 71,850 10,616 14,005 (3,389)

Total Conservation & Development 599,884 617,257 125,694 131,276 (5,582)

Contingency & Unclassified:
Restricted - other 2,500,000 2,500,000
Severance Payments 200,000 236,600 50,000 50,000
Unrestricted 375,000 375,000 93,750 6,600 87,150
Unclassified 2,500 2,500 80 80

Total Contingency & Unclassified 3,077,500 3,114,100 143,830 6,600 137,230

Anticipated Underexpenditures (315,000) (315,000) (78,750) (315,000)

Transfers to Other Funds:
Caprtal Improvement Fund
Other Funds 24,000 24,000

Total Transfers to Other Funds 24,000 24,000

Total Expenditures $ 30,119,168 $ 30,549,840 $ 6,636,391 $ 6,592,487 $ (192,346)

Less Encumbrances (94,851)
Net Expenditures $ 6,497,636

% of YTD Budget 97 91%



City of Franklin
General Fund
Balance Sheet

ASSETS 3/31/2021 3/31/2020
Cash & Investments $ 17,277,094 $ 17,051,435
Accounts & Taxes & Interest Receivable 7,129,885 6,731,534
Due from Other Funds & Advances 206,450 123,200
Due from Other Governments 1,738 2,658
Prepaid Expenditures & Inventones 35,935 26,661

Total Assets $ 24,651,102 $ 23,935,488

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 415,589 $ 300,594
Accrued Liabilities 316,601 915,936
Due to Other Funds & Governments 139,466 137,523
Special Deposits 132,151 80,134
Unearned Revenue 6,413,208 5,955,498
Total Liabilities 7,417,015 7,389,685

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable - Inventories, Prepads, Advances, Assigned 242,385 186,800
Unassigned 16,991,702 12,235,658

Total Fund Balances 17,234,087 16,545,803
Total Liabilities & Fund Balances $ 24,651,102 $ 23,935,488



City of Franklin
Debt Service Funds
Balance Sheet

March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2021 2020 2020
Special Debt 2021 Special Debt 2020

Assets Assessment Service Total Assessment Service Total
Cash and investments $ 204,757 $ (13) $ 204,744 $ 785,831 $ 350,758 $ 1,136,589
Taxes receivable
Special assessment receivable 15,838 15,838 30,255 30,255

Total Assets $ 220,595 $ (13) $ 220,582 $ 816,086 $ 350,758 $1,166,844

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Unearned & unavailable revenue $ 15,838 $ $ 15,838 $ 30,255 $ $ 30,255

Unassigned fund balance 204,757 (13) 204,744 785,831 350,758 1,136,589
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 220,595 $ (13) $ 220,582 $ 816,086 $ 350,758 $1,166,844

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2021 2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Special Debt Year-to-Date Original Special Debt Year-to-Date

Revenue Assessment Service Actual Budget Assessment Service Actual
Property Taxes $ $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $ $1,100,000 $1,100,000
Special Assessments 2,854 2,854 21,000 6,221 6,221
Investment Income 775 400 1,175 15,000 11,980 3,038 15,018
GO Debt Issuance

Total Revenue 3,629 1,100,400 1,104,029 1,136,000 18,201 1,103,038 1,121,239

Expenditures:
Debt Service

Principal 1,480,000 1,480,000 1,480,000 1,425,000 1,425,000
Interest 77,056 77,056 137,363 74,961 74,961
Bank Fees 1,200 1,200

Total expenditures 1,557,056 1,557,056 1,617,363 1,501,161 1,501,161

Transfers m 180,900 180,900 479,895 397,950 397,950
Transfers out (25,886)
Net change in fund balances 3,629 (275,756) (272,127} (27,354} 18,201 (173) 18,028

Fund balance, beginning of year 201,128 275,743 476,871 476,871 767 630 350,931 1,118 561

Fund balance, end of period $ 204,757 $ (13) $ 204,744 $ 449,517 $ 785,831 $ 350,758 $1,136,589

4/9/2021 L 41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2021\Monthly\Debt Service\March 2021
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City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #3 - Northwestern Mutual

Balance Sheet
March 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets 2021 2020
Cash & investments $ 1,227,307 $ 693,910
Accounts receivable 15,734
Taxes receivable (2)
Total Assets $ 1,243,039 $ 693,910

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ 150 $
Accrued Liabilities 865,126 865,136
Unearned Revenue (2)

Total Liabi lities 865,274 865,136

Assigned fund balance 377,765 (171,226)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 1,243,039 $ 693,910

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2021 2021 2020
Annual Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General property tax levy $ 2,107,000 $ 2,107,000 $ 2,067,581 $ 1,401,748
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 62,000 15,500 62,938
State exempt aid 537,440 15,360
Bond proceeds 1,204 6,966 00
Total revenue 2,706,440 2,137,860 2,131,723 1,408,714

Expenditures
Debt service principal 965,000 965,000 965,000 665,000
Debt service Interest & fees 55,795 15,665 35,100 45,075
Administrative expenses 4,920 1,230 1,230 1,770
Professional services 150 38 1,839
Development incentive & obligation payments 1,050,225 1,050,225 1,050,225 760,005
Total expenditures 2,076,090 2,032,158 2,053,394 1,471,850

Revenue over (under) expenditures 630,350 105,702 78,329 (63,136)

Fund balance, beginning of year 304,981 299,436 299,436 (108,090)

Fund balance, end of period $ 935,331 $ 405,138 $ 377,765 $ (171,226)



City ofFranklin
Tax IncrementFinancing District#4 - Ascension Hospital

Balance Sheet
March 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets 2021 2020
Cash & investments $ 996,419 $ 4,706,246
Total Assets $ 996,419 $ 4,706,246

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ 76,433 $ 116,592
Advances from Other Funds 1,300,000

Total Liabilities 1,376,433 116,592

Assigned fund balance (380,014) 4,589,654
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 996,419 $ 4,706,246

StatementofRevenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General PropertyTax Levy $ 1,183,000 $ 1,183,000 $ 1,183,000 $ 1,160,642 $ 1,138,802
Payment in Lieu of Tax 50,000 50,000 45,000 58,830 73,889
State Exempt Aid 86,060 86,060 17,365
Investment Income 784 62,232
Total Revenue 1,319,060 1,319,060 1,245,365 1,220,256 1,274,923

Expenditures
Debt service mterest & fees 36,875 36,875 9,219 15,625
Administrative expenses 4,920 4,920 1,230 2,730 7,530
Professional services 194,276 3,400 13,137
Capital outlays 281,557 58,091 732,542
Total expenditures 41,795 517,628 10,449 79,846 753,209

Revenue over (under) expenditures 1,277,265 801,432 1,234,916 1,140,410 521,714

Fund balance, beginning of year (3,178,830) (1,520,424) (1,520,424) (1,520,424) 4,067,940

Fund balance, end of period $ (1,901,565) $ (718,992) $ (285,508) $ (380,014) $ 4,589,654



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #5

Balance Sheet
March 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets 2021 2020
Cash & investments $ 790,442 $ 815,573
Accounts receivable 22,646 45,780
Taxes receivable 3,000
Total Assets $ 816,088 $ 861,353

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ 303 $ 2,639
Unearned Revenue 3,000

Total Liabilities 3,303 2,639

Assigned fund balance 812,785 858,714
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 816,088 $ 861,353

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ 501,000 $ 501,000 $ 125,250 $ 558,438 $ 721,361
Payment mn Lieu of Tax 91,600 91,600 22,900 90,585 91,560
State Exempt Aud 25,640 25,640 6,410
Investment Income 63 26,358
Miscellaneous revenue 220,000 220,000 55,000
Total Revenue 838,240 838,240 209,560 649,086 839,279

Expenditures
Debt service principal 4,000,000
Debt service Interest & fees 822,646 822,646 324,174 300,315 427,844
Administrative expenses 12,920 12,920 3,029 3,240 1,770
Professional services 150 16,429 32 503 5,663
Total expenditures 835,716 851,995 327,235 304,058 4,435,277

Revenue over (under) expenditures 2,524 (13,755) (117,675) 345,028 (3,595,998)

Fund balance, beginning of year 541,758 467,757 467,757 467,757 4,454,712

Fund balance, end of perod $ 544,282 $ 454,002 $ 350,082 $ 812,785 $ 858,714



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #6 - Loomis & Ryan

Balance Sheet
March 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets 2021 2020
Cash & investments $ 453,218 $ 5,343,365
Total Assets $ 453,218 $ 5,343,365

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ 1,685 $ 495

Total Liabilities 1,685 495,

Assigned fund balance 451,533 5,342,870
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 453,218 $ 5,343,365

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2021 2021 2020
Annual Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ $ $ $
Investment Income 304 22,499
Bond Proceeds 3,000,000
Miscellaneous revenue 89
Total Revenue 3,000,000 393 22,499

Expenditures
Debt service interest & fees 392,850 135,713 120,544 109,850
Administrative expenses 41,480 10,370 10,365 7,530
Professional services 150 4,065 4,100
Caprtal outlays 3,000,000 750,000
Total expenditures 3,434,480 896,083 134,974 121,480

Revenue over (under) expenditures (434,480) (896,083) (134,581) (98,981)

Fund balance, beginning ofyear 212,851 586,114 586,114 5,441,851

Fund balance, end of period $ (221,629) $ (309,969) $ 451,533 $ 5,342,870



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #7 - Velo Village

Balance Sheet
March 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets 2021 2020
Cash & investments $ 248,366 $ 2,598,158
Accounts recevable 4,500,000 2 463,236
Total Assets $ 4,748,366 $ 5,061 394

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable $ 150 $
Advances from Other Funds 1,500,000 1,910,000
Deferred Inflow 4,500,000

Total Luabrltties 6,000,150 1,910,000

Assigned fund balance {1,251,784) 3,151,394
Total Liabtlites and Fund Balance $ 4,748,366 $ 5,061,394

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ 12,500 $ 12,500 $ 3,125 $ 11,911 $
Investment Income 270,000 270,000 67,500 136,068 12,063
Total Revenue 282,500 282,500 70,625 147,979 12,063

Expenditures
Debt service interest & fees 153,271 153,271 38,318 77,570 32,415
Administrative expenses 6,120 6,120 1,530 1,530 1,770
Professional services 150 9,250 38 150 2,829
Capital outlays 166,663
Total expenditures 159,541 168,641 39,886 79,250 203,677

Revenue over {under) expenditures 122,959 113,859 30,739 68,729 (191,614)

Fund balance, beginning of year 3,378,636 (1,320,513) (1,320,513) {1,320,513) 3,343,008

Fund balance, end of period $ 3,501,595 $ {1,206,654) $ (1,289,774) $ {1,251,784) $ 3,151,394



Assets
Cash & investments
Total Assets

City of Franklm
Tax Increment Financing District #8 - S 27th Business Park

Balance Sheet
March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021
$ 21,398
$ 21,398

$
$

2020

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts Payable
Advances from Other Funds

Total Liabilities

Assigned fund balance
Total Labltties and Fund Balance

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
March 31, 2021 and 2020

$

$

11,450 $
100,000
111,450

(90,052)
21,398 $

2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General Property Tax Levy $ $ $ $ $
Bond Proceeds 6,000,000 6,000,000
Total Revenue 6,000,000 6,000,000

Expenditures
Debt service interest & fees 100,000 100,000 25,000
Administrative expenses 46,480 46,480 11,620 11,625
Professional services 623,150 652,402 155,788 13,906
Capital outlays 5,150,500 5,150,500 1,287,625 1,311
Development incentive & obligation payments 2,500,000 2,500,000 625,000
Total expenditures 8,420,130 8,449,382 2,105,033 26,842

Revenue over (under) expenditures (2,420,130) (2,449,382) (2,105,033) (26,842)

Fund balance, beginning of year (63,210) (63,210) (63,210) (63,210)

Fund balance, end of period $ (2,483,340) $ (2,512,592) $ (2,168,243) $ (90,052) $



City of Franklin
Library Fund
Balance Sheet

March 31, 2021 and 2020

Operating Restricted
Assets 2021 2020 2021 2020

Cash and investments $ 1,524,971 $ 1,582,696 $ 142,338 $ 139,727
Total Assets $ 1,524,971 $ 1,582,696 $ 142,338 $ 139,727

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 3,651 $ 15,536 $ 49 $ 2,983
Accrued salaries & wages 1,874 29,330
Assigned fund balance 1,519,446 1,537,830 142,289 136,744

Total Luabtltties and Fund Balance $ 1,524,971 $ 1,582,696 $ 142,338 $ 139,727

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance - Operating Fund
For the Three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Property taxes $ 1,337,200 $ 1,337,200 $ 1,337,200 $ 1,337,200 $ 1,340,500
Reciprocal borrowing (restricted) 48,500 48,500 3,000
Landfill Siting 20,000 20,000 2,312
Investment income 565 10,472

Total Revenue 1405,700 1,405,700 1,337,200 1,340,765 1,353,284

Expenditures:
Salaries and benefits 1,004,686 1,004,686 231,970 224,552 252,910
Contractual services 8,200 8,200 6,733 7,037 7,037
Supplies 30,550 30,550 6,885 12,359 4,941
Services and charges 95,798 95,798 44,576 58,408 53,625
Facility charges 195,180 195,180 41,205 33,102 38,884
Capital outlay 139,000 140,515 29,054 34,489 21,484
Encumbrances

Total Library Costs 1,473,414 1,474,929 360,423 - 369,947 378,881

Total expenditures 1473 414 1474,929 360,423 369 947 378 881

Revenue over (under) expenditures (67,714) (69,229) 976,777 970,818 974,403

Fund balance, beginning of year 547.146 548,628 548,628 563,427

Fund balance, end of period $ 479,432 $ 479,399 $ 1,519,446 $ 1,537,830

4/20/2021 Fmndata Qtrrpt Library xlsx 1st Quarter 2021



City of Franklin
Tourism Commission

Balance Sheet
March 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

2021 2020
$ 351,005 $ 469,121

32,832

$ 383,837 $ 469,121

$ 7,718 $
376,119 469,121

$ 383,837 $ 469,121

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Room Taxes $ 83,000 $ 83,000 $ $ $ (2,061)
Investment Income 278 1,731

Total revenue 83,000 83,000 278 (330)

Expenditures:
Personal Services 40,000 40,000 9,231
Legal Services 41,500 41,500 10,375 11,591
Sundry Contractors 190,000 190,000 375
Supplies & Printing 1,000 1,000 133
Training & Memberships 7,500 7,500 3,790 1,000
Marketing 1,871
Adverising 40,000 65,424 10,000 25,424
Encumbrances (25,424) (1,371)

Total expenditures 320,000 345,424 33,396 13,099 500

Revenue over (under) expenditures (237,000) (262,424) (33,396) (12,821) (830)

Fund balance, beginning of year 566,951 388,940 388,940 469,951

Fund balance, end of period $ 329,951 $ 126,516 $ 376,119 $ 469,121

4/9/2021 L \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2021\Quarterly\Tourism 1at Quarter 2021



City of Franklin
Solid Waste Collection Fund

Balance Sheet
March 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets
Cash and investments
User fees receivable
Accrued Receivables

Total Assets

2021 2020
$ 1,760,601 $ 1,775,415

46
1,909 1,043

$ 1,762,556 $ 1,776,458

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries & wages
Restricted fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

$ 155,826
227

1,606,503
$ 1,762,556

$ 149,083
460

1,626,915
$ 1,776,458

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

Revenue
Grants
User Fees
Landfill Operations-tippage
Investment Income
Sale of Recyclables

Total Revenue

Expenditures:
Personal Services
Refuse Collection
Recycling Collection
Leaf & Brush Pickups
Tippage Fees
Miscellaneous
Printing

Total expenditures

Revenue over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of period

2021
Original
Budget

$ 69,000
1,539,449
370,000
20,000

1,998,449

16,384
766,300
718,000
60,000
483,300
5,000

2,048,984

(50,535)

466,131

$ 415,596

2021
YTD
Budget

1,536,421
56,086
6,248

1,598,755

3,780
198,444
185,966

75,231
1,505

464,926

1,133,829

2021
Year-to-Date
Actual

$
1,543,211

86,361
759
245

1,630,576

2,091
182,191
182,566

140
68,167
1,325

436,480

1,194,096

412,407

$ 1,606,503

2020
Year-to-Date
Actual

$
1,533,834

53,943
12,888

1,600,665

2,873
178,554
177,950

69,188
310

428,875

1,171,790

455,125

$ 1,626,915

4/9/2021 Fmndata Qtrrpt Sold Waste March 2021



City of Franklin
Capital Outlay Fund
Balance Sheet

March 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets
Cash and Investments
Accrued Receivables

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

2021 2020
$ 908,095 $ 758,273

72

$ 908,167 $ 758,273

$ 63,974 $ 88,905
844,193 669,368

$ 908,167 $ 758,273

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Property Taxes $ 296,000 $ 296,000 $ 296,000 $ 296,000 $ 295,700
Grants 15,000 15,000 3,750 2,038
Landfill Sting 904,100 904,100 149,143 145,341 55,929
Investment Income 7,800 7,800 1,950 494 8,492
Miscellanous Revenue 41,250 41,250 7,330 775 6,002
Notes Proceeds 542,000 542,000

Total Revenue 1,806,150 1,806,150 458,173 444,648 366,123

Expenditures:
General Government 55,200 82,194 10,000 10,247 32,029
Public Safety 619,535 703,105 173,975 313,237 332,344
Public Works 551,000 648,849 175,327 445,743 31,199
Health and Human Services 900
Culture and Recreation 364,000 429,000 57,772 14,359
Conservation and Development 180,000 180,000 45,000
Contingency 40,650 40,650 1,744
Encumbrances (490,888) (208,006)

Total expenditures 1,810,385 2,083,798 463,818 292,698 188,466

Revenue over (under) expenditures (4,235) (277,648) (5,645) 151,950 177,657

Fund balance, beginning of year 311,711 692,243 692,243 491,711

Fund balance, end of period $ 307,476 $ 414,595 $ 844,193 $ 669,368

A Portion of Municipal Building, Police, Highway & Parks appropriations are contingent upon Landfill Siting
revenue growth

4/20/2021 Findata Otrrt Canutal On+tlav vlev Marl 9n71



City of Franklin
Equipment Replacement Fund

Balance Sheet
March 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets
Cash and investments

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

2021 2020
$ 2,277,786 $ 2,649,340

$ 2,277,786 $ 2,649,340

$ $ 189,374
2,277,786 2,459,966

$ 2,277,786 $ 2,649,340

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Property Taxes $ $ $ $ $
Landfill 604,400 604,400 103,823 95,800 78,317
Investment Income 37,400 37,400 9,350 797 50,410
Property Sales 30,000 30,000 1,724

Total revenue 671,800 671,800 114,897 96,597 128,727

Expenditures:
Public Safety 361,500 391,668 88,980 355,305 243,605
Public Works 807,000 1,047,130 75,680 500,835 683,034
Encumbrances (647,493) (729,816)

Total expenditures 1,168,500 1,438,798 164,660 208,647 196,823

Revenue over (under) expenditures (496,700) (766,998) (49,763) (112,050) (68,096)

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,130,162 2,389,836 2,389,836 2,528,062

Fund balance, end of period $ 1,633,462 $ 1,622,838 $ 2,277,786 $ 2,459,966

4/9/2021
L \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2021\Monthly\Equip Replacement\March 2021



Assets
Cash and investments

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

City of Franklin
Street Improvement Fund

Balance Sheet
March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021
$ 633,320
$ 633,320

$
633,320

$ 633,320

2020
$ 553,689
$ 553,689

$
553,689

$ 553,689

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2021 2021 2020
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Totals Totals
Property Taxes $ $ $ $
Landfill Siting 175,000 175,000 26,420 42,591
Investment Income 7,500 7,500 268 5,942
Intergovernmental Resources 1,074,500 1,074,500 3,642

Total revenue 1,257,000 1,257,000 30,330 48,533

Expenditures:
Street Reconstruction Program - Current Year 1,000,000 1,000,000 975,940
Encumbrances (974,889)

Total expenditures 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,051

Revenue over (under) expenditures 257,000 257,000 30,330 47,482

Fund balance, beginning of year 506,207 602,990 602,990 506,207

Fund balance, end of period $ 763,207 $ 859,990 $ 633,320 $ 553,689

4/13/2021 Fmdata Qtrrpt Street Improvement March 2021



City of Franklin
Capital Improvement Fund

Balance Sheet
March 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets 2021 2020
Cash and investments $ 2,007,097 $ 1,613,681
Accrued receivables 737,129 951,949

Total Assets $ 2,744,226 $ 2,565,630

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 88,507 $ 11,154
Contracts Payable 51,132 356,670
Deferred Inflow 508,000 943,000
Assigned fund balance 2,096,587 1,254,806

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 2,744,226 $ 2,565,630

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2021 2021 2020
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Totals Totals
Landfill Siting $ 51,500 $ 51,500 $ $ 83,449
Transfers from other Funds 5,000,000 5,000,000
Transfers from Impact Fees 2,209,750 2,209,750 23,484
Transfers from Connection Fees 1,140,000 1,140,000
Bond Proceeds 1,458,000 1,458,000
Donations 86,000 86,000
Investment Income 5,000 5,000 1,205 12,731

Total revenue 9,950,250 9,950,250 1,205 119,664

Expenditures:
General Government 350,000 362,408 (56,873) 98,858
Public Safety 499,500 636,572 139,311 1,021,256
Public Works 252,000 1,072,874 962,491 589,039
Culture and Recreation 410,000 622,301 212,390 190,333
Sewer & Water 8,140,000 8,140,000 199,000
Contingency 150,000 150,170 170 20,170
Bond/Note Issuance Cost 100,000 100,000
Encumbrances (1,103,287) (1,241,322)

Total expenditures 9,901,500 11,084,325 154,202 877,334

Revenue over (under) expenditures 48,750 (1,134,075) (152,997) (757,670)

Fund balance, beginning of year 396,395 2,022,792 2,022,792 2,012,476

Fund balance, end of period $ 445,145 $ 888,717 $ 1,869,795 $ 1,254,806

4/20/2021 Fmndata Qtrrpt Capital Improvement xIsx March 2021



1,205
1,205

Total unding Sourc Amount Vet City Funds
$ 51,500

5,000 5,000

5,000 56,500

~-------A_m_e_n_de_d l!~ A_c_tu_a_l_T_h_ru_M_a_rc_h_3_1-'-, _20_2_1 .....,

Total Funding Source Amount Net City Funds
$

Activity

City of Franklin
Capital Improvement Fund
Budget 2021

Project/Name
Landfill Siting Revenue
Investment Income

Total Revenue

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Ci Hall Roof, HVAC

Historical Socie - Bam

PARK DEVELOPMENT

Pleasant View Park ­ improvements Park

Pleasant View Park pavilion Park

116th StreetTrail design Park

Park Sionaae Park

Church Street pathway Park

Ernie Lake aeration svstem Park

Pleasant View Park - Improvement Planning Park

Land Purchase - ROW - Water Tower Park Park

Public Safety
Replace roof @ Police Dept Pub Safelv
Video Surveillance Cameras - replacement @
Police Blda Pub Safetv
911 Phone svstem - replacement Pub Safetv
Indoor Shootina Ranae Pub Safetv
Fire Station Specific Alertina Pub Safetv
Insnection Software Pub Safetv

Public Works
Marauette Ave construction - 49th to 51st Pub Wrks
S 51st/Drexel Roundabout Pub Wrks
S 68th St/Loomis to Puetz - siaht line Pub Wrks

Water Main on W Minnesota Ave Pub Wrks

Water Tower in Southwest Zone Pub Wrks

Pub Wrks
Hiahwav Buildina addition - desian work Pub Wrks

Replace Industrial Park temporary Lift Station Pub Wrks

Curb reolacements Pub Wrks
Traffic Signals - Emergency Veh Preemption Pub Wrks
Rawson Homes - Storm sewer PubWrks
Land nurchase - ROW 51st & Drexel PubWrks
Muni Buildinas Imnrovements

-
10,013 10,013
2,395 2,395

Park Impact
300,000 Fees 141,000 159,000

19,287 19,287

100,762 100,762
20,000 20,000

Park Impact
75,000 Fees 53,250 21,750
15,000 15,000

Park Impact
88,616 Fees 88,616
3,636 3,636

127,500 127 500

247,000 247,000
125,000 125,000
39,054 39,054
37,313 37,313
60,705 60,705

.
-

924,955 Grant 101,500 823,455
9,003 9,003

27,741 27,741
Utility

Developmen
140,000 t 140,000 -

Water
4,000,000 Impact Fees 2,000,000 2,000,000

Water Fund 2,000,000 (2,000,000)
30,000 30,000

Transfer in
from Sewer

3,000,000 Fund 3,000,000 -
35,000 35,000
32,375 32,375

13,800 13,800
350,000 350,000

.
(59,268) 159 268
2,395 2,395

Park Impact
Fees

Park Impact
19,287 Fees 19,287

Park Impact
100,454 Fees 100,454

-
Park impact

Fees -
397 t 397

Park Impact
88,616 Fees 88,616
3,636 : 3,636

- I

-
-

39,054 39,054
38,089 38,089
62,168 62,168

-

861,365 Grant 861,365
9,003 9,003
27,741 27,741

Utility
Development -
Water Impact

Fees -
WaterFund -

.
Transfer in
from Sewer

Fund .

32,375 32,375
18,206 18,206
13,800 13,800

Total Approved Projects

PROJECTS PENDING APPROVAL

9 834,155 7,435 750 2,398 405 1,257 318 1 257 318

Water Proiects Utilitv

Sewer Projects Utility

Contingency

500,000 Water 500,000 -
Sewer

Connection
500,000 Fees 500,000 -
150 170 150,170

Water .
Sewer

Connection
Fees -

170 170
Encumbrances

Total Projects

Net Revenue (Expenditures)

Loan Proceeds
Transaction fees

Net Rev (Expenditures)

Beginning Fund balance

Ending Fund Balance

(1,103 285)
10,984,325 8,435,750 2,548,575 1,257,488 154,203

(2,492 075) (152 998)

1,458 000
(100000)
(1 134 075) (152,998)

2,022,793 2,022,793

$ 888 718 $1869 795

L\4103 VOL! Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIALREPORTS120.21Monthly(Cap Improve by Project.xdsx]Sheet1



City of Franklin
Development Fund
Balance Sheet

March 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets
Cash and investments
Impact fees receivable
Due From TIO 7

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Payable to Developers- Oversizing
Unearned Revenue - Other
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

2021 2020
$ 6,427,795 $ 6,888,993

232,640
2,800,000 1,910,000

$ 9,227,795 $ 9,031,633

$ $ 1,397
337,643 221,759

232,640
8,890,152 8,575,837

9,227,795 9,031,633

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2021 2021 2020
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Actual Actual
Impact Fee· Parks $ 146,117 $ 146,117 $ 30,362 $ 92,339

Southwest Sewer Service Are 112,000 112,000 35,301 39,135
Administration 7,535 7,535 880 1,430
Water 498,000 498,000 50,604 87,690
Transportation 158,825 158,825 10,497 3,335
Fire Protection 108,875 108,875 7,183 13,212
Law Enforcement 124,750 124,750 8,223 24,556
Library 24,750 24,750 5,325 26,131

Total Impact Fees 1,180,852 1,180,852 148,375 287,828

Investment Income 106,250 106,250 1,395 93,253
lnterfund Interest Income 79,250 79,250 29,567 1,594
Total revenue 1,366,352 1,366,352 179,337 382,675

Expenditures:
Other Professional Servces 15,000 18,321 3,321 8,603
Transfer to Debt Service
Law Enforcement 205,182 205,182 180,900 199,856
FIre 42,941 42,941 39,863
Transportation 71,886 71,886 64,249
Library 134,000 134,000 93,982
Total Transfers to Debt Service 454,009 454,009 180,900 397,950

Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund
Transfer(s) Out
Park 1,259,250 1,259,250 93,000 48,769
Water 2,000,000 2,000,000 554,759

Total Transfers to Capital Improveme 3,259,250 3,259,250 93,000 603,528

Sewer Fees 75,000 75,000
Water Fees 250,000 250,000

Encumbrances (96,321) (369,784)

Total expenditures 4,053,259 4,056,580 180,900 640,297

Revenue over (under) expenditures (2,686,907) (2,690,228) (1,563) (257,622)

Fund balance, beginning of year 8,528,646 8,891,715 8,891,715 8,833,459

Fund balance, end of period $ 5,841,739 $ 6,201,487 $ 8,890,152 $ 8,575,837

4/9/2021 L41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2021\Monthly\Development Fund March 2021
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City of Franklin
Utility Development Fund

Balance Sheet
March 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets 2021 2020
Cash and investments - Water $ 1,070,194 $ 977,732
Cash and investments - Sewer 1,321,699 1,265,686
Special Assessment - Water Current 43,720 74,826
Special Assessment - Water Deferred 136,365 153,513
Special Assessment - Sewer Current 105,205 153,411
Reserve for Uncollectible {16,776) (16,776)

Total Assets $ 2,660,407 $ 2,608,392

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ $
Unearned Revenue 268,514 364,974

Total Fund Balance 2,391,893 2,243,418

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 2,660,407 $ 2,608,392

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2021 2021 2020
Original Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Actual Actual
Special Assessments
Water $ 45,000 $ 9,317 $ $ 17,148
Sewer 40,000 8,003 9,503

Connection Fees
Water
Sewer 40,000 5,812 2,100 12,803

Total Assessments &
Connection Fees 125,000 23,132 2,100 39,454

Special Assessment Interest 142
Investment Income 17,500 4,375 1,616 9,025
Total revenue 142,500 27,507 3,716 48,621

Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund
Water 500,000 125,000
Sewer 500,000 125,000

Total Transfers to Capital Improven 1,000,000 250,000

Revenue over (under) expenditures (857,500) (222,493) 3,716 48,621

Fund balance, begmmng of year 2,373,797 2,388,177 2,388,177 2,194,797

Fund balance, end of period $ 1,516,297 $ 2,165,684 $ 2,391,893 $ 2,243,418

4/9/2021 FIndata Qtrrpt Utility Development March 2021



City of Franklin
Sanitary Sewer Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures,
and Changes in Net Assets

For the Three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2021 Current Prior
Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Totals Totals

Operating Revenue
Residential $ 2,271,000 $ 604,678 $ 596,264 $ 538,880
Commercial 630,200 154,250 144,797 144,885
Industrial 433,700 123,624 122,525 236,915
Public Authority 170,000 45,980 41,152 88,845
Penalties/Other 37,000 6,665 3,086 5,751
Mult Family 524,000 131,000 141,637 129,330

Total Operating Revenue 4,065,900 1,066,197 1,049,461 1,144,606

Operating Expenditures
Salaries and benefits $ 582,437 $ 156,655 $ 144,910 $ 156,274
Contractual services 152,775 79,940 57,879 94,583
Supplies 102,975 25,744 22,336 10,879
Facility charges 61,400 15,986 9,924 13,352
Shared meter costs 7,000 1,750
Sewer service - MMSD 2,515,000 628,750 637,066 741,650
Other operating costs 24,450 7,003 4,481 5,281
Allocated expenses 130,680 32,670 34,920 33,465
Sewer improvements 195,068 48,750 37,836 15,367
Depreciation 230,500 57,625 57,630 37,800
Encumbrances (9,545) (11,302)

Total operating expenditures 4,002,285 1,054,873 997,437 1,097,349

Operating Income (Loss) 63,615 11,324 52,024 47,257

Non-Operating Revenue (Expenditures)
Miscellaneous Income 350 470
Investment income 399,730 99,833 942 7,100
Interest expense (384,730) (96,183)
Capital expenditures (152,184) (12,675) (100,641) (49,237)
Encumbrances 100,641 49,237

Total non-operating revenue (expenditures) (137,184) (9,025) 1,292 7,570

Income (Loss) before Capital Contributions (73,569) 2,299 53,316 54,827

Retained Earnings- Beginning 1,766,134 1,766,134 1,766,134 1,725,771
Transfer (to) from Invested in Capital Assets (1,995,217) (498,804) 5,836 23,162
Retained Earnings- Ending (302,652) 1,269,629 1,825,286 1,803,760

Capital Contributions
Deprecation - CIAC (2,020,000) (505,000) (504,990) (509,760)
Transfer (to) from Retained Earnings 1,995,217 498,804 (5,836) (23,162)

Change In Net Investment in Capital Assets (24,783) (6,196) (510,826) (532,922)

Net Investment In Captal Assets-Beginning 63,253,260 67,404,097 67,404,097 62,463,346

Net Investment in Capital Assets-Ending 63,228,477 67,397,901 66,893,271 61,930,424

Total net assets $ 62,925,825 $68,667,530 $ 68,718,557 $ 63,734,184

4/13/2021 Findata Qtrrpt Sewer 1st Quarter 2021



City of Franklin
Sanitary Sewer Fund

Comparative Balance Sheet
March 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets
Current assets

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Miscellaneous receivable

Total current assets

Non current assets
Due from MMSD

Sanitary Sewer plant in service
Land
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress

Less accumulated depreciation

Net sanitary sewer plant in service

Deferred assets
Pension assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current habihties·

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to General Fund - non-interest bearing

Total current hiablites

Non current liabilities
Accrued compensated absences
Pension 1ability (GASB 68)
General Obligation Notes payable - CWF

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows
Pension liabilities

Net Assets.
Invested mn capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted balances - LT receivable
Retained earnings

Total net assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

4/13/2021

2021 2020

$ 1,556,367 $ 1,614,219
1,134,000 1,226,956

73,834 12,139
2,764,201 2,853,314

16,280,068 17,555,340

725,594 725,594
3,325,768 3,308,050
84,169,122 81,653,509
1,231,869 1,223,803
4,651,335 95,510
94,103,688 87,006,466
(27,210,417) (25,076,042)

66,893,271 61,930,424

232,450 373,360

$ 86,169,990 $ 82,712,438

$ 74,678 $ 797,037
648,422 37,255
61,695 72,035

784,795 906,327

77,058 75,900
(11,855) 328,016

16,280,069 17,555,341

17,130,067 18,865,584

321,366 112,670

50,613,203 44,375,084
16,280,068 17,555,340
1,825,286 1,803,760

68,718,557 63,734,184

$ 86,169,990 $ 82,712,438

FIndata Qtrrpt Sewer 1st Quarter 2021



City of Franklin
Sanitary Sewer Fund

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in assets·
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Due from MMSD & Other Governments

Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

$ 52,024 $ 47,257

57,630 37,800

(136,860) (247,576)
103,387 118,953

(699,935) 134,972
637,066

(38,712) 44,149

$ 13,312 $ 91,406

Cash Flows From Capital & Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets

Net Cash Provided (Used) in Capital
and Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest and other income
Interest exepense

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of period

(51,794) (14,638)

(51,794) (14,638)

1,292 7,570

(37,190) 84,338

1,593,557 1,529,881

$ 1,556,367 $ 1,614,219
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Franklin Municipal Water Utility
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures

and Changes in Net Assets
For the period ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

Amended Year to Date Current Prior
Account Description Budget Budget Year to Date Year to Date

Operating Revenue
Metered Sales-Residential $ 3,077,600 696,398 $ 698,204 $ 670,887
Metered Sales-Commercial 683,500 156,954 135,281 154,066
Metered Sales-Industral 453,300 125,620 113,547 254,479
Other Sales to Public Authority 259,000 70,038 56,559 128,455
Metered Sales-Multifamily 771,400 192,850 182,328 181,065
Metered Sales-lrgation 140,800 35,200 25,008 7,714
Total Metered Sales 5,385,600 1,277,060 1,210,927 1,396,666

Unmetered Sales 15,000 1,335 374 707
Private Fre Protect ion 125,000 33,248 32,209 31,731
Public Fire Protection 545,000 140,580 137,780 136,858
Forfeited Discount 54,000 9,748 4,413 8,216

Total Operating Revenue $ 6,124,600 $ 1,461,971 $ 1,385,703 $ 1,574,178

Operating Expenditures
Operation and maintenance expense

Source of Supply 3,000,300 746,205 661,066 813,727

Pumping 185,250 46,332 44,200 33,420

Water Treatment 15,800 3,560 763 2,250

Transmission & Distribution 506,400 104,286 54,263 66,907

Customer Accounts 66,250 15,104 15,597 15,249

Administrative and general 587,027 122,413 99,512 97,354

Total Operation and Maintenance
Expenditures 4,361,027 1,037,900 875,401 1,028,907

Depreciation 598,050 148,475 149,520 105,450
Taxes-Property Tax Equivalent 1,050,000 277,773 278,036 268,800
Amortization
GASB Employee Benefit Costs 25,000 5,769
Loss on Abandoned Property
Capital Expenditures 35,452 1,075
Taxes-FICA 31,790 7,336 5,484 6,472

Total Operating Expenditures 2 6,101,319 1,478,328 1,308,441 1,409,629

Operating Income $ 23,281 $ (16,357) $ 77,262 $ 164,549

Non-Operating Revenue (Expenditures)
Total non-operating revenue 44,100 17,172 9,918 24,210

Income before capital contributions $ 67,381 $ 815 $ 87,180 $ 188,759

Retained earnings - beginning 3,462,592 3,462,592 3,462,592 2,805,630
Transfer (to) from invested mn capital assets 278,100 69,525 48,351 30,933
Retained earnings - ending $ 3,808,073 $ 3,532,932 $ 3,598,123 $ 3,025,322

Capital contrbutons 2,000,000 500,000
Deprecation - CIAC (837,500) (209,375) (209,400) (212,250)
Transfer (to) from retained earnings (278,100) (69,525) (48,351) (30,933)
Change mn net investment 8,500,546 7,356,489 (257,751) (243,183)

Net investment in capital assets - beginning 50,277,613 50,277,613 50,277,613 47,409,195

Net investment in capital assets - ending $58,778,159 $ 57,634,102 $ 50,019,862 $47,166,012

Total net assets $ 62,586,232 $ 61,167,034 $ 53,617,985 $50,191,334

Findata H20 1st Quarter 2021 Income statement



Franklin Municipal Water Utility
Comparative Balance Sheet
March 31, 2021 & 2020

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable

Total current assets

Utility plant in service:
Land
Buildings and improvements
Construction in Progress
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

Net utility plant in service

Deferred Assets:
Pension Assets
Deferred Costs

Total deferred assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Advance from municipality
Pension liability
Compensated absences reserve
Bond Payable

Deferred Liabilities:
Pension & OPEB Liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Retained earnings

Total net assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

4/12/2021

2021 2020

$ 3,040,650 $ 2,442,892
1,456,392 1,656,897
4,497,042 4,099,789

162,885 162,885
3,414,033 3,394,166
2,019,579 1,065,176
63,681,798 60,725,142
4,691,985 4,620,616
73,970,280 69,967,985
22,997,738 21,741,326

50,972,542 48,226,659

232,638 430,264

232,638 430,264

$ 55,702,222 $ 52,756,712

$ 27,020 $ 83,146
671,518 824,252
106,450 123,200
(32,005) 385,222
77,058 75,900
892,680 951,682

1,742,721 2,443,402

341,516 121,976
2,084,237 2,565,378

50,019,862 47,166,012
3,598,123 3,025,322
53,617,985 50,191,334

$ 55,702,222 $ 52,756,712

Fmndata H20 1st Quarter 2021 Statements



Franklin Municipal Water Utility
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows

For the period ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation & Amortization
Depreciation-shared meters
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Advance from municipality
GASS 68 pension
Compensated absences reserve

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

$ 77,262

149,520

(23,514)
145,647

(758,632)

173,021
250,283

$ 164,549

105,450

(261,436)
161,985

(860,232)

(42,233)
122,316

Cash Flows From Capital & Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets
Investment in Deferred Assets
Capital Contribution - Impact Fees
Interest paid on long term debt
Principal on long term debt

Net Cash Provided (Used) in Capital
and Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest, property rental & other income

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of period

(101,169)

(14,994)
(60,000)

(176,163)

24,912

99,032

2,941,618

(76,057)

(15,544)
(55,000)

(146,601)

41,294

17,009

2,425,883

$ 2,442,892$ 3,040,650

4/12/2021 Fmdata H20 1st Quarter 2021 Statements



Franklin Municipal Water Utility
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the period ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

Water Connection Fee
Prior to May 31, 2002, the City collected a water connection fee on new construction and
connections to existing properties, to be used to fund water main construction projects.
The water connection fees on hand on March 31, 2021 total$ 1,070,194.

Water Impact Fee
Since May 31, 2002 a water impact fee on residential and commercial construction replaced
the water connection fee. Water Impact Fees collected in 2021 total $50,604.
Water Impact fees on hand at March 31, 2020 total$ 2,851,060.

A14)/)n94



Franklin Municipal Water Utility
Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenditures,

and Changes in Net Assets
For the period ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

Operating Revenue
Total metered sales
Fire protection
Forfeited discounts, penalties and other

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenditures
Operation and maintenance expenses:

Source of supply
Pumping
Water treatment
Transmission and distribution
Customers' accounts
Administrative and general

Total operation and maintenance expenses
Depreciation
Amortization and Pension Expenses
Taxes

Total Operating Expenditures

Operating Income (Loss)

Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)
Sundry
Interest on investments
Interest on long term debt
Interest-Debt to Municipality

Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)

Income before Capital Contributions

Capital Contributions-Developer & Municipality
Depreciation - CIAC

Net change in net assets

Net Assets, beginning of period

Net Assets, end of period

2021
1,210,927

169,989
4,787

1,385,703

2020
1,396,666

168,589
8,923

1,574,178

661,066 813,727
44,200 33,420

763 2,250
54,263 66,907
15,597 15,249
99,512 97,354

875,401 1,028,907
149,520 105,450

283,520 275,272

1,308,441 1,409,629

77,262 164,549

23,482 22,829
1,430 18,465

(14,994) (15,544)
(1,540)

9,918 24,210

87,180 188,759

(209,400) (212,250)

(122,220) (23,491)

53,740,205 50,214,825

$ 53,617,985 $ 50,191,334

4/12/2021 Fmndata H20 1st Quarter 2021 Statements



City of Franklin
Self Insurance Fund - Actives

Balance Sheet
March 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable
Claims payable
Unrestricted net assets

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

2021 2020
$ 3,424,799 $ 2,825,077

324 324
$ 3,425,123 $ 2,825,401

$ 4,295 $ 683
311,800 175,000

3,109,027 2,649,718
$ 3,425,122 $ 2,825,401

City of Franklin Self Insurance Fund - Actives
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

Revenue
Medical Premiums-City
Medical Premiums-Employee
Other- Invest Income, Rebates
Medical Revenue

Dental Premiums-City
Dental Premiums-Retirees
Dental Premiums-Employee
Dental Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenditures:
Medical
Medical claims
Prescription drug claims
Refunds-Stop Loss Coverage
Total Claims

Medical Claim Fees
Stop Loss Premiums
Other - Miscellaneous
HSA Contributions
Plan Administration

Total Medical Costs

Dental
Active Employees & COBRA
Retiree

Total Dental Costs

2021
Original
Budget

$ 2,213,369
478,630
159,800

2,851,799
112,000
3,600
60,000

175,600
3,027,399

2021
Year-to-Date
Budget

$ 570,641
123,912
39,951
734,504
29,657
1,796

15,878
47,331
781,835

2021
Year-to-Date
Actual

$ 587,680
113,291
16,799
717,770
29,504
1,296

13,993
44,793
762,563

2020
Year-to-Date

Actual
$ 615,790

126,364
56,164
798,318
29,924
1,296

14,721
45,941
844,259

1,848,536 415,923 577,183 301,324
45,368 46,005

1,848,536 415,923 622,551 347,329
107,041 28,599 38,224 25,013
540,610 137,622 133,253 130,595
177,245 33,167 7,183 7,412
224,650 51,843 32,563 119,250

11,775
2,898,082 667,154 845,549 629,599

179,000 41,188 48,557 51,532
5,700 1,467 3,061 1,931

184,700 42,655 51,618 53,463

Claims contingency

Total Expenditures 3,082,782 709,809 897,167 683,062

Revenue over (under) expenditures (55,383) $ 72,026 (134,604) 161,197
Net assets, beginning of year 2,488,521 3,243,631 2,488,521

Net assets, end of period $ 2,433,138 $ 3,109,027 $ 2,649,718

4/0/9091



City of Franklin
City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust

Balance Sheet
March 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets 2021 2020
Cash and investments $ 110,480 $ 76,297
Investments held in trust- Fixed Inc 2,807,046 2,224,682
Investments held in trust- Equities 5,285,082 3,294,104
Accounts receivable 29,227 24,303

Total Assets $ 8,231,835 $ 5,619,386

Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable $ $
Claims payable 16,600 10,000
Net assets held in trust for post emp 8,215,235 5,609,386

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 8,231,835 $ 5,619,386

City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

4/14/2021

Revenue
ARC Medical Charges - City
Medical Charges - Retirees
Implicit Rate Subsidy

Medical Revenue

Expenditures:
Retirees-Medical
Medical claims
Prescription drug claims
Refunds-Stop Loss Coverage

Total Claims-Retirees
Medical Clamm Fees
Stop Loss Premiums
Miscellaneous Expense
ACA Fees

Total Medical Costs-Retirees

Revenue over (under) expenditures

Annual Required Contribution-Net
Other - Investment Income, etc.
Total Revenues

Net Revenues (Expendrtures)

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of period

2021 2020
Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Actual Actual

$ 43,478 $ 63,977
74,777 68,526

118,255 132,503

67,118 30,979
24,148 28,606

91,266 59,585
4,763 3,885
22,226 17,056

118,255 80,526

51,977

27,072 34,717
393,249 (1,016,068)
420,321 (981,351)

420,321 (929,374)

7,794,914 6,538,760

$ 8,215,235 $ 5,609,386

Findata Qtrrpt Retiree Health Fund xlsx March 2021



COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
ANDCHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

NONMAJORGOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FORCITY OF FRANKLIN
Period Ending 03/31/2021

HEALTH CIVIC
FIRE DEPT ST MARTINS DEPT GRANT OTHER DONATIONS CELEBRATIONS

GL lumbef__..---------------------------­ GRANT FUND FAIR FUND FUND GRANTS FUND FUND TOTAL-.---..-.

REVENUES
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 19,222 19,222
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 50 50
Total Revenues 19,222 50 19,272

EXPENDITURES
PERSONAL SERVICES 12,671 12,671
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 96,555 96,555
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 683 145 828
SUPPLIES 299 29,195 3,624 33,118
SERVICES & CHARGES 1,919 1,919
Total Expenditures 299 141,023 3,624 145 145,090

Excess (deficiency) of
Revenues vs Expenditures (299) (121,801) (3,574) (145) (125,818)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
FUND TRANSFERS

OTHER FINANCING USES
CAPITAL OUTLAY 154 154

Net Change in Fund Balance (299) (121,801) (3,728) (145) (125,972)

Fund Balance - Beginning 27,679 3,636 239,382 5,315 235,736 69,268 581,016
Fund Balance - Ending 27,381 3,636 117,581 5,315 232,008 69,123 455,044

4/13/2021 Qrpt Minor Funds 1021



City of Franklin
Park Commission

Statement of Revenue and Expenses
For the Three months ended March 31, 2021 & 2020

2021 2021 Current 2020
Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Totals Totals

General Fund Operating Revenue:
Park & Field Reservation $ 18,000 $ 6,953 $ 6,850 $ 7,525

General Fund Operating Expenses:
Personal Services $ 122,368 $ 28,239 $ 28,211 $ 33,300
Park Maintenance 59,543 12,533 8,700 14,733
Uniforms 350
Allocated insurance
Mileage 3,200 112 74
Utilities 15,425 3,796 2,621 2,074
Building maintenance

Total Operating Fund Expenses $ 200,886 $ 44,680 $ 39,532 $ 50,181

Capital Outlay Fund Expenses:
Landscaping-Park/Tree Maunt $ 42,000 $ 10,500 $ 1,424 $
Park Improvements-Development 75,000 18,750 12,935
Building Improvements 65,000
Park Equipment & Supplies 247,000 28,522

Total Capital Outlay Expenditures $ 429,000 $ 57,772 $ 14,359 $

Development Fund Revenue:
Impact Fee-Parks & Recreaton $ 146,117 $ 22,579 $ 30,362 $ 92,339

Development Fund Expenses:
Remmb to Developers & Others $ $ $ $ 25,285
Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund 1,259,250 100,753 93,000 23,484

Total Capital Improvement Expenditures 1,259,250 100,753 93,000 48,769

Capital Improvement Fund Expenses:
General Park Development $ 35,001 $ 8,750 $ 1 $ 22,618
Improvements - Ken WIndl Park
Ernie Lake Park - Park Equipment 397
PleasantView Park - Pavihon 19,287 19,287 127,826
PleasantView Park - Park Equipment 300,000 75,000 19,989
PleasantView Park - Master Plan Update 88,616 88,616 19,900
116th Street Trail 101,761 100,454
Land Purchase Water Tower Park 3,636 3,636
Church Street Pathway 75,000

Total Capital Improvement Expenditures 623,301 83,750 212,391 190,333

Less Impact Fees Transfer 1,259,250 100,753 93,000 23,484

Net Expenditures (after Impact Fee contribution) $ (635,949) $ (17,003) $ 119,391 $ 166,849

4/13/2021 Qtrrpt PARKS 1st Quarter 2021
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RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Committee of the Whole
Recommendations

MEETING DATE

05-04-21

ITEM NUMBER

',,·
Recommendations from the Committee of the Whole Meeting ofMay 3, 2021:

(a) Volition Franklin: Drug-Free Community Grant Progress and Future Presentation.
(b) Presentation of the 2020 Annual Financial Report for the City of Franklin.
(c) Continued Discussion Regarding the Establishment/Use of the following - City of Franklin

Common Council Reference Manual:
Form ofGovernment.
Common Council Code of Conduct.
Common Council Rules of Order.
Handbook for Wisconsin Municipal Officials.
Plan to Update to Existing Policies/Need for Additional Policies.
Common Council Training/Professional Development Opportunities.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

As directed

CLERKDEPT
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APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE

sh» COUNCIL ACTION 05/04/2021

LICENSES AND MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES ITEM NUMBER

PERMITS H.

See attached listing frommeeting of May 4, 2021.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
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Franklin
«ad

WISCONSIN

414-425-7500
License Committee

Agenda*
Alderman's Room

May 4, 2021 - 4:45 p.m.

1. I Call to Order & Roll Call I Time:
2. I Aoolicant Interviews & Decisions

License Applications Reviewed I Recommendations

Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny
Operator Vasiljevic, Dragan
2020-2021 7033 W. Forest Home Ave.New
5:00 p.m. Milwaukee, WI 53220

The Rock Sports Complex
Operator Wisniewski, Matthew D.
2020-2021 3660 S. 14 StreetNew

Milwaukee, WI 532215:05 p.m.
Country Lanes

Operator Wisniewski, Matthew D.
2021-2022 3660 S. 14h streetRenewal

Milwaukee, WI 53221
Country Lanes

Temporary The Bowery Bar & Grill
Entertainment & Applicant: Roger HeinAmusement
2020-2021 3023 W Ryan Road

Event date: Saturday June 5, 2021 6pm-10pm
Live Music (one person band) on outdoor patio

Operator Leisner, Katie lo
2021-2022 10586 W. Cortez Cir Apt# 10New

Franklin, WI 53132
Andy's on Ryan Rd.

Operator Balistreri, Dakotah D
2020-2021 107 Mchaels Ct #6New

Mukwonago, WI 5 3149
The Rock Sports Complex

Operator Balistreri, Dakotah D
2021-2022 107 Michaels Ct #6Renewal

Mukwonago, WI 5 3149
The Rock Sports Complex

Operator Banaszak, Michelle L.
2020-2021 8160 N. 100% St.New

Milwaukee, WI 53224
Irish Cottage

Operator Banaszak, Michelle L.
2021-2022 8160 N. 100% St.Renewal

Milwaukee, WI 53224
Irish Cottage

Operator Cruz-Gonzalez, Diego A.
2020-2021 3722 W. Oklahoma Ave.New

Milwaukee, WI 53215
7-Eleven
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Annlicant Information Approve Hold DenyTvoe/ Time
Operator Cruz-Gonzalez, Diego A.
2021-2022 3722 W. Oklahoma Ave.Renewal

Milwaukee, WI 53215
7-Eleven

Operator Jacobs, Eric K.
2020-2021 11304 W. Upham Ave.New

Hales Corners, WI 53130
Hideaway Pub & Eaterv

Operator Jacobs, Eric K.
2021-2022 11304 W. Upham Ave.Renewal Hales Corners, WI 53130

Hideawav Pub & Eaterv
Operator Jesinski, Terese M.
2020-2021 3548 S. 80% St.

New Milwaukee, WI 53220
No Location

Operator Jesinski, Terese M.2021-2022 3548 S. 80% St.Renewal
Milwaukee, WI 53220
No Location

Operator Nuss, Jennifer M.
2020-2021 2276 Hope LaneNew

Oak Creek, WI 53154
The Rock Soorts Comolex

Operator Nuss, Jennifer M.
2021-2022 2276 Hope LaneRenewal

Oak Creek, WI 53154
The Rock Sports Complex

Operator Wachter, Jill M.
2020-2021 3930 W. Victory Creek Dr.New

Franklin, WI 53132
The Rock Sports Complex

Operator Wachter, Jill M.
2021-2022 3930 W. Victory Creek Dr.Renewal

Franklin, WI 53132
The Rock Sports Complex

Operator Balcerzak, Amy B.
2021-2022 2605 E. Emily Ave.Renewal

Oak Creek, WI 53154
Walareens #15020

Operator Braovac, John D.
2021-2022 8623 S. Deerwood LaneRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
CroatIon Park

Operator Bryant, Sara A.
2021-2022 3925 W. Denis Ave.Renewal

Greenfield, WI 53221
Root River Center

Operator Bucher, Deanna L.
2021-2022 2743 76% St.Renewal

Franksville, WI 53126
Swiss Street Pub & Gnll
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Operator Cauley, Joseph A.
2021-2022 1813 S. 70% St.Renewal West AIits, WI 53214

Rawson Pub
Operator Chatfield, Anthony M.
2021-2022 10224 W. Forest Home Ave. Apt# 319Renewal Hales Corners, WI 53130

Croatian Park
Operator Gagliano, Eric M.
2021-2022 3723 Meadow Rose Ct.Renewal Franksville, WI 53126

Bowery Bar & Grill
Operator Grochowski, Halina
2021-2022 1111 W. Rosewood TriRenewal

Oak Creek, WI 53154
Buckhorn Bar & Grill

Operator Itsines, Nicholas D.
2021-2022 17285 Ely Ct.Renewal

Brookfield, WI 53045
Honey Butter Cafe

Operator Jaskie, Shane R.
2021-2022 7811 W. Winston WayRenewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Iron Mike's

Operator Jubeck, Adam J.
2021-2022 2430 W. Briar Lake Way #2BRenewal

Oak Creek, WI 53154
Bowerv Bar & Grill

Operator Kagerbauer, Justin D.
2021-2022 S86 W18930 Woods Rd.Renewal

Muskego, WI 53150
Croatian Park

Operator Kaur, Paramjeet
2021-2022 185 W. Rainbow Ridge Dr. #301Renewal

Oak Creek, WI 53154
Franklin Liquor Store

Operator Kochan, Lori A.
2021-2022 508 W. Main StreetRenewal

Waterford, WI 53185
Swiss Street Pub & Grill

Operator Laughery, Kimberlee B.
2021-2022 1333 S. 116 st.Renewal

West Allis, WI 53214
Sendik's Food Market

Operator Marinez, Rachel M.
2021-2022 2561 S. 13% St.Renewal

Milwaukee, WI 53215
Hideaway Pub & Eatery

Operator Martinez, Carlos L.
2021-2022 7000 W. Southridge Dr. Apt. 40Renewal

Greenfield, WI 53220
Walareens #15020
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Operator Martinez, Jennifer L.
2021-2022 8725 Wood Creek Dr. #8Renewal Oak Creek, WI 53154

Swiss Street Pub & Grill
Operator Mashkina, Nadiya
2021-2022 9667 W. Forest Home Ave. #1Renewal Hales Corners, WI 53130

Walgreens #15020
Operator Mayrand, Mandy L.
2021-2022 W224 S9950 Big Bend Dr.Renewal Big Bend, WI 53103

Swiss Street Pub &Grill
Operator Nelson, Samantha A.
2021-2022 S75 W16880 Gregory Dr. Apt. DRenewal Muskego, WI 53150

Milwaukee Burger Company
Operator Planton, Allison M.
2021-2022 14900 W. Wilbur Dr. Unit 1204Renewal New Berlin, WI 53151

The Rock Sports Complex
Operator Rabiega, Richard G.
2021-2022 7731 W. Cedar Ridge Ct.Renewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Polonia Sport Club

Operator Rinke, Kristen L.
2021-2022 S97 W12719 Champions Dr.Renewal

Muskego, WI 53150
Hideaway Pub & Eatery

Operator Ruyle, Toni M.
2021-2022 1835 Ellis Ave.Renewal

Racine, WI 53402
Swiss Street Pub &Grill

Operator Scheffler, Ryan M.
2021-2022 730 N. Rochester St. #11Renewal

Mukwonago, WI 53149
Swiss Street Pub & Grill

Operator Schneider, Judy A
2021-2022 8418 Tuckaway Shores Dr.Renewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Michaelangelo's Pizza

Operator Smith, Hollie C.
2021-2022 6873 S. 35 St.Renewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Walareens #15020

Operator St. Louis, Jessica N.
2021-2022 10598 W. Cortez Cir #34Renewal

Franklin, WI 53132
The Landmark

Operator Stork, Nadine A.
2021-2022 8636 W. Marshfield Ct.Renewal

Franklin, WI 53132
Walareens #15020
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Operator Trippler, Stacie L.
2021-2022 5331 N. 37 St.Renewal Milwaukee, WI 53209

On The Border
Operator Varga, Kathleen A.
2021-2022 3739 S. Packard Ave #120Renewal

St. Francis, WI 53235
Walareens #15020

Operator Zalewski, Raquel M.
2021-2022 3625 W. Ruskin St.Renewal Milwaukee, WI 53215

Rawson Pub
Amusement Device American Entertainment

Operator W337 S5059 Hwy GG2021-2022
Dousman, WI 53118
Kenneth J Grothman, Owner

Amusement Device Games R Us Inc
Operator Wl44 S6315 College Ct2021-2022 Muskego, WI 53150

Steven Murphy, Owner
Amusement Device Mitchell Novelty Co

Operator 3506 W National Ave2021-2022
Milwaukee, WI 53215
Ralph A Fleeae, Owner

Amusement Device National Entertainment Network
Operator 325 Interlocken Pkwy B2021-2022

Broomfield, CO 80021
James F Sevalt, Owner

Amusement Device Red's Novelty Ltd
Operator 1921 S 74 St2021-2022

West Allis, WI 53132
Rosalie Jacomet Agent

Amusement Device Wisconsin P&P Amusements
Operator 12565 W Lisbon Rd2021-2022

Brookfield, WI 53005
Michael Weigel Owner

Day Care Academy of Preschool Learning, Inc
2021-2022 Dba Academy of Preschool Learning

3900 W Ryan Rd
Nadeen Balsis, Manager

Day Care Discovery Days Childcare III, Inc.
2021-2022 DBA Discovery Days Childcare

9758 S Airways Ct
Tina Kraussel, Manager

Day Care Faith Academy for Kids
2021-2022 Dba Faith Academy

7700 W Faith Dr
Jennifer Finch, Manaaer

Day Care Ingenious, Inc
2021-2022 7260 S 76 St

Franklin, WI 53132
Banmeet K Dadwal Manaaer
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Tvoe/ Time Annlicant Information Approve Hold Deny
Day Care Jubilee Faith Center, Inc.
2021-2022 Dba Jubilee Christian School

3639 W Ryan Rd
Tanva L Soich Manager

Day Care KinderCare Education LLC
2021-2022 KinderCare

6350 S 108 St
Theresa Castronovo, Manager

Day Care Kinder Care Education, LLC
2021-2022 Falk Park KinderCare

7363 S 27% St
Katelvn Rekowski. Manaoer

Day Care Mrs. Rikki's Structured Daycare
2021-2022 11224 W Forest Home Ave

Rochelle S Bovee. Manaoer
Entertainment & R&C PUB & GRUB LLC
Amusement Dba Swiss Street Pub & Grill2020-2021

11430 W Swiss Street
Chrystal Rausch, Aaent

Entertainment & Innovative Health & Fitness Building LLC
Amusement 8800 S 1024 St2021-2022

Scott Cole. Owner
Entertainment & Milwaukee County Parks
Amusement Milwaukee County Sports Complex2021-2022

6000 W Ryan Rd
Andrea Wallace, Agent

Entertainment & Milwaukee County Parks
Amusement Oakwood Park Golf Course2021-2022

3600 W Oakwood Rd
Andrea Wallace Aaent

Entertainment & Milwaukee County Parks
Amusement Whitnall Park Golf Course2021-2022

6751 S 924 st
Andrea Wallace Aaent

Mobile Home Badger MHP, LLC
2021-2022 Dba Badger Mobile Home Park

6405 S 27% St
Jason P Janda, Manager

Mobile Home Franklin Mobile, LLC
2021-2022 DBA Franklin Mobile Estates

6361 S 27% st
David Steinberaer, Manager

Potential Amendment to
Municipal Code Chapter 2021 Wisconsin Act 21 which became effective on
158 Relating to Off- March 28, 2021 allows "Class B" Liquor retailers to
Premise Consumption sell wine and intoxicating liquor by the glass, orSales by "Class B"
Retailers to Allow Sale of otherwise not in its original container for off
Intoxicating Liquor for premise consumption provided the item is sealed
Off Premise Consumption with a tamper-evident seal.
bv "Class B" Retailers

Time
3. Adiournment
Notice Is gtven that a majority of the Common Council may attend thus meeting to gather information about an agenda 1tem over which they have
dec1ston-making responsibility Thus may constitute a meetmng of the Common Council per State ex rel Badke v Greendale Village Board, even
though the Common Councilwll not take formal action at thus meeting
Page 6 of 6



Sandi Wesolowski

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

yweslaw <yweslaw@aol com>
Tuesday, April 27, 2021 3·59 PM
Sandi Wesolowski
"Tamper-evident seal" alcohol sales Stat and Mun Code

The §158-3J. Subsection you mentioned is at the bottom below. "Class C" is not included in the Act 21, only "Class
B". So in terms of the Act 21, not seeing a need to amend the Code pursuant thereto (re: "as amended from time to
time" provision). Westlaw has not been updated re: Act 21 as yet, did do a check and while Class C is not mentioned in
Act 21, cite: "Wis. Stat. 9 125.51(3r) Sales of wine by the bottle in restaurants. (a) Notwithstanding subs. (3)(a) and (b)
and (3m)(b), a "Class B" license or "Class C" license authorizes the retail sale of wine in an opened original bottle, in a
quantity not to exceed one bottle, for consumption both on and off the premises where sold if all of the following apply:
****" .... Thanks.

wis. Stat. $ 125.51

Date of enactment: March 26, 2021
2021 Assembly Bill 32 Date ofpubhcatlOn*: March 27, 2021

Section 99 11 I, WISCONSIN STATUTES Effective date of acts "Every act and every portmn of an act enacted by the legislature over the governor's partial veto
which does not expressly prescnbe the hme when It takes effect shall take effect on the day after its date of pubhcatmn "

2021 WISCONSIN ACT 21
AN A CT to amend 125 51 (3) (a), 125 51 (3) (am) and 125 51 (3) (b), and to create 125.02 (20g) ofthe statutes, relating to the
reta1l sale ofmtoxlcatmg hquor by the glass for consumption away from the licensed premises

Thepeople of the state ofsconsn, represented mn senate and assembly, do enact asfallows

SECTION 1 125 02 (20g) of the statutes ls created to read

125 02 (20g) "Tamper-evident seal" means a device or matenal that ls used to securely and fully close off a contamer, with no
perforatl 0ns, m such a manner that access to the contents ofthe contamer cannot be gamed without showmg evidence oftampenng

SECTION 2125.51 (3 )(a)ofthestatutes 1 samendedtoread 12551 (3)(a)A"Class
B"[censeauthonzestheretal lsaleofintoxcatinglquorfrconsumptionontheprenseswheresoldbythe

glass and not mn the orlgmnal package or contamner for consumption on the premises where sold or for consumpt 1on off the pr
emuses If the licenseesealsthecontamnerofmt ox lcatmngliquorw1thatamper­
ev1dentsealbeforethemntox l catmnghquorl sremovedfromtheprem l ses In addlt10n, wl I le may be sold m the ongmal package or
contamer many quantity to be consumed offi:he premises where sold This paragraph does not apply 11 lmumclpahties m wluch the
govemmg body elects to come under par. (b) or to a wmery that has been issued a "Class B" hcense Paragraph (am) apphes to all
wmenes that have been issued a "Class B" license

SECTION 3. 125 51 (3) (am) ofthe statutes ls amended to read

125 51 (3) (am) A "Class B" cense issued to a wmery authonzes the sale ofwme to be consumed by the glass or 11 lopened
contamners only on the premises where sold and or off the pr emuses lfthe hcensee seals the contamner ofwmne with a tamper­
evident seal before the wme ls removed from the 12remlses. The "Class B" license also authonzes the sale ofwme mn the or gmnal

1



package or contamer to be consumed offthe premises where sold, but does not authonze the sale of fermented malt beverages or any
mtox 1 catmg liquor other than w111 e

SECTION4. J25 51 (3) (b) of the statutes ls amended to read

125 51 (3) (b) In all mumclpahtJes electmg by ordmance to come under this paragraph, a retail "Class B" hcense authonzes the sale
of 111toxlcatmghquortobeconsumedbytheglassonlyonthepremiseswheresoldandoroffthel 2rem 1 sestfthehcenseesealstheconta111 er of
mntoxlcatmng_liquor with a tamper-ev dent seal before the mntoxlcatmng I quor Is removed from the pr emses The "Class B"
license also authonzes the sale ofmtoxlcatl I lg hquor 11 lthe orlgmnal package or container, mn any quantity, to be consumed off
the premises where sold Thusparagraphdoesnotapplytoawmerythathasbeemssueda"ClassB"hcense
Paragraph(am)applestoallwmneresthathavebeen 1ssued a "Class B" hcense

Mun. Code

§ 158-1 State statutes adopted.
The provisions of Ch. 125, Wis Stats , enumerated below and as amended from time to time, exclusive of
any provisions relating to any penalty to be imposed or the punishment for the violation of such statutes, unless
otherwise indicated, are hereby adopted by reference and made a part of thus chapter

GENERAL PROVISIONS
125.02

125.51

Definitions

INTOXICATING LIQUOR
Retail licenses and permits

§158-3License fees.
There shall be the following classes and denominations of licenses which, when issued by the City Clerk under
the authority of the City Council, after payment of the fee specrfed in Chapter 169, Licenses and Permits, shall
permit the holder to sell, deal or traffic m mtoxIcatmg liquor or fermented malt beverages as provided In
$$125 17, 125.26 and 125.51, Wis Stats

J.
Class C Retail Wine License A Class C license authorizes the retail sale of wme by the glass or In opened
original container for consumption on the premises where sold
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APPROVAL

ch» l#\
Bills

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Vouchers and Payroll Approval

MEETING DATE
05/04/2021

ITEM NUMBER

I

Attached are vouchers dated April 16, 2021 through May 3, 2021 Nos. 182814 through Nos. 183002 in
the amount of$ 2,240,275.12. Also included in this listing are EFT's Nos. 4564 through Nos. 4580. Library
vouchers totaling $28,777.94, Tourism vouchers totaling $ 150,000.00 Water Utility vouchers totaling $ 30,273.83
and Property Tax refunds totaling$ 3,000.00. Voided checks in the amount of($ 7,527.80) are separately listed.

Early release disbursements dated April 16, 2021 through April 30, 2021 in the amount of $ 741,780.56
are provided on a separate listing and are also included in the complete disbursement listing. These payments
have been released as authorized under Resolution 2013-6920.

The net payroll dated April 23, 2021 is $ 439,373.98, previously estimated at $ 427,000. Payroll deductions
dated April 23, 2021 are$ 446,784.28 previously estimated at$ 449,000.

The estimated payroll for May 7, 2021 is$ 399,000 with estimated deductions and matching payments of
$236,000.

Attached is a list of property tax reimbursements EFT's Nos. 375 through EFT Nos. 379 and EFT Nos. 284(S)
through 286 (S) dated April 15, 2021 through April 29, 2021 in the amount of$ 3,623,947 17 $10,915,727 11
represents settlements and$ 3,000.00 represents refunds/other These payments have been released as
authorized under Resolution 2013-6920. (Property tax settlements in the amount of $10,915,727 11 were approved
at the meeting dated April 20, 2021.)

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion approving the following:

• City vouchers with an ending date of May 3, 2021 in the amount of$ 2,240,275.12 and

• Payroll dated April 23, 2021 in the amount of$ 439,373.98 and payments of the various payroll deductions
in the amount of$ 446,784.28 plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated May 7, 2021 in theamount of $ 399,000 and payments ofthe variouspayroll
deductions in the amount of$ 236,000, plus City matching and

• Property Tax disbursements with an ending date of April 29, 2021 in the amount of$ 3,623,947 17

ROLLCALLVOTENEEDED

Finance Dept- KM
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